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HIGHLIGHTS
OF 2013
We celebrated our 20th anniversary in Cambodia,
reaffirming our commitment to serve the people and
economy of the Kingdom of Cambodia.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

AT A
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GLANCE
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BRANCHES

16

(Refer to page 34 for Financial and Strategy Review)

We strengthened our presence, and are now in 16
locations, with the opening of four branches in 2013,
including becoming the first foreign bank in the
provincial town of Serey Sophorn.

ACHIEVEMENTS
BUSINESS
REVIEW

14.84%

We managed to further improve on our Return on Equity
and Return on Assets to 14.84% and 2.12% respectively,
as against 10.90% and 1.48% in the previous year.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

ROE

(Refer to page 34 for Financial and Strategy Review)

(Refer to page 36 for Community Financial Services/Channel Management)

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
We continued to deliver long-term sustainable
benefits and made a difference in the lives of the
community we operate in with our award-winning
Corporate Responsibility initiative with the People
Improvement Organization.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

USD9.8 million

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

PROFIT

We delivered a commendable Profit After Tax of USD9.8
million for the financial year ended December 2013,
driven by productivity improvements, quality loans
originations and building of our funding capability.`

ABOUT US

(Refer to page 4 and page 6 for Chairman’s and CEO’s Statements)

OTHER
INFORMATION

THE MOST
OUTSTANDING
SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
BANK 2013

THE FINANCIALS

(Refer to page 46 for Corporate Responsibility)
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

“Our company has
achieved a commendable
performance with Profit
After Tax reaching
USD9.8 million at the end
of Financial Year 2013.”
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ABOUT US

“We are especially pleased that we became the first foreign bank to open
a branch at the provincial Serey Sophorn town in the Banteay Meanchey
province. This was testament to us living the mission of humanizing
financial services.”

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

AT A GLANCE
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BUSINESS
REVIEW
OUR
RESPONSIBILITY
OUR
LEADERSHIP

Looking ahead, I envisage we can expect better
opportunities in 2014 given Cambodia’s vibrant
and rapidly expanding economy as well as fast
growing GDP. We will remain agile to the situation,
and we are confident in supporting our clients
and customers, as well as positioning ourselves
to be ready to capture the opportunities with
our competitive strengths. Since our inception in
1993, and with a significant boost in 2012 when we
locally incorporated our operations in Cambodia,
Maybank has made significant strides to improve
its performance in line with its vision, mission and
strategic objectives. I am confident that, in the
years ahead, the Bank would make more meaningful
contributions to the Maybank Group and play an
important role in the Cambodian banking industry
in support of our regional aspirations.

CHEAH TEIK SENG
Chairman

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

We have proudly celebrated Maybank’s 20 years of
service to the people and economy of the Kingdom
of Cambodia, and hosted a Customers’ Appreciation
Dinner on 5 November 2013. Driven by our Bank’s
commitment to build a sustainable community
banking relationship, we expanded our footprints
and opened four new branches and established six
off-site ATMs during the year. We are especially
pleased that we became the first foreign bank to
open a branch at the provincial Serey Sophorn
town in the Banteay Meanchey province. This was
testament to us living the mission of humanizing
financial services as our efforts in establishing a
special provincial branch in the area has indeed
created value for the community – being able to
offer fair terms and pricing for customers, provide
people with convenient access to financing, as well
as service the community by giving them a broader
range of financial product and service options.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to
express our sincere gratitude towards all
our stakeholders who have supported us
throughout the year. The better achievement
that we have obtained comes from the
customers’ confidence in us, and to our
Maybankers who have unrelentingly strived
for growth. I would also like to extend my
appreciation to the National Bank of Cambodia
and other regulatory authorities for their
continued guidance and support.

THE FINANCIALS

Total assets grew to USD461.6 million as at 31
December 2013, representing a 11.6% year-on-year
(y-o-y) growth. Our gross loans stood at USD272.1
million, which grew 14.3% y-o-y, while our total
customers deposits registered a significant growth
at a y-o-y growth rate of 39.9% ending at USD296.7
million. Our solvency ratio remains well capitalized
at 20.89%.

Meanwhile, our emphasis on reaching out and
delivering long-term sustainable benefits to
communities in areas where we served continues
to be demonstrated in Cambodia as well as across
the region. Our success with the Corporate
Responsibility (CR) initiatives here did not go
unnoticed as we managed to garner recognitions
and awards from both the community here, and
at the Maybank Group level. In the latter, our
winning CR initiative stood out from the over
100 CR initiatives undertaken across the globe by
the Maybank Group family. And in Cambodia, we
became the first bank to win the “Most Outstanding
Social Performance Bank” award in the Cambodia
Banking Awards 2013. I am proud that this
recognition underscores the level of commitment
displayed by our Maybankers here, volunteering
their personal time to serve the community, as well
as bear testimony to the difference we are making
to communities across the region, particularly here
in Cambodia.

OTHER
INFORMATION

I am pleased to present our second annual report
and audited accounts for the financial year ended
31 December 2013. Our company has achieved a
commendable performance with Profit After Tax
reaching USD9.8 million at the end of Financial
Year 2013. Our Return on Equity and Return on
Assets have further improved to 14.84% and 2.12%
respectively, as against 10.90% and 1.48% in the
previous year.

ACHIEVEMENTS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
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CEO’S STATEMENT

“Despite the challenges
of simultaneously
building up our
capability and growing
our franchise following
local incorporation,
we have managed to
achieve a commendable
Profit After Tax of
USD9.8 million for the
financial year ended
2013.”
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ABOUT US

“Our mission of humanising financial services across Asia is a very
important driving force in what we do. This will be further amplified
as we continue with our effort in building on Maybank’s strength of
humanising financial services, having the right service solutions and
providing convenience to customers.”

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

AT A GLANCE
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OTHER
INFORMATION

Handing over of Banking License from the Deputy Governor of the National Bank of Cambodia, Lok Chumteav Ouk Maly to the CEO of Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc., Lee Tien Poh, accompanied by the CEO International, Pollie Sim.

THE FINANCIALS

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

On our business growth, we went through many
challenges given that competitive dynamics have
changed tremendously with many new entrants
coming into this market in recent years. In 2013, we
have placed emphasis on quality loans originations
in order to protect the bank’s assets. As a result,
our Gross Loans grew at a moderate pace of 14%,
reaching USD272.1 million as at 31 December 2013.
Our branch network expansion has contributed to
our strategy to strengthen our funding capability.
I am pleased to note that we have managed to
achieve a 40% year-on-year growth rate for our
Customers’ Deposits, which increased to USD296.7
million. I believe that it is one of the highest
growth rates amongst all the commercial banks.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Despite the challenges of simultaneously building up our
capability and growing our franchise following local
incorporation, we have managed to achieve a
commendable Profit After Tax of USD9.8 million for the
financial year ended 2013. In 2013, we have focused on
improving productivity, quality loans originations and
building our funding capability.

In the year under review, we have managed
to further improve on our Return on Equity
and Return on Assets to 14.84% and 2.12%
respectively, as against 10.90% and 1.48% in the
previous year. Through our focus on optimizing
our funding, we managed to improve on our
Net Interest Margin to Total Assets ratio to
4.03%, from last year’s at 2.78%. We have also
strengthened our loans management and recovery
processes which we have managed to reap some
benefits as evidenced from the subsequent
reduction in NPL ratio; which reduced to 3.2%,
from last year at 4.4%. This has a direct
impact to our bottom line through write-backs in
loans loss provision.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

REVIEW OF 2013 PERFORMANCE

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Financial Year 2013 has been an eventful year. Guided
by our renewed vision and mission, following the local
incorporation of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. in April 2012,
we have made good progress in building up our capability,
and increasing our footprints across the Kingdom of
Cambodia, where we opened four more branches this year.
I would like to take this opportunity to share with you
on how we have performed in 2013, our expectations
for 2014 and our initiatives this year.

ACHIEVEMENTS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
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Maybank celebrating 20 years in Cambodia.

Growing our deposit franchise will enable us to build
a strong foundation to further grow our consumer
business segment in the years ahead.
We were able to roll out four new branches in 2013,
with a grand opening ceremony held on 28 October
2013 in the provincial Serey Sophorn town. Thus far,
these four new branches are gaining traction in their
respective business growth. In addition, we were also
successful in deploying six Off-Site ATMs in 2013.
These network expansions are part of our long term
commitment to strengthen our distribution capabilities
and expand our reach in Cambodia as well as play a
significant role in developing the local financial services
industry. We are especially proud to be able to further
strengthen our commitment to humanise financial
services in Cambodia with the establishment of a special
provincial branch in Serey Sophorn, where it would
enable us to offer fair terms and pricing for customers,
provide people with convenient access to financing, as
well as serve the community by giving them a broader
range of financial product and service options.
Additionally, with our network expansion, coupled
with our concerted effort in brand building, we have
managed to gain grounds on our brand and we are
now more visible compared to previous years.
We continued to place emphasis on our talents who have
played an important role in delivering our results. As
we focused on our business growth strategy, we
provided even greater focus and emphasis on ensuring
the right remuneration, benefits, career development
and progression opportunities for our talents.

A review on the employee compensation and benefits
package was completed, guided by the philosophy
that our compensation structure remains competitive
in the market, with continued emphasis on a pay-forperformance culture, where high performance is duly
rewarded.
Employee volunteerism continued to blossom with
commendable volunteer hours put in by our employees,
reinforcing our humanising mission to the communities
we operate in. We believe that being at the heart of the
community is a fundamental embodiment to our mission
of humanising financial service. Sustainability has been
primary to Maybank ever since our foundation –
whether in our business performance, our products
and services or our engagement with our stakeholders.
Similarly, corporate responsibility (CR) is integral to
the way we do business.
I am proud that our employees have brought another
year of pride to Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. in the area of
corporate responsibility. With stronger commitment
to our CR program “Maybank Child Sponsorship: A
Way Out of the Dump”, as well as other CR initiatives,
Maybank was recognized at the Most Outstanding
Social Performance Bank in the Cambodia Banking
Awards 2013. Many of our employees exemplified our
corporate responsibility values by getting involved
personally and making a difference to the community
we serve. We will continue to focus on efforts which
could make a positive impact to our society

LOOKING AHEAD
Our plans for 2014 will continue to be in line with
our journey to achieving our vision and mission.
We will focus on several initiatives along these
criteria:
• Additional 5 new branches, and 6 off site
ATMs covering 60% of the population.
• Enhancing our loans machinery and risk
management capability.
• Improving fee based income by leveraging
on Transactional Banking Capability and
Card Business.
• Improving branches productivity and
customer relationship.
• Promoting the culture of Cost
Consciousness and Optimization
On the back of these initiatives, our targets for
2014 are:
• Return on Equity 14.4%
• Loans Market Share: 5% at an average
growth rate of 35%
• Deposits Market Share: 5% at an average
growth rate of 37%
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Lee Tien Poh, CEO Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. at the Maybank Global CR Day 2013.

Thank you.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Our growth ambition would not have been made
possible without the support of many. I would like to
express my sincere appreciation to all Maybankers
for their undivided commitment during the year to
deliver this commendable result. On behalf of the
management team, I would also like to extend our
appreciation to the Board of Directors, our customers
and business partners for their continued support. I
am especially thankful for the guidance and support
we received from the National Bank of Cambodia and
other regulatory authorities throughout the year.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

I would also like to share with you our latest brand
campaign entitled “Bridging Worlds in Asia” that is
being rolled out Group-wide in Maybank, and used as
the theme for our Annual Report 2013. Our mission
of humanising financial services across Asia is a
very important driving force in what we do. This will
be further amplified as we continue with our effort
in building on Maybank’s strength of humanising
financial services, having the right service solutions
and providing convenience to customers.

APPRECIATION

THE FINANCIALS

Cambodia is one of the fastest growing economies
in Asia, and it has experienced the average economic
growth of 7% for the past few years. In FY2013, the
economy enjoyed a real growth of 7.2% and faced
the annual inflation of 2.9%, according to ADB’s 2014
report. The Asian Development Bank continues to
place consistently optimistic views on Cambodia’s
growth that is projected to be slightly more than 7%
for FY2014 and FY2015 with average annual inflation
rate of 3.5%. The expected strong growth will be
convergent with further credit growth from which
Maybank is well-positioned and well-prepared to
capitalise on. Apart from the operational outreach via

branch network expansion and ATM rollout, we will
stay close with technological innovation applications
which will be further embedded in our new products
and services.

LEE
LE
EE TIEN
E POH
PO
CEO
CE
EO
OTHER
INFORMATION

OUTLOOK FOR 2014
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WITH MORE THAN
2,200 OFFICES IN
20 COUNTRIES,
WE CONNECT YOU
ACROSS ASIA.

REACH

20 COUNTRIES
2,200 OFFICES

LAOS

OTHER
INFORMATION
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VISION, MISSION
& CORE VALUES

Vision
To Be A Regional Financial Services Leader

Mission
Humanising Financial Services Across Asia

Core Values

TEAMWORK

INTEGRITY

GROWTH

EXCELLENCE &
EFFICIENCY

RELATIONSHIP
BUILDING

We work together
as a team based on
mutual respect and
dignity

We are honest,
professional and
ethical in all our
dealings

We are passionate
about constant
improvement and
innovation

We are committed
to delivering
outstanding
performance and
superior service

We continuously
build long-term and
mutually beneficial
partnerships
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ABOUT US

Maybank, as a custodian of public funds,
has a responsibility to safeguard its
integrity and credibility. It is with this
understanding that the organization sets
out clearly the code of ethics and conduct
for its staff. The code stipulates the sound
principles that will guide all Maybank staff
in discharging their duties. It sets out the
standards of good banking practice.

ACHIEVEMENTS

CODE OF ETHICS
& CONDUCT

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

AT A GLANCE
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Uphold the good name of Maybank and to maintain public confidence in Maybank.
Maintain public confidence in the security and integrity of the banking system.
Maintain an impartial and unbiased relationship between Maybank and its customers.
Uphold the high standards of personal integrity and professionalism of Maybank staff.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

THE PURPOSE OF THE CODE IS TO:
1.
2.
3.
4.

OUR
LEADERSHIP
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

IN ADDITION TO THESE, STAFF SHOULD:
1. Ensure the integrity and accuracy of records and/or transactions.
2. Ensure fair and equitable treatment in all business dealings on behalf of the Bank.
3. Maintain the highest standard of service in their relationship with customers.
4. Maintain confidentiality of all relations and dealings between the Bank and its
customers. However, confidential information concerning a customer may be given
or made available to third parties only with prior written consent of the customer or
when disclosure is authorised under any Professional Secrecy Law to be made to the
supervisory authorities investigating into an offence specified in such law and other
permitted disclosures as stated in the Law on Banking and Financial Institution 1999.
5. Manage their financial matters well and not subject themselves to pecuniary
embarrassment.
6. Observe and comply with laws and regulations relating to the operations of the Bank.

THE FINANCIALS

3.

OTHER
INFORMATION

2.

Engage directly or indirectly in any business activity that competes or is in conflict with
the Bank’s interest.
Misuse or abuse their position in the Bank for their personal benefit or for the benefit of
other persons.
Misuse information. Staff should not copy, remove or make use of any information
obtained in the course of business for the direct or indirect benefit of themselves or of
any other persons.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

THE CODE STIPULATES THAT STAFF SHOULD NOT:
1.
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CORPORATE PROFILE, GLOBAL NETWORK
& LOCAL NETWORK
Maybank is among Asia’s
leading financial services
groups, and the fourth
largest bank in Southeast
Asia by assets.

CHINA

PAKISTAN
INDIA

It was established in Kuala
Lumpur in 1960 and is
listed and headquartered in
Malaysia. It is also Malaysia’s
No.1 financial services group
and the largest company by
market capitalisation in the
country.

The Maybank Group offers a comprehensive range
of financial services ranging from corporate and
consumer banking, investment banking, insurance
& takaful, asset management, Islamic banking,
offshore banking, stock broking, venture capital
financing and internet banking.
It operates an extensive global network of over
2,200 offices in 20 countries including in all 10
ASEAN countries. From its key home markets of
Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia, the Group’s
presence extends to the Philippines, Brunei

HONG KONG
MYANMAR
THAILAND

PHILIPPINES
CAMBODIA
MALAYSIA

Darussalam, Cambodia, Vietnam, Laos, Thailand,
Myanmar, China, Hong Kong, Papua New Guinea,
Pakistan, India, Uzbekistan, Saudi Arabia, Bahrain,
United Kingdom and United States of America.
The Maybank Group has leveraged its vast network
and extensive experience of over 53 years to
bridge customers across the world through unique
financial solutions and advisory services that are
tailored for their specific needs. Its vast array of
products and capabilities makes the Group an ideal
business partner, particularly in markets where it
has a presence.

Over 2,200 22 mil
OFFICES

CUSTOMERS

Over 2,200 offices in 20 countries

Over 47,000 employees serving over 22 million
customers

LAOS
VIETNAM

LABUAN
BRUNEI
SINGAPORE

PAPUA NEW GUINEA

INDONESIA

With a strong focus on innovation and excellence,
Maybank has been consistently recognised for
its leadership and ability to deliver value to all
its stakeholders. It has received numerous region
and international awards, and acknowledged for
its leadership among peers. Maybank is ranked
among the top 20 Strongest Banks in the World by
Bloomberg Markets magazine, and is the leading
Malaysian bank and among the top 100 Global
Banks listed by The Banker magazine. It has also
been ranked Malaysia’s Most Valuable Brand for
a number of years. The Group’s Islamic Banking
arm, Maybank Islamic Berhad, is the top Islamic

USD27 bil

MARKET
CAPITALISATION

The largest listed company on Bursa Malaysia

15

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

AT A GLANCE

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

LONDON
NEW YORK

ABOUT US

UZBEKISTAN
BAHRAIN

BUSINESS
REVIEW

ACHIEVEMENTS

SAUDI ARABIA

Maybank Group was built on the commitment that
it would serve as a catalyst for economic and social
development wherever it operates. True to this
philosophy, the Group has continuously worked
to support economic and social development
in countries where it operates. Today, this is
reinforced by its mission to humanise financial
services across Asia. Through this mission, Maybank
is focused on providing people with access to

financial services at fair terms and pricing, advising
them based on their needs and being at the heart of
the community.
The Maybank Foundation remains an integral
avenue for the Group to reinforce its commitment
to the community. Through the Foundation’s
regional corporate responsibility initiatives as
well as the active involvement of its employees,
Maybank remains steadfast in helping foster a
better and more sustainable future for all.

•
•
•
•

•
•

USD171 bil

USD2.1 bil

The largest bank in Malaysia

Record PATAMI of USD2.1 billion for FY2013

TOTAL ASSETS

•
•
•

NET EARNINGS

•
•
•
•
•

OUR
LEADERSHIP

•

commercial bank by assets in the Asia Pacific and
3rd in the world.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

•

Bahrain 1 branch
Brunei 3 branches
Cambodia 16 branches
China 2 branches
Hong Kong 1 branch, 2 branches via Maybank Kim
Eng
Indonesia 422 branches via 78.95% owned Bank
Internasional Indonesia (BII), 6 branches via
Maybank Kim Eng, 1 branch via Maybank Syariah
Indonesia
India 1 branch via Maybank Kim Eng, 1 branch in
Mumbai via BII
Labuan 1 branch
Laos 1 branch
London 1 branch, 1 branch via Maybank
Kim Eng
Malaysia 399 branches, 6 branches via Maybank
Investment Bank
Myanmar 1 representative office
New York 1 branch, 1 branch via Maybank
Kim Eng
Pakistan 1,208 branches via 20% owned MCB
Bank, 4 branches via 32.5% owned Pak-Kuwait
Takaful Company
Papua New Guinea 2 branches
Philippines 77 branches, 3 branches via Maybank
Kim Eng
Saudi Arabia 1 office via Anfaal Capital
Singapore 22 branches, 4 branches via
Maybank Kim Eng
Thailand 51 branches via Maybank Kim Eng
Uzbekistan 1 office via 35% owned Uzbek Leasing
International
Vietnam 2 branches, 8 branches via Maybank Kim
Eng, 145 branches via 20% owned
An Binh Bank

THE FINANCIALS

•
•
•
•
•

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

OVERSEAS MARKETS

OTHER
INFORMATION

Home Markets - Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia
Our three home markets of Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia accounted for 91.2% of total Group PBT in
FY2013. Malaysia is the largest contributor, with 62.1% of Group gross loans originating from this market
and contributing 69.7% to Group PBT. The next biggest contributor to the Group’s bottom line is Singapore
with 14.1% PBT contribution led by a strong commercial and consumer banking franchise. Our third home
market, Indonesia, makes up 7.4% of Group PBT, with its portfolio made up of consumer, SME and global
banking. For 2014, Maybank Group will look to fortify its dominance in profitable segments domestically,
grow returns from our businesses in Indonesia and strengthen our Singapore operations.
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CORPORATE PROFILE, GLOBAL NETWORK
& LOCAL NETWORK

Maybank is among
Cambodia’s top ten
banks by assets. It was
established in Phnom
Penh in 1993 and has
since grown from a
single branch set up
to become a locally
incorporated bank in
2012. Maybank offers
the full range of financial
services ranging from
corporate, commercial
and consumer banking
as well as internet
banking. It operates in
the main city of Phnom
Penh and in most of
the major provinces
in Cambodia with a
network of 16 branches.

OTHER
INFORMATION

THE FINANCIALS

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

OUR
LEADERSHIP

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

BUSINESS
REVIEW

ACHIEVEMENTS

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

AT A GLANCE
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GROUP CORPORATE
STRUCTURE

as at 31 January 2014
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COMMERCIAL
BANKING

100%
100%

Etiqa International Holdings Sdn Bhd
(Investment Holding)

Maybank Islamic Berhad
(Islamic Banking)

69.05% Maybank Ageas Holdings Berhad
(Investment Holding)

98.31% * PT Bank Internasional Indonesia Tbk
(Banking)

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

INSURANCE

100% Etiqa Insurance Berhad

100% PT BII Finance Center

(Life & General Insurance)

( Multi financing)

100% Etiqa Takaful Berhad
(Family & General Takaful)

PT Wahana Ottomitra Multiartha Tbk
(Multi financing)

100%

100% Etiqa Life International
(L) Limited

PT Bank Maybank Syariah Indonesia
(Islamic Banking)

(Offshore Investment-linked Insurance)

99.97% Maybank Philippines Incorporated

100% Etiqa Offshore Insurance
(L) Limited

(Banking)

100%

ABOUT US

62%

(Management Services)

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc

100%

100% Etiqa Overseas Investment
Pte Ltd

Maybank International (L) Limited

(Investment Holding)

(Offshore Banking)

100%

32.5% Pak-Kuwait Takaful
Company Limited

Maybank (PNG) Limited

(Takaful Business)

(Banking)

20%

100% Etiqa Pte Ltd

MCB Bank Limited

(Management Services)

(Banking)

20%

ACHIEVEMENTS

(Banking)

An Binh Commercial Joint Stock Bank
Uzbek Leasing International A.O.
(Leasing)

INVESTMENT
BANKING
Maybank IB Holdings Sdn Bhd

100%

Maybank Asset Management Group Berhad

(Investment Holding)

(Investment Holdings)

100%

100%

Maybank Kim Eng Holdings Limited
100%

Maybank Asset Management Sdn Bhd
(Fund Management)

(Investment Holding)

Maybank Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd

99%

(Dealing in Securities)

83.50%

PT Maybank GMT Asset
Management
(Fund Management)

Maybank Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) Plc
(Dealing in Securities)

100%

100%

Maybank ATR Kim Eng Capital Partners, Inc.

Maybank Islamic Asset Management
Sdn Bhd
(Fund Management)

(Investment Holding)

80%

100%

PT Maybank Kim Eng Securities
Maybank Kim Eng Securities (London)
Limited

100%

(Dealing in Securities)

100%

Maybank Asset Management (Thailand)
Company Limited
(Fund Management)

100%

Maybank Kim Eng Securities USA Inc.
(Dealing in Securities)

100%

Maybank Private Equity Sdn Bhd
(Private Equity Investments)

(Dealing in Securities)

100%

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

100%

OUR
LEADERSHIP

MALAYAN
BANKING
BERHAD

ASSET
MANAGEMENT

Maybank Asset Management Singapore
Pte Ltd
(Fund Management)

Maybank Kim Eng Securities Joint Stock
Company

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

35%

BUSINESS
REVIEW

(Banking)

Kim Eng Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
(Dealing in Securities)

75%

Kim Eng Securities India Private Limited

OTHERS
100%

Maybank Trustee Berhad
(Trustee Services)

(Dealing in Securities)

Other Subsidiaries
100%

Maybank Investment Bank Berhad
(Investment Banking)

100%

100%

Other Subsidiaries

BinaFikir Sdn Bhd
(Consultancy and Advisory)

Other Subsidiaries
Notes:
1.
2.

Maybank Shared Services Sdn Bhd
(IT Shared Services)

Where investment holding companies are omitted, shareholdings are shown as effective interest.
Companies that are not shown include those dormant, under member’s voluntary liquidation, have ceased operations or provide nominee services.

OTHER
INFORMATION

100%
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(Dealing in Securities)
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ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

Lee Tien Poh
Chief Executive Officer

FUNCTION

BUSINESS

Chim Guanghui
Head, Community
Financial Services
(CFS)

Choy Wai Kwong
Head, Global Banking

Khoo Eng Hoe
Head, Channel
Management

Liong Khai Sim
Head, Finance &
Strategy

Qazreen Chan Abdullah
Head, Corporate Affairs &
Services

Responsible for driving
the strategy, growth and
performance of the CFS
businesses which covers the
consumer segment. The core
responsibilities of his teams
include overseeing product
management, formulating
business strategies,
monitoring financial and
business performance,
executing the CFS business as
well as leveraging on crossborder synergies of the CFS
businesses with the Maybank
Group, particularly in the
areas of wealth management,
high net-worth and affluent
banking and card businesses.

Responsible for the
overall strategy, growth
and performance of the
Global Banking businesses
comprising corporate/
commercial/SME banking
and transaction banking.
His teams provide financing
solutions to business
clients as well as managing
their accounts to deliver
innovative, customized endto-end financial solutions.
Also accountable for
successful execution of Global
Banking strategic initiatives
and business transformation
including improving the
Bank’s product-suite and
capabilities.

Responsible for the sales
and distribution network of
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
His teams are responsible
in providing support to the
branches on daily operational
matters as well as sales and
service support. His key
focus and objectives are to
strengthen the distribution
footprint via various touch
points including the branch
network, ATMs and virtual
banking. Core responsibilities
also include growing PBT via
organic growth and branch
expansion, i.e. ensuring
the expanded network will
add value to the growth of
Maybank in Cambodia.

Responsible for the
Bank’s finance functions,
which include overseeing
financial, capital and
funding management. His
teams are also responsible
in developing the Bank’s
long-term strategies, and
oversee the development and
propagation of the Bank’s
strategic objectives. They also
drive productivity and cost
management improvements,
while monitoring the overall
Bank’s business strategy to
ensure the overall profitability
and growth of Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc.

Responsible for ensuring the
highest standards of corporate
governance are upheld and
assisting the Board in discharging
their duties and obligations.
Her teams are also responsible
in elevating the Maybank brand
as well as positioning the Bank
with external stakeholders,
including executing strategy
to ensure all the Bank’s touch
points and products are equated
with best in class service for
enhanced customer loyalty as
well as developing marketing
communications to support
the businesses’ sales activities.
Additionally, her teams also
focus on deepening relationships
with the communities the Bank
serves, to flourish and grow in
sustainable, meaningful ways
together.
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Martin Khew
Head, Support Services

Responsible for the
development and
implementation of all
people aspects in Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc. Her teams are
responsible for implementing
HR policies as well as
ensuring human capital
management is effective
across the Bank. Her teams
key focus and objectives
include establishing
Maybank’s reputation as a
leading employer and an
Employer of Choice, driving
a high performance culture,
improving staff productivity,
driving the Bank’s
transformation through the
people and structure aspects,
and building a sustainable
talent and succession
pipeline.

Responsible for the Bank’s
credit and risk management.
Her teams provide value
to the Bank through
independent and integrated
assessments of compliance,
credit management, market,
operational, liquidity,
credit and enterprise risk
management. Her teams
will remain committed to
enhancing and integrating
risk into the business to
strengthen risk management
effectively across the Bank.
Also focused on enhancing
the overall risk frameworks,
systems and processes,
improving the risk-reward
dynamics across the Bank
and optimizing capital and
liquidity management across
the Bank.

Responsible for the
documentation of loans and
advances prior to release of
funds to borrowers as well as
ensuring close management
of loan repayments as well as
recovery of bad and doubtful
loans. His teams focus on
increasing efficiency, which
include process simplification,
reduced duplication, better
turnaround time and lower
error rates for the internal
team as well as the solicitors.

Responsible for overseeing
the Bank’s overall internal
operations infrastructure to
ensure service integration
and effectiveness. His teams
consist of IT, Property &
Services and Centralised
Operations. The core
responsibilities of his
teams include developing
and enhancing processes
to support all banking
transactions, and ensuring
the smooth daily operations
of these functions.
Specifically for the IT role,
his teams are responsible for
driving the Bank’s technology
initiatives to support the
Bank’s long-term strategic
objectives.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Chou Teong Boon
Head, Credit
Administration & Loan
Management

THE FINANCIALS

Ma. Aurora Ruiz
Head, Credit & Risk
Management

OTHER
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Huot Sunny
Head, Human Resource
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AS ONE OF THE LARGEST
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
IN ASEAN, WE CREATE
OPPORTUNITIES FOR YOU
TO REACH YOUR GOALS.

OPPORTUNITY

TOTAL ASSETS

USD171
BILLION
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EVENT
HIGHLIGHTS
MARCH

JUNE

AUGUST

1 MARCH 2013

5 JUNE 2013

2 AUGUST 2013
Students from the Nanyang Business School made a
Business Study Trip to Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. to
facilitate its students’ learning on the economic and
social developments of Cambodia. This is part of the
University’s goal of equipping these future leaders
of enterprises to understand more about overseas
markets like Cambodia, which is a fast-growing
economy in South East Asia, so that they can better
guide their budding entrepreneurs to invest and do
business here in the future. The visit enabled students
to acquire first-hand knowledge and appreciation of the
business environment and opportunities in Cambodia
by interacting with local entrepreneurs as well as
Malaysian/Singaporean business enterprises.

In conjunction with the Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
Board Off-Site meeting held in Siem Reap, and in line
with our mission of humanizing financial services and
philosophy of “Growth with Responsibility” within our
communities, Maybank Cambodia made a contribution
of USD5,000 to the Kantha Bopha Hospital Siem Reap
to support its mission to provide free medical care for
underprivileged children which have been saving the
lives of thousands of children every month.

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. won THE MOST
OUTSTANDING SOCIAL PERFORMANCE BANK in the
Cambodia Outstanding Banking & MFI Awards 2013.
This was the 1st Cambodia Outstanding Banking &
MFI Awards, organised by IDG Asean. Seven awards
to honour Banks and MFIs for their outstanding
performance in Cambodia were presented at an awards
ceremony held at Phnom Penh.

2 AUGUST 2013

8 JUNE 2013

MAY
8 MAY 2013
11 Cambodian finalists went through a full-day grueling
assessment sessions to eye for a place in the Maybank
Go Ahead Challenge 2013 Grand Finals. Mr. Kuok
Chamroeun and Ms. Heng Chanborasmey emerged as
the final two winners who represented Cambodia in the
Grand Finals that was held in Kuala Lumpur.

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. contributed to the Cambodian
Red Cross in conjunction with its 150th Anniversary of
the World Red Cross and Red Crescent Day, under the
theme “150 years humanitarian action”. The anniversary
celebration was held under the patronage of Samdech
Techo Hun Sen, Prime Minister of the Kingdom of
Cambodia and Lok Chumteav Bun Rany Hunsen,
President of the Cambodian Red Cross.

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. participated in the first
“Mums & Dads Congress 2013”, organized by DKSH
Cambodia and held at the InterContinental Hotel,
Phnom Penh. Maybank, as a sponsor, was present to
be a part of this community development program
aimed to increase awareness of health and maternal
knowledge to newly married couples and the young
population of Cambodia.

SEPTEMBER
4 SEPTEMBER 2013

15 JUNE 2013

18 MAY 2013

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. participated in a “Helmets
for Kids” program in collaboration with the Asia
Injury Prevention Foundation to hand over helmets to
teachers and children from the Prey Sandek Primary
School in Takeo province as part of a Road Safety
Awareness program.

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. participated in a “Helmets
for Kids” program which was part of the MaybankCambodia Biker Club (“CBC”) Charity Bike Convoy and
Road Safety Awareness in collaboration with the Asia
Injury Prevention Foundation. Maybank’s collaboration
with CBC was in support of its existing Corporate
Responsibility initiative, “Maybank Child Sponsorship:
A Way Out of the Dump” program with the People
Improvement Organization.

32 students from the Faculty of Economics and
Muamalat, Universiti Sains Islam Malaysia visited
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. as part of their International
and Academic Visit to create international integration
among its students through sharing and exchange of
knowledge with worldwide business operations.
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NOVEMBER

OCTOBER
12 OCTOBER 2013
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. made contributions to assist
with the Siem Reap Provincial Governor’s office’s
emergency fund donation to save 3,000 families affected
by flood in the Purk District (30km from Siem Reap).
This is in line with our CSR commitment of providing
assistance to communities Maybank serves. Maybank’s
contributions went towards assisting the nation in one of
its worst disaster which had the most impact on people’s
livelihood.

Maybank celebrated the 20th anniversary of its
Cambodia operations, reiterating its commitment
to support the community through its diverse range
of corporate responsibility (CR) initiatives. More
than 500 guests attended a dinner reception where
Maybank reinforced its philosophy of “Growth with
Responsibility” within its communities with a donation
of USD50,000 to the Cambodian Red Cross to aid
victims of disasters as well as to support its healthcare
and humanitarian programmes in the country.

ACHIEVEMENTS
OUR
LEADERSHIP

Employees from Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. painted the
People Improvement Organization (PIO) school as part
of the Maybank Group’s Global CR Day 2013 initiative.
This is a continuation of the long-term partnership
program with PIO for more than a year in sponsoring
the education, health, nutritional and basic needs of 20
children, as well as providing assistance to other students
supported by PIO in other smaller ways, e.g. donations,
student of the month award program, etc.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

5 NOVEMBER 2013

In conjunction with the Maybank Group’s Christmas
Book Donation Drive, Maybank staff spread the
festive joy and cheer to children in the National
Paediatric Hospital by donating books to its
playground and reading area. The intent of the book
donation drive is to help children to cope and adjust
to illness and hospitalization, as well as bring cheer,
provide educational entertainment to the children
as well as encourage the child to love to read. This
activity also encouraged the spirit of giving and
sharing in Maybankers with the less fortunate,
showing that Maybankers indeed are living our
humanising mission towards the community.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

28 SEPTEMBER 2013

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. opened four new branches
in Serey Sophorn, Chroy Changvar, Obek Kaorm and
Kampuchea Krom, extending Maybank’s reach further
into Cambodia provinces as well as in the capital city
Phnom Penh. The branches were declared officially open
by Lok Chumteav Ouk Maly, Deputy Governor, National
Bank of Cambodia at a ceremony held at Serey Sophorn
in the Banteay Meanchey province. In view of the flood
situation that has affected the Serey Sophorn Town
where a total of 1,868 families are affected, Maybank
stepped in to present some contributions to the Serey
Sophorn Town Governor’s Office to assist them in their
flood relief efforts.

THE FINANCIALS

Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. concluded a memorandum
of understanding with Mizuho Bank, Ltd. (“MHBK”)
to work together in a wide range of fields including
commercial and investment banking. The memorandum
of understanding aims to expand MHBK’s support
framework for Japanese corporations entering the
rapidly-growing Cambodian market through the various
financial services of MCP, which has strengths in
commercial banking and corporate finance.
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AWARDS &
RECOGNITION

The management team of Mabybank (Cambodia) Plc.receiving the Most Outstanding Social Performance Bank award.

All the recipients of the Cambodia Banking Awards 2013
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THROUGH OUR
EXTENSIVE NETWORK,
WE ARE PROVIDING
YOU GREATER ACCESS
TO NEW MARKETS.

MARKET

22 MILLION
CUSTOMERS
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FINANCIAL AND STRATEGY REVIEW
“2013 marked another a year of continuing expansion, and is expected to
bring us closer to our transformation journey to be “the first choice financial
partner in Cambodia” by 2015. We made a Net Profit After Tax of USD9.8
million, and achieved a Return on Equity of 14.84%. Our retained earnings
rose substantially to USD15.9 million as dividend was not declared in order to
conserve capital and to accommodate our strategic expansion”.

LIONG KHAI SIM
Head, Finance & Strategy

We are on track to achieve these strategic objectives by 2015:

OUR STRATEGY AND ACHIEVEMENTS
Our transformation journey to be “the first choice financial partner in Cambodia”
is guided by clear strategic objectives. These strategic objectives are:
• To be the employer of choice in Cambodia
• To be recognized as a Bank which provides excellent service
• To be recognized as a provider of innovative and value added product and
services through IT platform
• To achieve high level of Maybank’s brand and visibility in Cambodia
• To contribute USD30 million in Profit Before Tax by 2015

TRANSFORMATION JOURNEY

Strategic Objectives

Achievements in FY 2013

∙ To be an employer of choice in
Cambodia
∙ To be recognized as a Bank which
provides excellent service
∙ To be recognized as a provider of
innovative and value added products
and services through IT platforms
∙ To achieve high level of Maybank’s
brand and visibility in Cambodia
∙ To contribute USD30 million in Profit
Before Tax (PBT) by 2015

Maybank in Cambodia was initially set up as a branch of Malayan Banking
Berhad in 1993 for the purpose of serving the Malaysian and Singaporean
investors in Cambodia. This business model has since been reviewed, and
shifted to serve the Cambodian communities at large; cumulating with the local
incorporation of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. on 2 April 2012.
Embarking on the expansion strategy, our distribution network is being
expanded to many locations in the capital city and province in Cambodia with
the aim to provide better access for customers and communities. One of the
new branches is located in Serey Sophorn where Maybank is the only foreign
bank in the town.

∙ Increase headcounts by 52.35% to 291
∙ More than 90% of the
Maybankers in Cambodia are local
talents
∙ Customer Service Index survey
rated 4.12 out of the highest rating
of 5
∙ Upgraded our core-banking system
∙ Established 4 new branches and
increase ATMs to 26
∙ The first bank to win the “Most
Outstanding Social Performance
Bank” award in the Cambodia
Banking Awards 2013
∙ Increase in PBT by 54.74% to
USD11.76 million in 2013

SUMMARY PERFORMANCE FOR 2013
Key P&L Highlight
Net Interest Income

FY2013

FPE2012

Y-o-Y

18,608,861

11,488,506

62.0%

Net Fee & Commission
Income

2,901,114

1,848,772

56.9%

Net Operating Income

21,557,807

13,349,109

61.5%

Overhead Expenses

10,055,627

5,327,562

88.7%

Provision for loan losses

413,787

614,437

-32.7%

Recovery from loan losses

669,274

193,061

246.7%

Profit Before Tax

11,757,667

7,600,171

54.7%

Net Profit

9,779,510

6,117,349

59.9%
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2.78%

Return on Equity (%)

14.84%

10.90%

Return on Asset (%)

2.12%

1.48%

Fee to Income Ratio (%)

13.46%

13.85%

Cost to Income Ratio (%)

46.64%

39.94%

Loan-to-Deposit Ratio (%)

91.02%

112.21%

3.18%

4.41%

20.89%

22.14%

NPL Ratio (%)

Capital Adequacy
Solvency Ratio

413,741,323

11.6%

Gross Loan and Advances

272,084,107

238,024,945

14.3%

IMPROVED ASSET QUALITY

Net Loan and Advances

261,429,845

227,894,522

14.7%

8,654,711

10,503,188

-17.6%

296,683,606

212,133,150

39.9%

56.64%

55.08%

3.18%

4.41%

50,000,000

50,000,000

Customers deposits
Net Loan to Asset Ratio
NPL to total loan ratio
Share capital

Y-o-Y

59.9%

We managed to increase our total assets by 11.6% to USD461.6 million as at 31
December 2013, contributed mainly by the growth in loans and advances. During
the period, gross loans and advances registered a record satisfactory growth of
14.3% to USD272.1 million when compared to previous year as the Bank remained
focused on quality loans originations.
Customers’ deposits, however, grew significantly by 39.9% to USD296.7 million
as we continued to reap the benefits of our funding capability building and
increasing branch network. Arising from our higher deposits growth, the Bank’s
Loan to Customers Deposit Ratio fell to 91.9%, from 112.2% in FY2012. The surge
in customers’ deposits came from increases in both CASA and Fixed Deposit by
USD49.9 million and USD34.8 million respectively.

Our asset quality continues to improve with NPL ratio standing at just 3.18%
compared to 4.41% in 2012. Recovery task force was established to ensure loan
assets quality was under the control of the management.

2014 OUTLOOK
Our expansion and strategies put in place have helped us to achieve another year
of strong performance; with net profit after tax of USD9.8 million in 2013.
We intend to continue to follow a disciplined approach in our cost management
and improving our asset quality focusing on improving efficiency and productivity.
For FY2014, we are looking to dominate profitable sector while optimizing our
cost. Our targets for FY2014 are as follow:
- Return on Equity 14.4%
- Growth in Gross Loan 35.3%
- Growth in Customer Deposit 36.6%

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Non-performing Loan

FPE2012

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

461,578,371

FY2013

BUSINESS
REVIEW

CAPITAL ADEQUACY STAYED SATISFACTORY

Total Asset

Key Balance Sheet
Highlight

ACHIEVEMENTS

Asset Quality

Solvency ratio is the NBC-guided indicator to measure capital adequacy, and
NBC’s minimum requirement has to be at least 15% to remain adequately
capitalized. During the year, our solvency ratio remained satisfactory at 20.89%,
slightly down from 22.14% in 2012. We always seek to maintain adequate level of
capital to support the underlying risk of the business, to optimize growth and to
withstand capital demands.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ABOUT US

4.03%
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SHAREHOLDERS

FPE2012
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Despite growth in our gross loans, our assets quality remained resilient with
NPL ratio registering a 3.18%, which is lower when compared to 4.41% in FY2012. In
2013, the write-back in specific loans provisions was offset partly by an increase in
collective allowance.

Net Interest Margin to Total Asset (%)

FY2013

THE FINANCIALS

Better loans recovery effort also contributed to an increase in recovery from loan
losses by 246.7% to USD669, 274. The higher overhead expenses by 88.7% (if
based on an annualized FY2012, the increase is 41.56%) grew in tandem with our
planned expansion plan during the year. This came mainly from Personnel costs as
we continued with our focus on capability building. An additional 100 headcounts
was recruited making a total of 291 headcounts in 2013; from just 191 in FY2012.
The other major overheads components like establishment cost, depreciation
expenses, and marketing expenses had also correspondingly gone up. Reflecting
our capability building stage and expansion plan, our Cost-to-Income Ratio increased
to 46.6%; up from 39.9% in 2012.

KEY RATIO HIGHLIGHT

OTHER
INFORMATION

We continued to deliver an acceptable performance in 2013, with PBT and Net
Profit at USD11.8 million and USD9.8 million respectively. The growth in the net
operating income by 61.5% (if based on an annualized FY2012, the increase is 21.1%)
came mainly from the increase in net net interest income by 62.0% (if based on
an annualized FY2012, the increase is 21.5%) emanating from loans growth, and
improved net interest margin. In the former, our gross loans grew moderately by
14.3% on year on year. This reflects our cautious stance in originating quality loans,
while Net interest margin improved to 4.03% from previous year at 2.78%. The
other contribution came from Net Fee & Commission Income which was higher
by 56.9% (if based on an annualized FY2012, the increase is 17.7%) mainly from
remittance income, service charges and other fee income.
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COMMUNITY FINANCIAL SERVICES /
CHANNEL MANAGEMENT
“2013 turned out to be another challenging year for banking with intensifying
competition and chronic shortage of talents. Despite these headwinds, CFS
managed to grow both retail deposit and loan above industry levels, testifying
to the success in living up to our vision of humanising financial services in
Cambodia. We are now very well positioned to deliver greater value and
convenience to our customers in 2014”.

CHIM GUANGHUI
Head, Community Financial Services (CFS)

“Channel Management continues with its key role in 2013 to expand the Bank’s
distribution network as well as to manage and support branches business,
operational efficiency and effectiveness”.

KHOO ENG HOE
Head, Channel Management (CM)

KEY HIGHLIGHTS AND MILESTONES IN 2013
Community Financial Services (CFS) encompasses products and services in the consumer and retail SME space, and we are beginning to gain traction in our CFS
strategic initiatives. Our consumer lending increased by 30%, of which over 92% was contributed by strong growth in Retail SME, with Retail SME business grew by 60%
year on year. Our retail deposit base continued to expand with a 16% increase, which was slightly higher than the industry average of 12.3%. Our customer base grew by
40% versus 2012.
Channel Management (CM) continues with its key role in 2013 to expand the Bank’s distribution network as well as to manage and support branches business,
operational efficiency and effectiveness.
We completed the opening of four new branches and the rollout of six off-site ATMs to continue to reach out to a wider community and fulfill the banking needs of our
existing and new customers. Our expansion is timely to build our customers base and market share as the country economy continues to experience robust growth. The
expansion will further strengthen our presence, commitment and brand visibility.
We continue to grow our internet banking business, with our M2U recording a good achievement with a total registration 2,792 in 2013, and transactional value of
USD14.2Million. We have signed up payee corporations to enable bill payments via M2U as another way to provide convenience to our customers. We have also
successfully grew our cash management services with the acquiring of major accounts, with more in the pipeline.
2013 also saw the set up of a Sales Management team that will focus on building key sales management foundation to drive sales focus and productivity through robust
sales weekly dashboard, tracker, creating customer advisory for each branch, daily sales huddle, branch classification, complaint & compliment tracking, incentive
programs, basic customer call program and providing sales skill foundation training to all sales staff.
The Sales Management team in collaboration with Corporate Affairs & Services has also rolled out a Customer Service Program to all branch staff to reinforce the key
basic service standard as well as introducing the Customer Service Charter.
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Both our CFS and CM teams will continue to focus on building capabilities, with CFS putting emphasis on people and infrastructure to deliver new products and services
capabilities for 2014 and beyond in the areas of cards, retail lending, premier wealth, and multi channels. While CM is also focusing on building work force capabilities,
operations and productivity improvement by continuously providing guidance, coaching and trainings to the branch staff.

2014 OUTLOOK
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SHAREHOLDERS
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Other exciting milestones will be the launch of Premier Wealth Banking, the cards acquiring and issuing business, the Regional Wealth Management program, improved
Internet Banking capabilities, as well as streamlined products and services to widen financial access to aspiring home owners and the Retail SME of the economy.

ABOUT US

2014 will be a year full of milestones for both CFS and CM. Our branch network will reach 21 covering all the major population and economic centers of Cambodia,
putting us at or above parity with our peer competitors. We will be the only regional bank that offers different branch configurations to cater to the diverse needs of
customers, ranging from standard to sales kiosk, villa type branch, and service centers. These initiatives will deepen our roots and commitment at the heart of the
community.

Our teams of staff serving you from our newly-opened four branches in Serey Sophorn, Chroy Changvar,
Obek Kaorm and Kampuchea Krom

OTHER
INFORMATION

THE FINANCIALS

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

OUR
LEADERSHIP

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Sales Management, in collaboration with the business units as well as Corporate Affairs & Services teams will continue to introduce campaigns to drive sales in both
lending and non lending products including other fee based income. Collaboration with the Corporate Affairs & Services team to execute more initiatives and training to
enhance customer service will also be a key focus.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

We have also planned to build more stringent and robust sales management framework to achieve higher sales productivity and strengthen sales capability that is
focused on customer relationship and consultation. These would include initiatives such as setting clear sales target for all roles, putting in place Ranking and Tracker
tool, robust sales awards, Customer Relationship Management (CRM) program, Sales Skill Development framework and training as well as establishing partnership
programs with key retail outlets, dealers and universities.

ACHIEVEMENTS

The setting up a Virtual Banking team to focus on M2U features enhancement, M2U Biz, Mobile Banking and Multi Channel products and services is also in the pipeline.
Efforts will be increased to continue improving staff efficiency and effectiveness through the set up ICBA learning kiosk and regular training
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GLOBAL
BANKING
“Our strategy is to recruit major players with established market reputation to
be our business partners with Maybank Cambodia and for Maybank Cambodia
to be their first priority when it comes to providing financial business solutions
specifically tailored for their needs”.

CHOY WAI KWONG
Head, Global Banking

2013 PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Global Banking covers the Corporate, Commercial and SME business segments
as well as Transaction Banking business. Our Global Banking business model is
based on a customer centric approach with the development of a customized
financial solution package for each key client. We have adopted a Client Coverage
and Client Relations business model with Client Coverage being the key point
of contact for all new clients while Client Relations will grow and manage our
existing business portfolio.
In 2013, our Trade Finance team expanded our reach regionally by successfully
establishing relationships with major trading partners in Vietnam and Thailand to
secure wider acceptance of trade instruments issued by Maybank Cambodia for
their clients and/or dealers in Cambodia.
We have also expanded our market reach and further strengthen our footprint in
Cambodia by establishing relationships with major local Cambodian corporate
and commercial clients and major users of trade facility in Cambodia. Our
strategy is to recruit major players with established market reputation to be
our business partners with Maybank Cambodia and for Maybank Cambodia to
be their first priority when it comes to providing financial business solutions
specifically tailored for their needs.
On 5 September 2013, we signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Mizuho
Bank Representative Office in Cambodia and this cooperation has seen several
fruitful deals for both Maybank and Mizuho Bank catering to the banking needs of
Japanese investors coming to Cambodia.

2014 OUTLOOK
Our Priorities in 2014 will include the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•

Continue to grow and develop our trade finance business
Launch new trade finance product to cater for open account
transactions
Develop and launch Regional Cash Management System and Regional
Credit Lending
Deepen and strengthen relationship with existing high value clients
Establish relationship with market leaders and industry captains of
targeted industries/sectors in Cambodia
Leverage on our regional presence to secure new business for the
Bank for corporate, commercial and also consumer segments and for
Transaction Banking products especially Cash Management.
To provide overall end-to-end business and financing solutions for
Maybank clients with regional presence where Maybank is also
present.
To develop new business solutions for our Cambodian clients with our
business partners from various parts of the world, namely Singapore,
Japan and France.

The banking environment in Cambodia remains competitive in 2014 with
a total of 35 commercial banks in Cambodia. Strengthening relationships
with existing clients remains a major factor in this competitive
environment while pursuing new business from targeted major clients.
Housekeeping and vigilant review of our business portfolio are also key
factors to ensure a healthy business portfolio for Maybank Cambodia.
Our priorities for 2014 will be our key success factors to deliver our
strategic initiatives as planned and in line with our long term goal to
be the Bank of first choice and business partner to our valued clients in
Cambodia and for Maybank Cambodia to be the provider of innovative
and relevant end-to-end financial solutions to our clients.

CORPORATE AFFAIRS &
SERVICES

Corporate responsibility continue to be a key commitment where the focus is to
create a significant difference to the communities we serve. We continued our
second year of involvement with the Maybank Child Sponsorship: A Way Out of
the Dump initiative in collaboration with the People Improvement Organization.
We brought employee volunteerism to another level when our employees
demonstrated exemplary efforts in spending time with the Maybank-sponsored

The role of Service Management is to strategically support the Bank’s service
aspiration. The focus of the team is to give the required support to ensure that
all the Bank’s touch points and products are equated with superior service
experience for enhanced customer loyalty. In collaboration with Channel
Management, a number of service initiatives had been rolled out in 2013. This
had included an intensive customer service training for all levels of staff at the
Branches to reinforce the Maybank service standards. A customer service charter
was also rolled out to drive service reliability and consistency across all Maybank
branches.
Moving forward, for 2014, the Service Management team will continue to
collaborate with the Channel Management team to roll out programs to enable
delivery of consistent best-in-class customer service experience. The programs,
would include efforts to strengthen service delivery via continuous learning,
enhance the feedback management and problem resolution mechanism, as well
as to conduct a more robust customer engagement survey to gauge the extent to
which we are aligned and engaged with our customers, among others. The focus
would be to further drive consistent and sustainable customer excellence.

BUSINESS
REVIEW
OUR
LEADERSHIP

In 2013, the team supported various key business initiatives that had helped
raised our brand profile and achieved increased top-of-mind position in
Cambodia. This had included the opening of four branches, product and
marketing campaigns as well as the 20th year Anniversary celebration of
Maybank in Cambodia. Many of these initiatives are key to our effort to refresh
the Maybank brand in Cambodia as well as better align our brand strategy with
our business vision. In line with our refreshed vision post local incorporation,
we have begin to embark on initiatives that will enable us to leverage more
effectively on Maybank’s brand equity through a more consistent and dynamic
communication of our brand proposition to all our stakeholders in Cambodia. Our
focus is to rejuvenate the Maybank brand so as to boost its relevance and appeal
to both existing and new customers. We believe these efforts will contribute
towards building more enduring customer relationships. In 2014, we will embark
on a new branding proposition “Bridging Worlds in Asia” in all our corporate
communications and branding campaigns, which will further strengthen our
Maybank’s strength of humanising financial services.

SERVICE MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS & BRAND MANAGEMENT

A full report on Corporate Responsibility is contained in Pages 46-47 of this
Annual Report.

THE FINANCIALS

In upholding our high standards of corporate governance, we continue to
strengthen our governance model by being consistent, transparent and credible
in our governance standards and practices. We stayed committed to achieving
the highest standards of business integrity, ethics and professionalism across
all the Bank’s activities. In this respect, we stay guided by the principles set out
in the National Bank of Cambodia’s Prakas on Corporate Governance, as well as
adhering to the Group’s corporate governance standards and practices. In 2013,
the operationalistion of the corporate governance framework was put to full
force subsequent to its establishment during the local incorporation process.
Moving forward, the focus will continue to be ensuring that the highest standards
in corporate governance are upheld, with a view to continuously enhance
stakeholder value, increase investor confidence, establish customer trust and
build a competitive organization.

children, serving as role models for the children to keep them motivated, focused
and excited about education and the opportunities that it offers. We remained
steadfast in Maybank’s philosophy of sustainability in CR initiatives. This project
had showcased exactly how a long-term view and approach had brought about
invaluable benefits, both to the community and Maybank. It has given an
opportunity to Maybankers to live the values of “giving back” and experience the
beauty of volunteerism. It had reinforced the T.I.G.E.R. Values in all our employees.
For the community, the impact is a long-lasting one that will be entrenched in
the children, providing them a good foundation for their lives as they strive to be
successful individuals in the society.

RECOGNITION
In 2013, Maybank was awarded the Most Outstanding Social Performance Bank
in the Cambodia Banking Awards 2013. This bears testimony to the difference we
make to the communities we serve in Cambodia, and we aim to continue with our
emphasis to reach out to communities in need.

OTHER
INFORMATION

CORPORATE & LEGAL SERVICES

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

QAZREEN CHAN ABDULLAH
Head, Corporate Affairs & Services / Corporate Secretary

ACHIEVEMENTS

ABOUT US

“We continue to strengthen our governance standards and practices, raise
our brand profile to achieve increase top-of-mind position in Cambodia,
strategically support the Bank’s service aspiration as well as deepening
our relationships with the communities we serve, to flourish and grow in
sustainable, meaningful ways together.”

AT A GLANCE
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HUMAN
RESOURCE
“We continue to focus on efforts to link and adapt to our business needs
and challenges in our endeavor to bring about improvements in people
engagement, raising productivity levels and sustained financial performance
that will support the achievement of our aspirations”.

HUOT SUNNY
Head, Human Resource

SUSTAINING TALENT AND LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

NURTURING CUTLURE & ENGAGEMENT LEVELS

A critical element of a successful robust talent management framework is
sustaining a reliable and consistent internal source of talents to assume
leadership roles as they become available. Our talent pipeline programs target
different pools of talents from junior to senior leaders. In 2013, we put in place a
framework which incorporated a succession planning tool to help us identify the
best qualified individuals for the required position. We create different forums to
review our talents via the multi-level talent review platforms, namely the Sector
Talent Review, Country Talent Review and Group Talent Review as well as to
discover talents across the Group and to ensure that we are better in identifying
the right staff for the right roles or job fit. Our target to grow our own internal
talents using a 80:20 ratio was also evident with many key positions being filled
by employees who grew the ranks with Maybank.

Our core values, T.I.G.E.R. (Teamwork, Integrity, Growth, Excellence & Efficiency,
Relationship Building) are our essential guiding principles for all our actions and
key driver to engage our employees in delivering Maybank’s humanising mission.

We participated in the 2nd Maybank Go Ahead Challenge involving participants
from 10 countries with 13 nationalities for an international business case
competition. It garnered close to 300 applicants from Cambodia. This year, we
also introduced a new award offering the Top Winner with a two weeks internship
at Maybank New York and USD1,000. We now have three finalists who have
joined Maybank Cambodia under the Global Management Apprentice Program.

Our 2013 Employee Engagement Survey recorded an employee engagement level
of 79%, at par with the Towers Watson Cambodia High Performance Companies
Norm. We are looking to improve our employee satisfaction level while improving
staff productivity.
As part of our continuous effort in promoting our H.O.T culture (Honest, Open
and Trust), we use a variety of platforms for employees to voice out concerns or
feedback for improvement such as the annual Employee Engagement Survey, CEO
Dialogue Session, Staff Townhall and One2One conversations.
To further internalize the core values and transformation agenda, the Group
organized a My T.I.G.E.R. Journey Video Photo Competition, and invited
Maybankers group-wide to share inspiring stories of their transformation journey
with Maybank. Our employees from Maybank Cambodia participated to show
how our T.I.G.E.R. values have impacted their lives and business, and managed to
win one of the weekly prizes.

PERFORMANCE LINKED REWARDS STRATEGY
With continuous focus on providing the right remuneration, benefits, career
development and progression opportunities, we made good progress in 2013 with
a total review of our salary structure and benefits program for our staff. In doing
so, we stayed guided with a holistic approach in our compensation structure
that recognizes employees through monetary and non-monetary rewards.
We advocate a ‘Pay for Performance’ culture, where high performance is duly
rewarded. Exemplary performance is also recognized via platforms such as best
employee/team awards. Our top performing staff for 2013 were rewarded with an
Oversea Study Trip, as well as other forms of in-kind gifts or cash awards.

Maybank GO Ahead Challenge.

Today, our rewards management implementation has shifted from being HR-led to
Line Manager-led, empowering Line Managers in the total rewards management
decision making. This is reflected in our Performance Management system where
meritocracy is applied to all performance management process and rewards are
strongly linked to individual performance against goals aligned with the Bank and
Group.
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Lee Tien Poh, CEO, with the winners of the MCP Awards Program 2013 who were awarded with an Oversea
Study Trip.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

LEARNING & SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

IMPROVING EFFICIENCY, FUNCTIONS AND TOOLS

OTHER
INFORMATION

THE FINANCIALS

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

In 2013, we launched our Human Resource Management System (SAP) via the
myHR2u employee portal, to regionalize our employee information platform
which facilitated our human resource automation processes aiming at improving
human resource turnaround time. Our employees now have access to a system
which provides a single source for real-time employee information and a range of
functional and decision-making capabilities, freeing employees to focus on quality
of planning rather than administrative process.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Staff participating in the Maybank Global CR Day 2013.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

We have continued with our focus and resources in strengthening employee
competencies in areas that support the Bank’s strategy and development
plans. Our development interventions are guided by 70:20:10 which mean
70% of our leaning approach is based on experiential development, 20% on
relationship based and another 10% based on formal learning. We emphasise on
continuous collaboration with the business or support sectors to develop and
implement suitable learning roadmap for our employees. Some of these included
partnerships with Global Banking and CFS to roll out a credit certification
program, with Corporate Affairs & Services and Channel Management to enhance
service excellence, as well with Channel Management to impart sales skills.

ABOUT US
ACHIEVEMENTS

The active involvement of our employees in our Corporate Responsibility
(CR) initiatives in 2013 has demonstrated that employee volunteerism is well
entrenched within the Bank. Our employees spent over 1,000 volunteer hours,
with the team taking turns to spend time with the children under our Maybank
Child Sponsorship: A Way Out of the Dump initiative, thus reinforcing our
humanising mission to communities we serve. The Maybank Global CR Day was
held on 28 September 2013 with participation by over 90% of our employees.
Our commitment in driving CR and employee volunteerism earned us the Most
Outstanding Social Performance Bank award in the Cambodia Banking Awards
2013.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

IMPACTFUL EMPLOYEE VOLUNTEERISM

Our staff helping out at a Career Forum.
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SUPPORT SERVICES / CREDIT
ADMINISTRATION & LOAN MANAGEMENT
“Our main focus is to support our
businesses in achieving their growth
aspirations with optimized use of
technology, improved turnaround
time of operations and service as well
as operational excellence in a cost
efficient manner. We continue to invest
in people and technology to support the
competitive and innovative financial
solutions and products offering to our
stakeholders and customers”.
MARTIN KHEW HIN NGEAN

CHOU TEONG BOON

Head, Support Services

Head, Credit Administration & Loan Management

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)
With the focus on establishment of local capabilities and with the innovative
technology rollout in 2012, such as M2U Internet Banking and TradeConnex, we
have begun the journey in 2013 with higher expectations on IT deliverables and
continue to assist the Bank to achieve its aspirations by sustaining the growth
momentum, such as branch and ATM expansion plan.
We continue to invest in people and technology to support the competitive and
innovative financial solutions and products offering to our stakeholders and
customers.
An Information Technology Road Map of three years (2013 – 2015) has been
established to give our commitment and assurance of potential IT projects and IT
initiatives deliverables that would strengthen our financial presence in Cambodia
as well regionally, which is aligned with our aspiration and vision to be a Regional
Financial Services Leader as well as our mission in humanising financial services
across Asia.
Whether it is local or international regulatory requirements, we have complied
with the standard requirements. In particular, the local regulatory requirement for
STR (Suspicious Transaction Report) / CTR (Cash Transaction Report) reporting
requirements have been successfully enhanced and implemented in our Core
Banking System, including compliance to the requirement for Disaster Recovery
(DR) for all critical application systems.
We were the first overseas unit/country (excluding Bank Internasional Indonesia)
within the Maybank Group to have successfully performed DR Live exercise
during weekday for one whole day (on 21 June 2013), based on local disaster
scenario that covered our three critical application systems, namely the Core
Banking, ATM (Global ATM) and Internet Banking (m2u) involving participation
of all our 12 branches and 17 ATMs (of which 14 ATMs are located on-site and
3 ATMs are located off-site). This has reaffirmed our readiness for recovery or
continuation of IT on technology systems that support the business functions.

In July 2013, TradeConnex was extended to the customer base segment. Within
the same month, we have also upgraded our Data Center Infrastructure. Our
primary local network infrastructure was also upgraded to support our branches
and ATM expansion.
With the competitive financial market in Cambodia, we extended our ATM
services on 24-hour basis based on strategic locations identified. On August
2013, we implemented the 24 hour service for our ATM at the Phnom Penh Main
Branch, Kramoun Sar. We continued the 24-hour ATM service rollout to the
NagaWorld Resort, a high tourist attraction location.
A remarkable historical event also took place in September 2013, with our IT Core
Banking system upgraded to support business growth. This upgrade was timely
to provide technological advancements to support the Bank in achieving its
aspirations.
Aligned with our vision and aspiration to be a financial services leader in
Cambodia, our focus is to be the most dynamic and reliable shop to our Business
and Support Partners with a mission to provide and enhance IT platforms that
would enable our Business and Support Partners to quickly deploy innovative and
value-added products and services to the Cambodia market. With this in place,
the business can achieve their aspirations via technology enablement.
Moving forward, we will continue to harness technological advancements to bring
convenience and a wider range of services to customers to ensure that they are
able to enjoy the convenience of banking on-the-go, anytime they want, anywhere
in the world.

Rollout of an off-site ATM at the Siem Reap International Airport
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RECOGNITION

Operations is the Back Office processing unit for backroom branch operations,
self service terminals operations support, collateral management system, inward
& outward funds transfers, credit administration, loan management as well as
property and security.

With concerted effort and continuous commitment from our Centralized
Operation team in providing fast and efficient services consistently in handling
foreign remittances, we had again won the Straight Through Processing (STP)
Award from the Citi Correspondent Banking partner for excellent performance
in 2012 and 2013 consecutively. This award is reserved for clients who achieved
MT103 STP rate of 95% or higher and MT202 STP rate 98% or higher. The award
recognizes the high level of professionalism and quality of Maybank’s remittance
team in training and monitoring the quality of instructions sent through Citi.

We continued to expand our ATM network regionally across Asia. Cambodia was
the first country to roll out the Regional ATM, whereby Maybank customers can
enjoy cash withdrawals at any ATM in Cambodia, Malaysia, Singapore, Brunei,
Philippines, Papua New Guinea, Vietnam, Laos and London without any additional
fees / charges.

ABOUT US

OPERATIONS

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS
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Our Credit Administration & Loan Management continued to focus its goal on
increased efficiency, which included process simplification, reduced duplication,
better turnaround time and lower error rates for the internal team and the
solicitors.

OTHER
INFORMATION

With the introduction of TradeConnex, the Trade Operations Centre (TOC) in
Malaysia has become the processing centre for our trading applications, and we
are one of the Overseas Units supported by TOC besides Philippines, Brunei,
Vietnam and Shanghai. By centralizing the administrative function at TOC, where
certified personnel handle the document-checking, our Trade Finance Centre can
focus on driving sales and revenue for the Bank. Incoming and outgoing banking
transaction is processed via the SWIFT network.

ACHIEVEMENTS

We successfully opened 16 branches and operationalised 26 ATMs within
Cambodia, making it one of the Maybank Overseas Units that is fast growing
besides Maybank Singapore, Maybank Philippines and Bank Internasional
Indonesia.
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WITH THE
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ACROSS ASIA.

COMMUNITY

119,000
TOTAL VOLUNTEER HOURS
COMMUNITY

ENVIRONMENT

WORKPLACE

MARKETPLACE

OTHER
INFORMATION

THE FINANCIALS

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

OUR
LEADERSHIP

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

BUSINESS
REVIEW

ACHIEVEMENTS

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

AT A GLANCE

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

45

46

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY
As the finance sector plays a major role in fuelling economic growth both nationally and regionally, there is an ever-increasing need to address the issue of sustainability.
Sustainability has been fundamental to Maybank ever since our foundation – whether in our business performance, our products and services or our engagement with
our stakeholders. Similarly, corporate responsibility (CR) is integral to the way we do business. For more than 50 years, we have practiced “Putting People First” – be they
our customers, investors, staff, partners or communities.
From the outset, we have regarded good corporate citizenship as essential to our growth trajectory. Today – as one of the leading financial services group in Asia – we
recognize that it is for us to assume a leadership role as a responsible corporate citizen.
This conviction has found its embodiment in our mission to humanize financial services across Asia.

COMMUNITY
The Bank with a Heart

Maybank has a long history of being at heart of the community. Right from
the start, Maybank in Malaysia had aimed to be a bank for all, and Maybank
branches have become a nucleus of many small towns throughout the
country. In line with our humanizing mission, we are now extending this
community-based approach across the region, including Cambodia.
In 2013, we made a significant ‘impact investments’ across Southeast Asia – initiatives aimed not just at boosting access to financial services for every level of society,
but at promoting genuine and enduring transformation.
In Cambodia, our community work targets deserving group of beneficiaries as we attempt to set a new standard for CR activities that goes beyond pure philanthropy to
deliver meaningful programs with lasting outcomes. Our social investments embrace education, community empowerment, as well as health and safety; and as guided
by the principle of the Maybank Foundation, many of our programs were driven by employee volunteerism.

Cheah Teik Seng, Chairman and Lee Tien Poh, CEO handing over a donation of USD50,000 to H.E. Phum Chantinie, Secretary General of the Cambodian Red Cross

EDUCATION
Promoting Excellence
A Way Out of the Dump
We are committed to supporting social and economic development through
education, especially for academically excellent students from underprivileged
families. We continued with our “A Way Out of the Dump” project in collaboration
with the People Improvement Organisation to ensure access to education for the
underprivileged children who came from families who used to work at dumpsites
to make ends meet. The project had continued in 2013 with an extensive program
that gave opportunity for Maybank employees to volunteer their time for
weekend sessions with the sponsored children as a way to motivate the children
to pursue education as a means to end the vicious cycle of poverty.

The continuation of this project was made possible with the RM50,000 grant
received from the Maybank Group Foundation for winning the Maybank Group
Best Overall CR Initiative. The initiative will continue to be judged on the
sustainable impact it made. The best implemented projects in each category
will be given extra funds to further develop the project. In 2013, Maybank was
further recognized in the Cambodia Banking Awards 2013 by winning the Most
Outstanding Social Performance Bank award. Maybank Cambodia’s award
achievement is on page 30.
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HEALTH & SAFETY
Saving Lives
Kantha Bopha Children Hospitals
Over the years, we have been involved in supporting public healthcare
development, echoing our commitment to humanizing financial services. Our
aim is to help communities gain access to medical services and increase their
overall quality of lifestyle. In 2013, in conjunction with our Board Off-Site Meeting
held in Siem Reap, we contributed USD5,000 to the Kantha Bopha Children
Hospitals’ during the Founder Dr Beat Richner “Beatocello” fund raising concert
performance at the Jayavarman VII Hospital, Siem Reap.

Our commitment to humanizing
financial services across Asia is based
on four key principles: providing
people with access to funding; offering
fair terms and pricing; advising
customers based on their needs; and
being at the heart of the community.
During the year, we continued to open new branches at strategic locations,
including at a provincial town, Serey Sophorn, where no other foreign
international Banks were present. This was testament to us living our mission of
humanizing financial services across Asia. In establishing this special provincial
branch, we have been able to expand to under-served provincial areas thus able to
offer fair terms and pricing for customers, provide people with convenient access
to financing as well as serve the community by giving them a broader range of
financial product and service options. This initiative had also helped us to expand
Maybank’s footprint in Cambodia especially in the provincial areas. It had also
reinforced Maybank’s long term commitment in Cambodia.
Our commitment to being at the heart of the community was further amplified
when we made contributions to the Serey Sophorn town to support its flood relief
program during our official branch opening ceremony.

Road Safety
We collaborated with the Cambodia Biker Club and the Asia Injury Prevention
Foundation (AIP) in a “Maybank Charity Bike Convoy and Road Safety Awareness”
program. This was an extension of the “A Way Out of the Dump” project where
collaborations with suitable organizations were pursued to provide opportunities
for the sponsored children to mingle with the community and expose them
to insights they never had the opportunity to. Through this collaboration, we
also contributed to the “Helmets for Kids” program in partnership with the AIP
to implement school-based helmet use and traffic safety education programs
to reduce the pervasive and devastating rate of road traffic crash injuries and
fatalities in developing countries.

ABOUT US
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Kantha Bopha Children’s Hospitals provide free healthcare to 85% of
Cambodia’s children and operate at full capacity, matching international
standards of healthcare. All medical services are free of charge since the families
are simply too poor to even make a small contribution towards these medical
costs. The hospitals are funded mainly through private donations.

ACHIEVEMENTS

We continued to support the Cambodian Red Cross (CRC), the largest
humanitarian organization in Cambodia, and officially recognized by the Royal
Government of Cambodia as an auxiliary to the public authorities in humanitarian
services to relieve the sufferings of the most vulnerable. In conjunction with the
20th Anniversary celebration of Maybank in Cambodia, we made a contribution
of USD50,000 to the CRC towards assisting CRC in delivering a multitude of
programs including health care, promotion of the Movement’s fundamental
principles and humanitarian values as well as disaster response and preparedness
activities throughout the country.

Humanising Financial Services across Asia

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Humanitarian

MARKETPLACE

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Through the Maybank Group annual flagship Cahaya Kasih (Ray of Love) program,
we had continued with the “A Way Out of the Dump” project we initiated in
2012, which saw a commendable showcase of employee volunteerism where
Maybank employees were taking turns to spend time with the sponsored children
almost every weekend. This had benefited both the beneficiaries as well as the
Maybankers as both became responsible community members empowered to
contribute in each own’s ways to the development of the country and community.

Maybank Charity Bike Convoy and Road Safety Awareness, in collaboration with the
Cambodia Biker Club and Asia Injury Prevention

THE FINANCIALS

Our humanizing mission is something that our people have very much taken to
heart. In 2013 alone, more than 200 Maybankers in Cambodia donated over 1,000
hours of their own time to take part in voluntary community programs (more than
23,000 Maybankers and over 119,000 voluntary hours at the total Group level).

For Information about Maybank’s CR policies and initiatives for the workplace,
refer to Human Resource section on page 40.

OTHER
INFORMATION

Employee Volunteerism

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Providing Opportunity

Stimulating Development
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WORKPLACE
COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT

WITH TALENTED
INDIVIDUALS IN
MAYBANK, WE ARE
ABLE TO NURTURE
THE POTENTIAL THAT
EXISTS WITHIN YOU.

PEOPLE

,
47
000
MAYBANKERS
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
from left to right:

Pollie Sim, Hamirullah Boorhan, Spencer Lee, Lee Tien Poh, Cheah Teik Seng, Datuk R. Karunakaran,
Qazreen Chan Abdullah, Daeng Hafez
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

CHEAH TEIK SENG
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Chairman)
•
•

60 years of age - Malaysian
Bachelor of Science, University of Manchester, UK; Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales

LEE TIEN POH
NON-INDEPENDENT EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
•
•

51 years of age - Malaysian
Bachelor of Mathematics, University of Malaya; Member of the Malaysian Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Malaysian Institute of Accountants

Cheah Teik Seng was appointed as a Director and Chairman of Maybank (Cambodia)
Plc., which was locally incorporated on 2 April 2012 (received National Bank of
Cambodia’s approval on 23 March 2012).

Lee Tien Poh was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and Non-Independent
Executive Director of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. on 2 May 2012. He serves as
Chairman of the Executive Committee.

As a federal government Public Services Department scholarship holder, he served
in the civil service in the early ‘80s. After leaving government service, he took on
various roles in the banking and financial services industry both locally as well
as in London, Hong Kong and Singapore. He held positions in Public Bank, Chase
Manhattan Bank, Merrill Lynch, Goldman Sachs, UBS, and in BNP Paribas, holding
the position of Managing Director for a tenure of nine years. He was appointed as
CEO-designate of ECM Libra Avenue Group in 2006. He is currently a Director and
partner of Aktis Capital Singapore Pte Ltd.

He was a Maybank Graduate Trainee, and joined the Bank in 1988. He has 25 years
of experience in banking, having worked in branches as well as in Head Office.
He held senior management positions as Director/Head of Services in Maybank
Philippines Inc. and Head International Strategy & Operations, Maybank Group.
Prior to his appointment as the Chief Executive Officer of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.,
he served as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director.

His current directorships in companies within the Maybank Group include as
Chairman of Maybank Kim Eng Holdings Ltd and Maybank Agro Fund Sdn Bhd
as well as Director of Maybank Investment Bank Berhad and Maybank Kim Eng
Securities (Thailand) Plc.
Cheah Teik Seng sits on the boards of other listed companies such as Drillsearch
Energy Limited in Australia and MJIC Investments Corp. in the Philippines. He also
sits as director of various private equity companies in Hong Kong and China.
He attended all five Board meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2013.
Cheah Teik Seng has no family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. He has no conflict of interest with
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. and has never been charged for any offence.

His current directorships in companies within the Maybank Group include as
Director of Anh Bink Bank, Vietnam and the Chairman of its Risk Management
Committee.
He is also an EXCO member (Treasurer) in the Association of Banks in Cambodia.
He attended all five Board meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2013.
Lee Tien Poh has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder
of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. He has no conflict of interest with Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc. and has never been charged for any offence.
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SPENCER LEE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DATUK KAROWNAKARAN @ KARUNAKARAN A/L RAMASAMY
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

•
•

•
•

63 years of age - Malaysian
Bachelor of Economics (Accounting) Hons, University of Malaya, Malaysia; Industrial
Project Planning Course, University of Bradford, UK
BUSINESS
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62 years of age - Malaysian
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; Member of
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants
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He attended all five Board meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2013.
Spencer Lee has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder
of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. He has no conflict of interest with Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc. and has never been charged for any offence.

Datuk Karunakaran also sits on the boards of Integrated Logistics Berhad, Chemical
Company of Malaysia Berhad, IOI Corporation Berhad and Bursa Malaysia Berhad.
He is also a director of several private limited companies.
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RESPONSIBILITY
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His current directorships in companies within the Maybank Group include as
Director of Maybank Investment Bank Berhad, Maybank Asset Management Group
Berhad (formerly known as Aseamlease Berhad), Etiqa Insurance Berhad and
Maybank Agro Fund Sdn Bhd

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

His current directorship in companies within the Maybank Group include as
Commissioner of PT Bank Internasional Indonesia Tbk. He also sits in the Maybank
Foundation Board of Trustees.

Datuk Karunakaran joined the Malaysian Industrial Development Authority (MIDA)
in August 1972 and served in various positions including Deputy Director, Director,
Deputy Director General and Director General. He also served as the Director of
MIDA Singapore, Cologne (Germany) and London (England). Having served MIDA
for about 36 years, Datuk Karunakaran retired as the Director General of MIDA in
June 2008, a position he held for about four years. During Datuk Karunakaran’s
service with MIDA, he was responsible for the promotion and coordination of
the development of the manufacturing and services sector in Malaysia including
promoting domestic and foreign investment in Malaysia.

He attended all five Board meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2013.
Datuk Karunakaran has no family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. He has no conflict of interest with
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. and has never been charged for any offence.

THE FINANCIALS

Spencer Lee joined the Maybank Group in 1975 and served the Group in various
capacities and positions including as Senior Executive Vice President and Head
of International Business, Senior Executive Vice President and Head of Consumer
Banking and Country Head for Maybank Singapore before retiring as Advisor,
Maybank in November 2008. He was previously a Director of Maybank from
December 2008 to October 2009, and served as a member of the Credit Review,
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board.

Datuk Karunakaran was appointed as a Director of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. on 12
October 2012. He serves as Chairman of the Audit Committee and as a member of
the Risk Management Committee.

OTHER
INFORMATION

Spencer Lee was appointed as a Director of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc., which was
locally incorporated on 2 April 2012 (received National Bank of Cambodia’s approval
on 23 March 2012). He serves as Chairman of the Risk Management Committee and
as a member of the Audit Committee.
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HAMIRULLAH BOORHAN
NON-INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

POLLIE SIM
NON-INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

•
•

•
•

51 years of age - Malaysian
Master of Business Administration, International Islamic University, Malaysia;
Diploma in Accountancy, Mara Institute of Technology, Malaysia; Certified
International Retail Banker, London Executive Management – International Academy
of Retail Bank

Hamirullah Boorhan was appointed as Director of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc., which
was locally incorporated on 2 April 2012 (received National Bank of Cambodia’s
approval on 23 March 2012). He also serves as a member of the Audit Committee
and Risk Management Committee.
He is currently the Senior Executive Vice President and Head of Community
Financial Services of Maybank, with responsibilities covering Consumer Finance,
SME and Business Banking, Virtual Banking, HNW and Affluent Banking, Channel
and Branch Network of Maybank Malaysia. Having joined Maybank upon
graduation in 1985, he has 29 years of experience covering all aspects of banking,
branch management, regional banking, consumer banking and auto financing
business which involved expanding and growing the hire purchase market, locally
and regionally. He is a Certified International Retail Banker by the London Executive
Management – International Academy of Retail Banking since 27 September 2012.

52 years of age - Singaporean
Master in Business Administration, Brunel University of West London, United
Kingdom; Diploma in Management Studies, Singapore Institute of Management;
Diploma in Marketing & Selling Bank Services, International Management Centre

Pollie Sim was appointed as Director of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. on 28 February
2014. She also serves as a member of the Audit Committee and Risk Management
Committee.
She had been appointed as the CEO of Maybank International with effect from 1
October 2013. Prior to her latest appointment, Pollie took the helm of Maybank
Singapore in July 2006. She has more than 30 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and has held many senior positions within Maybank Group.
She has been instrumental in leading and developing Maybank’s retail banking
business in Singapore. Prior to Maybank Singapore, Pollie was Chief Executive
Officer of Mayban Finance (S) Ltd.

He attended all five Board meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2013.

Her current directorships in companies within the Maybank Group include as
Director of Maybank Philippines Incorporated, Singapore Unit Trusts Ltd and Sorak
Financial Holdings Pte Ltd. She is also the Chairman of the Singapore Unit Trust
Investment Committee and represents Maybank as a member of the Board of Asian
Bankers Association.

Hamirullah Boorhan has no family relationship with any director and/or major
shareholder of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. He has no conflict of interest with
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. and has never been charged for any offence.

In 2012, Pollie was accorded the Distinguished FICP (Financial Industry Certified
Professional) by IBF (The Institute of Banking & Finance, Singapore) and also
received the Pacific Rim Bankers Program Distinguished Leadership Award.
Pollie Sim has no family relationship with any director and/or major shareholder of
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. She has no conflict of interest with Maybank (Cambodia)
Plc. and has never been charged for any offence.
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DAENG HAFEZ ARAFAT ZUHUD
CORPORATE SECRETARY
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She joined the Maybank Group in 1995 and underwent banking operations
training during the initial period. She went on to take on various roles in Human
Resource beginning with Industrial Relations. She was then tasked to set up the
first Employee Communications role for the Group and expanded her role to also
lead the Employee Relations role. She took on the lead Change Communications
role in various major Group initiatives including the merger & acquisition as
well as integration exercise involving the Bank, Investment Bank and Insurance
business. Prior to joining Maybank, she was part of the pioneer team of Carrefour,
setting up the first hypermarket in Malaysia. She was the Project Lead for the
local incorporation of the Maybank Phnom Penh Branch operations to Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc.

Daeng Hafez is the joint Corporate Secretary of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. He
is also the Assistant Vice President, Group Corporate Secretarial of Maybank.
He graduated with an LLB (Honours) from the International Islamic University
Malaysia. He was called to the Malaysian Bar in 1995 and was issued company
secretary license by the Companies Commission of Malaysia since 1998.
Previously he was with Intraline Group of Companies since 2003, the companies
of which were involved in oil & gas industry, with the last post as Senior Manager,
Legal & Human Resource and Company Secretary. He joined Maybank in December
2011.

OTHER
INFORMATION

Qazreen is the Corporate Secretary of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc., and is also its
Head of Corporate Affairs & Services. She graduated with a Bachelor of Education
in Guidance & Counselling from the Universiti Putra Malaysia as well as Master of
Business Administration from the University of Bath, UK.
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QAZREEN CHAN ABDULLAH
CORPORATE SECRETARY
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Lee Tien Poh has been the Chief Executive Officer since 2 May 2012.
Responsibility
Tien Poh is responsible for driving the overall management and growth of Maybank (Cambodia)
Plc. He spearheads the Bank’s business and growth strategy across all lines of businesses and
the Indochina countries that Maybank operates in, ensuring a good balance between driving
operational excellence, strong governance and business growth. He is responsible for leveraging
on the strengths of Maybank Group to capture increased market share and at the same time
strengthening Maybank’s operations in Cambodia as well as Myanmar, Laos and Vietnam.
Experience
Tien Poh was a Maybank Graduate Trainee, and joined the Bank in 1988. He has 25 years of
experience in banking, having worked in branches as well as in Head Office. He held senior
management positions as Director/Head of Services in Maybank Philippines Inc. and Head
International Strategy & Operations, Maybank Group.

LEE TIEN POH
Chief Executive Officer of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. and Regional
Cluster Officer (Cambodia, Myanmar, Laos, Vietnam)

Qualification
Bachelor of Mathematics, University of Malaya, Malaysia. Member of Malaysian Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (MICPA). Chartered Accountant of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA).
Committee Membership/Appointments
Tien Poh is a Board member as well as Chairman of Risk Management Committee in Anh Binh
Bank, Vietnam. He is an EXCO member (Treasurer) in the Association of Banks in Cambodia.

Liong Khai Sim has been the Head of Finance & Strategy since 1 April 2012.
Responsibility
As the Head of Finance & Strategy, Khai Sim is responsible for the Bank’s strategy, financial,
capital and funding management. He oversees Funding & Liquidity Management, Strategy &
Business Planning and Finance & Accounts.
Experience
Khai Sim has more than 25 years of experience covering all key areas of commercial banking,
mainly in corporate & commercial lending, branch management and key finance functions –
financial and management reporting, accounting, money market and internal audit. Prior to
his appointment in Maybank (Cambodia) Plc., he served in Maybank Group holding various
positions at Finance & Treasury Operations, Strategy & Corporate Finance and Branch
Management, Community Financial Services. He has also previously served at Pacific Bank
Berhad, holding various positions in Corporate & Investment Banking, Finance & Accounts
and Branch Management, and at Visia Finance Berhad, holding various positions in Internal
Audit and Accounts, Statistics & Money Market.

LIONG KHAI SIM
Head, Finance & Strategy

Qualification
Master of Business Administration, University of Hull, United Kingdom. Bachelor of
Commerce, University of New South Wales, Australia. Member of the Certified Practising
Accountants Australia. Chartered Accountant of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Certified Credit Professional, Institute of Bankers, Malaysia.
Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil
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Experience
Prior to joining Maybank Cambodia Plc., Guanghui spent six years with ANZ Royal in Retail
Banking as well as Operations as Chief Operating Officer. He has also worked for six years
with British American Tobacco Cambodia in various roles in Trade Marketing including the
Business Development Manager role and two years as a consultant to local corporates.

CHIM GUANGHUI
Head, Community Financial Services

Qualification
Master of Arts in East Asian Languages and Culture, University of Kansas, USA. Bachelor
of Education, Royal University of Phnom Penh, Cambodia. Certificate in Mandarin, Nankai
University, China.
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Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil.

ACHIEVEMENTS

Responsibility
As the Head of Community Financial Services, Guanghui is responsible for the overall
management and performance of the bank's consumer segment. This covers consumer
finance, products, customer segmentation, payment services and business strategy as well
as planning and development.
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Chim Guanghui has been the Head of Community Financial Services since 10 December
2012.
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Experience
Wai Kwong has more than 10 years of experience with the Maybank Group, starting with
branch operations to commercial/corporate banking. Prior to his current appointment, he
was holding the position of Head of Structured Trade & Commodity Finance at Head Office
in Maybank Malaysia. He was the Head of Business Development for Maybank Phnom Penh
Branch from 2006 to 2008.
Qualification
Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons), The National University of Malaysia. Certified
Credit Professional, Institute of Bankers, Malaysia.
Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil.

OTHER
INFORMATION

CHOY WAI KWONG
Head, Global Banking

THE FINANCIALS

Responsibility
As the Head of Global Banking, Wai Kwong takes on the roles as Head of Corporate Banking,
Head of Client Coverage and Head of Transaction Banking at Maybank Cambodia. His areas
of responsibility comprise corporate banking, investment banking, transaction banking
(trade finance), client coverage and SME banking which form the businesses under Global
Banking.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Choy Wai Kwong is the Head of Global Banking.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Khoo Eng Hoe has been the Head of Channel Management since 1 September 2012.
Responsibility
Eng Hoe is responsible for the overall branch management and performance. His areas of
responsibility comprise of sales management, branch operational support and guidance,
identification of strategic touch point locations to set up new branches and off-site ATMs
and internet banking (M2U).
Experience
Eng Hoe started his banking journey with the United Malayan Banking Corporation (UMBC
- now known as RHB Bank) in 1981. He has 32 years of experience working in various
departments covering Trade Finance, Accounts, Operations and Credit. He joined Phileo
Allied Bank (PAB) in 1995 as a Senior Operation Executive and was promoted to Assistant
Branch Manager in 2000. The merger of PAB with Maybank took place in January 2001
and he subsequently became a Maybank Branch Manager in 2003. He was appointed as
Head, Mortgage Mobile Team Perak in January 2010 to set up the Mortgage Team in Perak.
Subsequently, he was appointed as Branch Manager for a Signature A Branch in August 2010
till August 2012.
KHOO ENG HOE
Head, Channel Management

Qualification
Certified Credit Professional (CCP – Consumer), Institute of Bankers, Malaysia.
Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil.

Qazreen Chan Abdullah is the Head of Corporate Affairs & Services.
Responsibility
Qazreen’s areas of responsibility comprise of corporate and legal services, corporate
communications and branding, as well as service management. She assists the Board in
ensuring the highest standards in corporate governance. She is also the brand guardian of the
Bank and drives customer service strategy to enhance customer experience, satisfaction and
engagement.
Experience
Qazreen joined the Maybank Group in 1995 and underwent banking operations training during
the initial period. She went on to take on various roles in Human Resource beginning with
Industrial Relations. She was then tasked to set up the first Employee Communications role
for the Group and expanded her role to also lead the Employee Relations role. She took on the
lead Change Communications role in various major Group initiatives including the merger &
acquisition as well as integration exercise involving the Bank, Investment Bank and Insurance
business. Prior to joining Maybank, she was part of the pioneer team of Carrefour, setting up
the first hypermarket in Malaysia.

QAZREEN CHAN ABDULLAH
Head, Corporate Affairs & Services

Qualification
Master of Business Administration, University of Bath, UK. Bachelor of Education (Guidance &
Counselling), Universiti Putra Malaysia. Certificate in Industrial Relations, Malaysian Institute
of Management. Certified Product Marketing Manager, Association of International Product
Marketing & Management, USA.
Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil
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Prior to joining Maybank Cambodia, Sunny was with First Cambodia Co. Ltd., a leading
System Integration company in Cambodia where she was involved in developing and
implementing Human Resource strategy for more than two years, and her last held position
was Human Resource and Admin Manager.
HUOT SUNNY
Head, Human Resource

Qualification
Bachelor of Education, Build Bright University of Cambodia.
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Committee Membership/Appointments
Sunny is a member of the HR Club under the initiative of the Cambodian Federation of
Employer and Business Association (CAMFEBA).

ACHIEVEMENTS

Experience
Sunny had more than 10 years of experience undertaking Human Resource roles covering
the four aspects of Human Resource management including Recruitment, Training &
Development, Compensation & Benefit and Employee Relations with various multi-national
companies. She had undertaken the role of Head of Employee Relations which required her
to formalize and implement company policies, rules and regulations and pro-actively give
legal advice to the highest compliance of the company.

BUSINESS
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Responsibility
Sunny leads the people agenda to support the business expansion strategy in Cambodia to
realize the Bank’s aspiration to be the 1st Choice Financial Partner in Cambodia.

ABOUT US

Huot Sunny is the Head of Human Resource.

Experience
She has 15 years of banking experience, mainly in the area of Credit Risk Management. She
also has experience in Market Risk and Liquidity Risk Management. Prior to her appointment
in Maybank (Cambodia) Plc., she helmed Credit Risk Management in Maybank Philippines
Inc. (MPI) from 2001 to 2012. She spearheaded bank-wide projects for Risk Management in
MPI, including IFRS, Basel II and ICAAP implementation.
Qualification
Bachelor of Science in Business Economics, University of the Philippines.
Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil.

OTHER
INFORMATION

MA. AURORA RUIZ
Head, Credit & Risk Management

THE FINANCIALS

Responsibility
Ma. Aurora is responsible for providing direction to set up and implement credit and risk
management frameworks, policies, guidelines/procedures, methodologies, and governance
in alignment with the business objectives of the Bank.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Ma. Aurora Ruiz has been the Head of Credit & Risk Management since April 2012.

60

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

EXECUTIVECOMMITTEE

Chou Teong Boon was appointed as the Head of Credit Administration & Loan Management
effective 1 April 2014.
Responsibility
Teong Boon is responsible for and oversees the overall credit administration and loan
management of MCP. The functions include loans documentation, disbursement, safe
keeping of security documents and management of loan repayment including collection,
early care and loan recovery.
Experience
Teong Boon has 33 years of banking experience mainly in Retail Banking and Consumer
Finance. He was a Branch Manager in Region Penang/Kedah/Perlis prior to joining
International Operations in 2008 when Maybank embarked on a strategic decision to grow
its presence in Cambodia. He was the Branch Manager for Siem Reap branch and was also
a member of the Branch Expansion Committee to assist with the opening of the earlier
branches. As the number of branches grew, he joined Consumer Finance in 2010 to support
the growing emphasis on Consumer Loans.
CHOU TEONG BOON
Head, Credit Administration & Loan Management

Qualification
Certified Credit Professional (CCP – Consumer), Institute of Bankers, Malaysia.
Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil

Martin Khew has been the Head of Support Services since September 2012.
Responsibility
Martin’s areas of responsibility comprise of Information Technology, Property & Security
and Centralized Operations. He drives the implementation of IT platform that supports the
businesses to deploy innovative and value-added products and services to the Cambodian
market, ensure provision of a safe and secured environment for customers, staff and the
public, as well as handles all aspects of remittances and centralized clearing of inward and
outward checks.
Experience
Martin has 32 years of banking experience mainly in Retail Banking and Branch Operations.
Prior to assuming his current position, he was the Head of Branch Operations and
Supervision. He had also assumed the role as the Branch Manager of Maybank Phnom
Penh Main Branch, which included overseeing the Bank’s Branch Operations, Trade Finance
Operations and Centralized Operations.
MARTIN KHEW
Head, Support Services

Qualification
Certified Credit Professional (CCP – Consumer), Institute of Bankers, Malaysia.
Committee Membership/Appointments
Nil.

The Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. Board believes that good corporate governance
should not be a mere statement of compliance, and is committed to achieving
the highest standards of business integrity, ethics and professionalism across
all of the Bank’s activities. With this commitment and in line with the Group’s
regional aspirations in humanising financial services, the Board aims to
enhance business prosperity and foster a culture with ethical values, whilst
continuously delivering and sustaining the Group’s value propositions for the
benefit of its stakeholders internationally.
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This Corporate Governance Statement seeks to provide vital insights into the corporate governance practices of the Bank to the investors. The Maybank (Cambodia)

BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Board’s fundamental approach in this regard is to ensure that the right executive leadership, strategy and internal controls for risk management are well in place.
The Board also continuously reviews its governance model to ensure its relevance, effectiveness and ability to meet the challenges of the future.

Plc.’s corporate governance model adopts the following requirements and guidelines:(i) National Bank of Cambodia (NBC)’s Prakas on Governance in Banks and Financial Institutions;

The Maybank Group also monitors developments in corporate governance standards of leading and reputable organisations and institutions in the region and around
the world to ensure that its own highest standards of corporate governance are upheld.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

(ii) Maybank Group’s Corporate Governance Model

On 1 October 2013, Maybank Group revised its Group Organisation Structure and leadership team in order to accelerate the Group’s regional business performance and
operational excellence to take Maybank to and beyond 2015. With this transformation, Maybank’s regionalisation efforts will be hastened, efficiency and productivity

CORPORATE
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Group will be enhanced, high performance culture firmly institutionalised and group governance further strengthened.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Group-wide significantly raised, synergies reaped and potentials realised. At the same time, it is expected that leadership positions in businesses across the Maybank
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

Board Charter

The business and affairs of the Bank are managed under the direction and
oversight of the Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. Board, which also has the responsibility
to periodically review and approve the overall strategies, business, organization
and significant policies of the Bank.

In recognition that robust and well thought-out corporate governance practices
are essential to safeguard the interests of the Group’s stakeholders, the Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc. Board is guided by the Board Manual (Manual) in respect of
the Board’s role, powers, duties and functions. The Board Manual was recently
adopted in August 2013 and will be reviewed periodically.
The Manual not only reflects the current best practices and the applicable rules
and regulations, it also outlines processes and procedures to ensure the Bank’s
Board and its committees’ effectiveness and efficiency. It is a dynamic document
to be updated from time to time to reflect changes to the Bank’s policies,
procedures and processes as well as relevant amended rules and regulations, or to
be reviewed at least once in two years, whichever is earlier.
The Manual comprises, amongst others, well defined terms of reference as well
as authority limits for the Board and its committees, and the various relevant
internal policies.
The chapters covered under the Manual are as follows:1.
Maybank Cambodia’s standard of business conduct;
2.
Directors’ duties and obligations;
3.
Appointment and resignation of Directors;
4.
Governance structure;
5.
Board proceedings;
6.
Remuneration and benefits;
7.
Supply of information to the Board;
8.
Training and induction programmes;
9.
Annual Board assessment;
10.
Conflict of interest and related party transactions; and
11.
Other key policies of the Bank.

Further, the Board also sets the Bank’s core values, adopts proper standards to
ensure that the Bank operates with integrity, and complies with the relevant rules
and regulations.
The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision which
include, amongst others, the following:
1.

Business Direction
• Approving the Bank’s business strategies, proposals relating to
investments, divestments (including but not limited to the disposal of
assets in excess of the delegated powers of the EXCO), M&A and strategic
alliances in both the domestic and external markets and action plans
including any planned major project by individual operating unit/entities
which is deemed to have an impact upon the Bank.
• Approving Bank Strategy, Business Plans and the Annual Budget and its
half yearly review.
• Establishing and approving policies with Bank-wide applicability, which
include Human Resource, Information Technology, Property, Procurement,
Communications, Reporting, Funding, Capital Allocation/Raising, Risk
Management, and Anti-Money Laundering etc.
• Approving the appointment of external consultants and all expenses in
excess of the delegated powers of the Board Committees and EXCO.
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Other than as specifically reserved to the Board in the Board’s Terms of
Reference, the responsibility for managing Maybank’s business activities is
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Bank, who is accountable to
the Board.
Board Composition and Balance
There are currently 6 Directors on the Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. Board. Three are
Independent Non-Executive Directors, two are Non-Independent Non-Executive
Directors and one is a Non-Independent Executive Director (the CEO).
The present composition of the Board is in compliance with NBC’s regulations as
at least two of its members are Independent Directors.
The engaged Directors provide a wealth of knowledge, experience and skills in the
key areas of accountancy, law, securities, international business operations and
development, finance and risk management, amongst others. A brief profile of
each member of the Board is presented on pages 52 to 54 of this Annual Report.
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6. Board Membership and Board Committees
• Determining the general composition of the Board and ensure (size, skill
and balance between executive directors and non executive directors) in
order to ensure that the Board consists of the requisite diversity of skills,
experience, gender qualification, and other core competencies required.
• Considering and/or approving new policies related to boardroom
diversity.
• Approving the tenure of the chairman and members of the board
committees.
• Approving a framework of remuneration for directors, covering fees,
allowances, and benefits-in-kind in their work as directors of all boards
and committees.
• Approving specific remuneration packages for executive directors.
• Overseeing and ensuring that an annual evaluation of the performance
and effectiveness of individuals and collective members of the Board and
Board Committees is carried out, and to recommend measures to upgrade
the effectiveness of the same.
• Ensuring and approving recommended solutions on issues of conflict of
interest affecting directors.
• Appointing committees of the Board and to delegate any of its power to
such committees as they shall from time to time think fit.
• Ensuring that the Board members have access to appropriate education
and training programmes to keep abreast of the latest developments in
the industry, and as may be prescribed by the regulatory authorities from
time to time.
• Ensuring that the Board is supported by a suitably qualified and
competent Corporate Secretary.
• Ensuring that the directors are able to obtain full and unrestricted access
to any information pertaining to the Bank, at all times.
• Ensuring that the Board is empowered to obtain independent professional
or other advice as and when deemed necessary.

CORPORATE
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4. Management Appointment, Compensation and Structure
• Approving the establishment of new compensation and benefits policies/
plans and the terms and conditions and service for executives in CB56 and
above (including Executive Directors) Bank-wide.
• Approving a Leadership Development framework for the Bank, further to
identifying and ensuring succession planning within the Bank.
• Approving the recruitment, appointment, promotion, confirmation
and termination of service, as well as the remuneration package, and
compensation and benefits policies and the terms and conditions,
including the job grade of executives in Key Management Positions.
• Approving the removal of executives in Key Management positions if they
are ineffective, errant and negligent in discharging their duties.
• Reviewing the performance of the CEO of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. and
to make the necessary recommendations to the Board thereon.
• Approving changes to the corporate organisation structure of Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc.
• Approving the quantum and basis of bonus payments to the management
and staff of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
• Approving policies pertaining to staff salary and benefits.
• Approving the Performance Management framework/model including

5. Administration
• Approving policies pertaining to corporate image, brand management,
community relations, investor relations and shareholder communications
programs.
• Ensuring that the Bank has a beneficial influence on the economic wellbeing of the communities within which it operates, including via Maybank
Foundation, and endorsement of the initiatives and programmes carried
out via the same.

THE FINANCIALS

3. Business Operations
• Approving all credit facilities and matters beyond the authority of the
Credit Committee, including but not limited to:
- credit proposals;
- credit operational and transactional requests;
- trade operational and transactional requests; and
- operational excesses
• Approving all non-credit matters beyond the authority of the EXCO,
including connected party/related party transactions.
• Overseeing the conduct of the Bank’s businesses to evaluate whether the
business is profitable and being soundly managed.
• Providing clear objectives and policies within which senior executives
are to operate. These should cover all aspect of operations, including
strategic planning, credit administration and control, asset and liability
management encompassing the management of all risk categories,
accounting system and control, service quality, automation plan,
prevention of money laundering, anti-competitive practices, adequacy of
capital and human resource development.
• Approving the Bank’s financial statements (and ensuring the reliability
of the same) as well as the interim dividend and recommend the
final dividend to shareholders and the application of the Dividend
Reinvestment Plan (“DRP”) thereto (where applicable) prior to public
announcements and publications as well as all circulars and press releases
for release to the relevant authorities and media.
• Establishing and approving procedures to address conflict of interest
situations and ensuring that Management implement policies to identify,
prevent or appropriately manage and disclose potential conflicts of
interest situations that may arise, including in the context of affiliation
with other entities within the Group.
• Ensuring that related party transactions are made on an arms’ length
basis.

setting of the appropriate performance parameters and benchmark for
the Bank Balanced Scorecard at the start of each financial year.

OTHER
INFORMATION

2. Risk Management and Internal Control
• Ensure effective functioning of the Audit Committee.
• Ensuring an effective internal audit department staffed with qualified
personnel to perform internal audit functions, covering the traditional
function of financial audit as well as the function of management audit.
• Establishing and approving policies with respect to the management of
all risk categories, including but not limited to credit, market, liquidity,
operational, legal and reputational risks.
• Establishing and approving the relevant policies for the prevention of
money laundering, and anti-competitive practices.
• Reviewing and approving on a yearly basis, the Corporate Governance
Statement for publication in the Bank’s Annual Report.
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Inclusiveness
The Board is committed to ensuring diversity and inclusiveness in its composition
and deliberations and the Bank embraces the proposition that having a diverse
Board would have a positive, value-relevant impact on the Bank. Appointment to
the Board is based on merit.
Moreover, the selection of Directors is guided by the criteria outlined in the
Bank’s Policy on Fit and Proper Criteria for Appointment/Reappointment of Key
Responsible Persons of Licensed Institutions in Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. (Fit
and Proper Policy) as duly assessed by the Group Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC).
Directors’ independence and Independent Non-Executive Directors
The current Board composition, which comprises a high proportion of
Independent Non-Executive Directors, helps the Board to ensure and provide
strong and effective oversight over management. Non-Executive Directors do not
participate in the day-to-day management of the Bank and do not engage in any
business dealing or other relationships with the Bank (other than in situations
permitted by the applicable regulations) in order to ensure that they remain
truly capable of exercising independent judgment and act in the best interests
of the Bank and its shareholders. Further, the Board is satisfied and assured
that no individual or group of Directors has unfettered powers of decision that
could create a potential conflict of interest. Additionally, none of the Bank’s
Independent Non-Executive Directors has more than a 5% equity interest in the
licensed institution or in its related companies, and none of them is connected to
a substantial shareholder of the licensed institution.
The Non-Executive Directors of Maybank continue to proactively engage with
senior management and other relevant parties such as the external/internal
auditors as well as the Bank’s Compliance and Risk units, to ensure that the
various concerns and issues relevant to the management and oversight of
the business and operations of the Bank are properly addressed. The Board’s
commitment to ensure good governance in its deliberation on key issues is
evident with the scheduling of “Board Time Without Management”.
The Board ensures that all Independent Non-Executive Directors possess the
following qualities:
• Ability to challenge the assumptions, beliefs or viewpoints of others
with intelligent questioning, constructive and rigorous debating, and
dispassionate decision making in the interest of the Bank;
• Willingness to stand up and defend their own views, beliefs and opinions
for the ultimate good of the Bank; and
• A good understanding of the Bank’s business activities in order to
appropriately provide responses to the various strategic and technical
issues confronted by the Board.
Directors’ Independence Policy
The Bank’s Directors’ Independence Policy summarises Maybank’s approach in
determining directors’ independence. It provides a guideline for the Board in the
assessment of independence of each Independent Director.
Consistent with the Bank’s Policy on Directors’ Independence, the Board via the
Group NRC assesses the independence of Independent Directors upon his/her
appointment, re-appointment and in any event, annually.
The Group NRC undertakes the independence assessment via the Board and Peer
Annual Assessment as well as Fit and Proper Assessment exercises taking into
accounts the directors’ skills, experience, contributions, background, economic,
family relationships, tenure of directorship and the Independent Directors’ selfdeclaration on their compliance with the independence criteria as well as the
Bank’s Policy on Directors’ Independence.

The Group NRC determines the ability of the Independent Director to continue
bringing independent and objective judgment to the board deliberations as well
as considers if there is any ground or reason that has come to the attention of the
NRC that may affect the independence status of the Independent Directors of
Maybank.
The Board considers that the three Independent Non-Executive Directors (NEDs),
namely Mr. Cheah Teik Seng, Mr. Spencer Lee Tien Chye and Datuk R. Karunakaran
meet the said independence criteria under the NBC Requirements as well as the
Bank’s Policy on Directors’ Independence.
Board Appointment Process
A formal and transparent procedure exists vis-à-vis the appointment of
new Directors to the Board, the primary responsibility of which has been
delegated to the Group Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). Such
responsibilities include screening, conducting initial selection of internal and
external candidates, performing requisite evaluation and assessment on the
candidates’ ability to discharge their duties effectively and efficiently, prior to
making recommendations to the Board for its approval. The Group NRC also
ensures candidates possess the appropriate skills, core competencies, experience,
integrity and time to effectively discharge his or her role as a director.
This procedure is in line with the Bank’s Fit and Proper Policy. In accordance with
this procedure, the Group NRC recommends to the Board suitable candidates
for directorships and the appointment of key senior management of Maybank
(Cambodia) Plc.
The Fit and Proper Policy, which sets out the attributes and qualifications
required of a candidate to determine his/her suitability, include amongst others,
requirements in respect of his/her management and leadership experience, which
has to be at the most senior level in a reputable local or international financial
services group, public corporation or professional firm/body. In relation to the
candidate’s skills, expertise and background, the candidate should ideally and
to the extent available, possess a diverse range of skills, including in particular,
business, legal and financial expertise, professional knowledge and financial
industry experience, as well as experience in regional and international markets.
The following aspects would be considered by the Board in making the selection,
with the assistance of the Group NRC:1.

Probity, personal integrity and reputation – the person must have key
qualities such as honesty, integrity, diligence, independence of mind and
fairness.
2. Competence and capability – the person must have the necessary skills,
ability and commitment to carry out the role.
3. Financial integrity – the person must manage his debts or financial affairs
prudently.
The Fit and Proper Policy assists in identifying the gaps in skills in the
composition of the Board. The Policy outlines the requirement for Non-Executive
Directors of Maybank who have reached the age of 70 and above, and those who
have served the Board for 12 years or more to submit their resignation letters
annually to the Group NRC six months before the Annual General Meeting
(AGM), for appropriate recommendations to be made to the Board.
Additionally, the tenure of service for Independent Directors has been capped
at the maximum of 9 years and upon completion of the 9 years tenure, the
Independent Director may continue to serve on the Board subject to redesignation as Non-Independent Director. In exceptional circumstances, the
shareholders may decide that an Independent Director can remain beyond the
cumulative term of 9 years, subject to the Group NRC’s assessment, Board’s
recommendation as well as strong justification be provided to the shareholders
at a general meeting. The Board noted that currently none of its independent
members has reached the 9 years cumulative term in Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
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Meeting up
with candidates

Chairman

The Chairman leads the Board and is also responsible for the effective
performance of the Board. He continuously works together with the rest of
the Board in setting the policy framework and strategies to align the business
activities driven by the senior management with the Bank’s objectives and
aspirations, and monitors its implementation, and also ensures orderly conduct
and proceedings of the Board, where healthy debate on issues being deliberated
is encouraged to reflect an appropriate level of scepticism and independence.

Directors who are due for re-election at the AGM will be assessed and
recommendation will be made to the Board for deliberation and approval. Upon
obtaining the Board’s endorsement, the relevant submission including the
justifications for such re-appointment is thereafter made to NBC for approval if
the relevant Director’s NBC’s term of appointment is expiring.
Board and Individual Director’s Effectiveness
Having considered its composition, calibre and diversity, the Board must be
satisfied that it will continue to ensure an efficient and effective conduct of
deliberations. The current Board size enables the Board to discharge its function
in a professional manner in consideration of the composition, breadth and
complexity of the Bank’s business activities, domestically and internationally.
Future changes to the Board may be made to enhance complementarity of skills
and at the same time enable proper succession planning.
As ever, the Chairman tries to ensure that the Board’s decisions are reached by
consensus (and failing this, reflect the will of the majority), and any concern or
dissenting view expressed by any Director on any matter deliberated at meetings
of the Board, or any of its Committees, as well as the meetings’ decisions, will
accordingly be addressed and duly recorded in the relevant minutes of the
meeting.

He takes the lead to ensure the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
succession planning programme for the Board and senior management levels.
He also promotes a healthy working relationship with the CEO and provides
the necessary support and advice as appropriate. He continues to demonstrate
the highest standards of corporate governance practices and ensures that these
practices are regularly communicated to the stakeholders.
The CEO

ABOUT US
BUSINESS
REVIEW

Mr. Cheah Teik Seng is the Chairman of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. since its local
incorporation on 2 April 2012. He has never assumed an executive position in
Maybank.

Directors’ Retirement and Re-election
All directors of the Bank, including the CEO as an Executive Director, are subject
to re-election at least once every three years in accordance with the Bank’s
Articles of Association and the Law on Commercial Enterprise. The Board’s
support for a Director’s re-election is not automatic and is subject to satisfactory
assessment of performance.

ACHIEVEMENTS

The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO are separated with
a clear division of responsibilities, defined, documented and approved by the
Board, in line with best practices so as to ensure appropriate supervision of the
Management. This distinction allows for a better understanding and distribution
of jurisdictional responsibilities and accountabilities. The clear hierarchical
structure with its focused approach and attendant authority limits also facilitates
efficiency and expedites informed decision-making.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

The Bank also conducts periodic assessments on the suitability of the Directors
to continuously occupy their strategic leadership position subsequent to the
appointment process, in accordance with the Bank’s Fit and Proper Policy and in
line with NBC Prakas on Fit and Proper Regulatory Requirements for Applying
Entities and Licensed Banks and Financial Institutions. The fit and proper
assessment for KRPs involves independent checks on the self-declarations made
by the Directors as well as any of their business interests connected to the Bank
ensuring the Directors are suitable to continue to serve as directors of the Bank.

Role and Responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

OUR
LEADERSHIP

The appointment process for Executive Directors is similarly robust, in order to
ensure that the best person is picked for the top executive position in the interest
of the Bank. The process includes the identification of potential candidates (both
internal as well as external) by a special committee of the Board, governed by the
expectation of the roles and capabilities described and required by the Board. This
process includes interviews, which are subsequently followed by a submission to
the Group NRC for deliberation and thereafter the final recommendation to the
Board for endorsement, and ultimately submission to NBC for approval.

Recommendation
to Board

Mr. Lee Tien Poh is the CEO and Executive Director of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
since 1 May 2012.
Mr. Lee has been delegated certain responsibilities by the Board in his capacity
as CEO and is primarily accountable for overseeing the day-to-day operations
to ensure the smooth and effective running of the Bank. Furthermore, he is
responsible for mapping the medium to longer term plans for Board approval, and
is accountable for implementing the policies and decisions of the Board, as well
as coordinating the development and implementation of business and corporate
strategies, specifically by making sure that they are carried through to their
desired outcomes, especially in the institution of remedial measures to address
identified shortcomings. He is also responsible for developing and translating the
strategies into a set of manageable goals and priorities, and setting the overall
strategic policy and direction of the business operations, investment and other
activities based on effective risk management controls.
The CEO ensures that the financial management practice is performed at the
highest level of integrity and transparency for the benefit of the shareholders and
that the business and affairs of the Bank are carried out in an ethical manner and
in full compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Subsequent to the approval of the Board, the application for the appointment of
such candidates is thereafter submitted to NBC for the requisite approval under
the Prakas on Fit and Proper Regulatory Requirements for Applying Entities and
Licensed Banks and Financial Institutions.

Final deliberation
by NRC

THE FINANCIALS

Evaluation of
suitability of
candidates

OTHER
INFORMATION

Identification of
candidates

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The Policy on the Nomination Process for the Appointment of Chairman, Director and CEO of Licensed Institutions in the Bank (Policy on Nomination Process) sets out
a clear and transparent nomination process of the same, which involves the following five stages:-
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The CEO is also tasked with ensuring that whilst the ultimate objective is
maximising total shareholder return, social and environmental factors are
not neglected, and also developing and maintaining strong communication
programmes and dialogues with the shareholders, investors, analysts as well
as employees, and providing effective leadership to the Bank organisation. He
is also responsible for ensuring high management competency as well as the
emplacement of an effective management succession plan to sustain continuity of
operations. The CEO, by virtue of his position as a Board member, also functions
as the intermediary between the Board and senior management.
Board Meetings
The Board meets every 2 months (of which had been changed to quarterly
as decided at the Board meeting held in June 2013) with additional meetings
convened as and when urgent issues and/or important decisions are required to
be addressed between the scheduled meetings. During the financial year ended
31 December 2013, the Board met 5 times to deliberate and consider a variety of
significant matters that required its guidance and approval.

All Directors have complied with the requirement that Directors must attend
at least 75% of Board meetings held in the financial year in accordance with
the Board Manual, and attended at least 50% of Board meetings held in the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 as per the requirement of NBC’s Prakas on
Governance in Banks and Financial Institutions.
The current Group practice is to appoint Board members to sit on subsidiary
boards, in particular those of the key overseas subsidiaries, including
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. to maintain oversight and ensure the operations
of the respective subsidiaries are aligned with the Group’s strategies and
objectives. Moving forward, more of the key members of the Group Executive
Committee shall also have requisite membership on subsidiary level boards to
further ensure that the Group’s governance remains linked with strategic and
operational focus in line with Maybank’s corporate aspirations and expanding
regional footprint.

Details of attendance of each Director on the Board and respective Board Committees of the Bank during the financial year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:
Board
Number of Meetings
Name of Directors
Cheah Teik Seng
Spencer Lee Tien Chye
Datuk R. Karunakaran
Hamirullah Boorhan
Michael Foong Seong Yew 1
Lee Tien Poh

ACB
Number of Meetings

RMC
Number of Meetings

Held

Attended

%

Held

Attended

%

Held

Attended

%

5
5
5
5
4
5

5
5
5
4
4
5

100
100
100
80
100
100

5
5
5
5
4
5

5
5
5
4
4
5

100
100
100
80
100
100

5
5
5
5
4
5

5
5
5
4
4
5

100
100
100
80
100
100

Notes:
*
All Board and Board Committee members had met the minimum percentage required for meeting attendance.
1
Appointed as a member of the Board of Directors, ACB and RMC with effect from 10 March 2013.

Directors’ Remuneration

Quality and Supply of information to the Board

The Board believes that one area that the Board needs to focus on in order to
remain effective in the discharge of its duties and responsibilities is the setting
of a fair and comprehensive remuneration package that commensurates with the
expertise, skills, responsibilities and the risks of being a director of a financial
institution.

In the effective discharge of its duties, the Board has full and unrestricted access
to all information pertaining to the Bank’s businesses and affairs as well as to the
advice and services of the senior management of the Bank. In addition to formal
Board meetings, the Chairman maintains regular contact with the CEO to discuss
specific matters, and the latter assisted by the Corporate Secretary ensures that
frequent and timely communication between the senior management and the
Board is maintained at all times as appropriate.

The determination of remuneration packages for Non-Executive Directors
(“NEDs”) including the non-executive Chairman is a matter for the Board as a
whole following the relevant recommendation made by the Group NRC after
independent benchmarking with relevant external peers.
The component parts of remuneration of the Executive Director are structured so
as to link short and long-term rewards to corporate and individual performance.
A significant portion of the Executive Director’s compensation package has been
made variable in nature depending on the Bank’s performance during the year,
which is determined based on the individual Key Performance Indicators and a
scorecard aligned with the corporate objectives, and approved by the Board.
In line with good corporate governance, the Board has set out its intention to
periodically review the NEDs remuneration for Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. at least
once every three years, in line with the Group practice. The existing remuneration
framework was approved by the Board and the shareholders at the 1st AGM of
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. held on 27 March 2013. Internal Initiatives, driven by
Corporate and Legal Services are also undertaken to continuously validate the
existing remuneration framework.

The Board is regularly kept up to date on and apprised of any regulations and
guidelines, as well as any amendments thereto issued by the National Bank of
Cambodia and other relevant regulatory authorities including recommendations
on corporate law reform in respect of Cambodia as well as relevant foreign
jurisdictions, particularly the effects of such new or amended regulations and
guidelines on directors specifically, and the Bank generally.
Annual Board Outline Agenda serves as a mechanism to highlight to the Board
and relevant Board Committees as well as the senior management subject
matters other than ‘routine’ for the period to facilitate better planning and
for greater time effectiveness for various parties. It also gives a greater sense
of discipline on the part of senior management to commit to the said outline.
Concurrently, such focus allows the Board to deliberate on and contribute
towards achieving a higher level of value-added discussions on such identified
issues and other relevant matters.
An agenda together with appropriate papers for each agenda item to be discussed
is forwarded to each Director at least five clear days before the scheduled
meeting to enable the Directors to review the papers in preparation for the
meeting, and to obtain further clarification or explanation, where necessary, in
order to be adequately apprised before the meeting.
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(Cambodia) Plc. The topics presented at the said programme were related to:
- Overview/Update on the Group’s Business Plan and Budget 2014
- Risk Culture
- IT Transformation and Strategic IT Initiatives
- Talent Management and Succession Planning

BOARD PROFESSIONALISM

Corporate Secretaries
The Corporate Secretaries are responsible for advising the Board on issues
relating to corporate compliance with the relevant laws, rules, procedures
and regulations affecting the Board and the Bank, as well as best practices
of governance. They are also responsible for advising the Directors of their
obligations and duties to disclose their interest in securities, disclosure of any
conflict of interest in a transaction involving the Bank, prohibition on dealing in
securities and restrictions on disclosure of price-sensitive information, where
applicable. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Corporate
Secretaries.

In line with the Board Manual, each member of the Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
Board holds not more than five directorships in public listed companies to
enable the Directors to discharge their duties effectively by ensuring that their
commitment, resources and time are more focused.
Whilst the Board values the experience and perspective gained by the NonExecutive Directors from their memberships on the boards of other companies,
organisations, and associations, the Board Manual provides that the NonExecutive Directors must first consult the Chairman to ensure that their
acceptance of such other appointments, such as directorships of other listed
companies, would not unduly affect their time commitments and responsibilities
to the Board.
The Group NRC assesses the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors who hold directorships in licensed subsidiaries in the Maybank Group,
pursuant to a declaration made that they are not taking instructions from any
person including Maybank. In addition, Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. also appoint
other Independent Non-Executive Directors who are not members of the
Maybank Group Board to ensure an optimal balance between board members in
terms of independent internal and external directors.

ABOUT US

Directorships in Other Companies

ACHIEVEMENTS

Senior management members are invited to attend Board meetings to report
on matters relating to their areas of responsibility, and also to brief and
present details to the Directors on recommendations submitted for the Board’s
consideration. Additional information or clarification may be required to be
furnished, particularly in respect of complex and technical issues tabled to the
Board. In order to ensure the quality of board papers are of the highest quality
and prepared in accordance with best practice requirements and within the
expectations of the Board, Directors are given an avenue to provide written
feedback during each Board meeting to rate the quality of the papers and that of
the session discussing the papers.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Additionally, the Bank’s minutes of meetings of the Board and various Board
Committees incorporate the discussions of the members at the meetings in
arriving at decisions and are concise and accurate. The draft minutes of the
meeting are circulated within one week of the meetings to the Board for early
feedback and suggestions prior to tabling at the subsequent meetings for formal
confirmation.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS
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It has been the practice of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. to require that members of
the Board make a declaration to that effect at the Board meeting in the event that
they have interests in proposals being considered by the Board, including where
such interest arises through close family members, in line with various statutory
requirements on the disclosure of Director’s interest. In all situations where the
Directors could be deemed as interested, they would excuse themselves from
the discussion and leave the meeting room. The minutes of meeting would also
reflect as such.

BOARD COMMITTEES

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Conflict of Interest
Independent professional advice can be obtained by any Individual Directors,
at the Bank’s expense where necessary, in the furtherance of their duties in
accordance with the Bank’s Policy and Procedure on Access to Independent
Professional Advice, Senior Management and Corporate Secretaries by Directors
of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. Copies of any reports, advice and recommendations
provided by the independent professional adviser to the relevant Director would
be forwarded by the said Director to the Corporate Secretaries, who will, where
appropriate, circulate them to other Directors to ensure that they are kept
informed of pertinent issues, which may have an impact on the Bank’s interest,
growth and performance.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Independent Professional Advice

The Board Committees are as follows:1. Audit Committee of the Board
2. Risk Management Committee
Audit Committee of the Board (ACB)

The Board continues to assess the training needs of its Directors vide the Board
Assessment and identify key areas of focus for training programmes.
The Group Corporate and Legal Services had successfully organised the inaugural
Maybank Group Directors’ training on 22 November 2013 at Grand Hyatt, Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia. The said programme was attended by 49 directors representing
Maybank as well as operating subsidiaries within the Group, including Maybank

The Audit Committee of the Board is authorised by the Board to investigate any
activities within its Terms of Reference and has unrestricted access to both the
internal and external auditors and members of the senior management of the
Group. The activities carried out by the ACB, which met 5 times during the year
under review, are summarised in the ACB Report and its Terms of Reference as
stated on page 72 of this Annual Report. Members of the ACB are as indicated on
page 72 of this Annual Report.

THE FINANCIALS

Induction programme for new Directors is coordinated by Corporate & Legal
Services to provide new Directors with the necessary information and overview
to assist them in understanding the Bank’s operations and appreciating the
challenges and issues the Bank faces in achieving its objectives. The programme
covers subject matters, amongst others, concerning the Bank’s business
and strategy, work processes and Board Committees, and the duties and
responsibilities of Directors.

The Board delegates certain of its governance responsibilities to Board
Committees, which operate within clearly defined terms of references, primarily
to assist the Board in the execution of its duties and responsibilities. Although
the Board has granted such discretionary authority to these Board Committees
to deliberate and decide on certain key and operational matters, the ultimate
responsibility for final decision on all matters lies with the entire Board.

OTHER
INFORMATION

The Board recognises the importance of continuing education for its Directors to
ensure they are equipped with the necessary skill and knowledge to perform their
functions and meet the challenges of the Board.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Training
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Risk Management Committee (RMC)
The roles and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee for risk
oversight include the following:
(i) The Committee is responsible for formulating policies and frameworks to
identify, measure, monitor, manage and control the following material risks
components:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Credit Risk (including Concentration Risk and Counterparty Credit Risk)
Market Risk (including Price Risk and Interest Rate Risk/Rate of Return
Risk)
Liquidity Risk
Operational Risk (including IT Risk)
Legal Risk
Reputational Risk
Business/Strategic Risk
Model Risk
Securitization Risk
Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Books

(ii) Its Roles and Responsibilities include:
1.

To review and approve risk management strategies, risk frameworks, risk
policies, risk tolerance and risk appetite limits.

2. To review and assess adequacy of risk management policies and frameworks
in identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling risks and the extent to
which they operate effectively.
3. To ensure infrastructure, resources and systems are in place for risk
management i.e. ensuring that the staff responsible for implementing risk
management systems perform those duties independently of the financial
institutions’ risk taking activities.
4. To review management’s periodic reports on risk exposure, risk portfolio
composition and risk management activities.
5. To review the impact of risk on capital adequacy and profitability and asset
quality under stress scenarios.
6. To review and assess the internal capital adequacy assessment process
(ICAAP), levels of regulatory and internal capital for the Bank, vis-à-vis its risk
profile.
7. To review and assess the adequacy of insurance coverage.
8. To review and recommend strategic actions to be taken by the Bank arising
from Basel implementation for the Board’s approval.
9. To consider and approve the appointment of professional external advisors/
consultants in areas up to a cap of USD1 million per appointment (regardless
of whether budgeted or unbudgeted) and to notify the Board of the same.
10. To review and approve new products and services and ensure compliance with
the prevailing guidelines issued by BNM or local regulatory body.
11. To oversee the resolution of BNM Composite Risk Rating findings and local
regulator concerns for Maybank Cambodia.
12. To delegate appropriate operational issues to Management for their further
actions.
13. To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated to it by the Board
from time to time.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, five meetings were held.
Majority of the Committee’s members are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Members of the RMC and details of attendance by members are stated on page
66 of this Annual Report.

EXECUTIVE LEVEL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES (ELC)
The CEO, with the support of the Board, has established various ELCs and
delegated some of his authority to assist and support the relevant Board
Committees in the operations of the Bank. The key ELCs, which are all chaired by
the CEO are as follows:• Executive Committee
• Credit Committee
• Internal Audit Committee
• Asset and Liability Management Committee
• Staff Committee
• IT Steering Committee

GENERAL MEETINGS
The Bank’s EGMs and AGMs represent the primary platforms for direct two-way
interaction between the shareholders, Board and management of the Bank. In
deference to shareholder democracy and the transparency policy adopted by the
Bank, shareholder approval is required on all material issues including, but not
limited to, the election and appointment of Directors, major mergers, acquisitions
and divestments exercises, as well as the appointment of auditors and final
dividend payments.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting and Disclosure
Financial Reporting
The Board has a fiduciary responsibility to present to the shareholders and the
public at large, a clear, balanced and meaningful evaluation of the Bank’s financial
position, financial performance and prospects. The Board is assisted by the Audit
Committee of the Board (ACB) in overseeing the financial reporting process and
the quality of the Bank’s financial statements.
Disclosures on Financial Highlights and Financial Indicators
The Bank’s financial highlights and financial indicators for the financial year ended
31 December 2013 are set out on pages 78 to 129 of this annual report.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Board also ensures that the Bank’s financial statements prepared for each
financial year give a true and fair view in accordance with the Cambodian
Financial Reporting Standards and the guidelines issued by the NBC.
The Statement of Directors’ Responsibility in respect of the preparation of
audited financial statements for the Bank is set out on page 80 of this annual
report.
Internal Controls
The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound internal control
systems that cover financial controls, operational and compliance controls,
governance and risk management to ensure that shareholders’ investments,
customers’ interests and the Bank’s sassets are safeguarded.
The effectiveness of risk management and internal controls is continuously
reviewed to ensure that they are working. The Audit Committee of the Board
(ACB) regularly evaluates the effectiveness and adequacy of the Bank’s internal
control systems by reviewing the actions taken on internal control issues
identified in reports prepared by Internal Audit during its scheduled meetings.
The ACB also reviews Audit’s recommendations and management responses to
these recommendations.
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Relationship with the Auditors
Internal Auditors
The Internal Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee of the Board
(ACB) of the Bank and has unrestricted access to the ACB. Its function is
independent of the activities or operations of other operating units. The Internal
Audit regularly evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management process,
review the operating effectiveness of the internal controls system and compliance
control across the Bank. The Head of Internal Audit is invited to attend the ACB
meetings to facilitate the deliberation of audit reports. The minutes of the ACB
meetings are subsequently tabled to the Board for information and serve as useful
references especially if there are pertinent issues that the ACB members wish to
highlight to the Board.

ABOUT US
ACHIEVEMENTS

Corporate Responsibility
The Board is satisfied that a good balance has been achieved between
value creation and corporate responsibility. Details of the Bank’s corporate
responsibility initiatives are set out on pages 46 to 47 of this Annual Report.
This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board dated
4 March 2014.

CHEAH TEIK SENG
Chairman of the Board

BUSINESS
REVIEW

These channels protect employees who contemplate “blowing the whistle”
against any negative repercussions arising from genuine reporting, and provide
an assurance of confidentiality to them. Confidentiality of all matters raised and
the identity of the whistleblower are protected under the Policy. Concerns raised
anonymously will also be considered provided they are clear and specific.

The Bank has a Code of Ethics and Conduct that sets out sound principles and
standards of good practice in the financial services industry, which are observed
by the Directors and the employees. Both Directors and employees are required
to uphold the highest integrity in discharging their duties and in dealings with
stakeholders, customers, fellow employees and regulators. This is in line with the
Bank’s Core Values which emphasise behavioural ethics when dealing with third
parties and fellow employees.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

•
•

Toll-Free Message Recording Line at 1-800-38-8833 or for Overseas at 60320268112
Protected Email Address at integrity@maybank.com.my
Secured P.O. Box Mail Address at P.O. Box 11635, 50752 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Maybank’s Code of Ethics and Conduct

OUR
LEADERSHIP

•

A full report of the ACB outlining its role in relation to the internal and external
auditors is set out on pages 72 to 74 of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board is satisfied that an adequate framework on whistleblowing, known as
the Integrity Hotline (formerly Fraud Reporting Hotline) is in place, having been
adopted by the Bank in 2013. All employees can raise their concerns regarding
any misconduct or wrongdoing including but not limited to unethical incidences
such as criminal activities or contravention of laws/regulations committed by
another employee or any person who has dealings with the Bank via the following
channels without any fear of retribution:

THE FINANCIALS

Whistleblowing Policy

External Auditors
The ACB and the Board place great emphasis on the objectivity and independence
of the Bank’s Auditors, namely Messrs. Ernst & Young, in providing relevant and
transparent reports to the shareholders. To ensure full disclosure of matters, the
Bank’s Auditors may be invited to attend the ACB meetings, apart from the yearly
discussions with the ACB without the presence of the senior management.

OTHER
INFORMATION

The Statement on Internal Control is furnished on page 70 of this Annual Report
and this provides an overview of the state of internal controls within the Bank.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS
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STATEMENT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL
Introduction

This Statement on Internal Control is made pursuant to Prakas on Internal
Control of Bank and Financial Institution issued by the National Bank of
Cambodia which requires the Board of Directors (“Board”) to include in its
Company Annual Report a statement about the state of its internal control.
The statement should describe the Bank’s Internal Control System and
the corresponding policies, procedures and mechanisms. Such statement
shall also assess the effectiveness of the Internal Control System in light of
business growth and diversification and changes occurred in the Bank.
Accordingly, the Board is pleased to provide the Statement on Internal Control (“Statement”) that was prepared in accordance with the “Prakas on Internal Control
of Bank and Financial Institution” issued by the National Bank of Cambodia which outlines the processes to be adopted by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system of the Bank.
environment. It has extended the responsibilities of the Audit Committee of
the Board (“ACB”) to include the assessment of internal controls through the
Internal Audit function.

RESPONSIBILITY
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility in establishing a sound risk
management framework and internal control system. The Board is of the view
that the risk management framework and internal control system are designed to
manage the Bank’s risks within an acceptable risk appetite, rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the policies, goals and objectives of the Bank. It can
therefore only provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness
against material misstatement of management and financial information or
against financial losses and fraud.
The Board has established appropriate control structure and process for
identifying, evaluating, monitoring, and managing significant risks that may affect
the achievement of business objectives. The control structure and process which
have been instituted throughout the Bank are updated and reviewed from time to
time to suit the changes in the business environment and this on-going process
has been in place for the whole financial year under review and up to the date of
approval of this statement for inclusion in the annual report.
The role of Management includes:
• Identifying and evaluating the risks faced, and the achievement of business
objectives and strategies;
• Formulating relevant policies and procedures to manage these risks;
• Designing, implementing, and monitoring a sound system of internal control;
• Implementing the policies approved by the Board; and
• Reporting timely to the Board of any changes to the risks and corrective
actions taken.

•

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness
of risk management to the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”). The
effectiveness of the risk management system is monitored and evaluated by
the Credit & Risk Management function, on an ongoing basis. The RMC assists
the Board to review and oversee the effectiveness of the risk management of
the Bank, wherein the Credit & Risk Management function would facilitate
the continuous monitoring and evaluating of the Bank’s risk management
system. Any approved policy and framework formulated to identify, measure
and monitor various risk components would be reviewed and recommended
by the RMC to the Board. Additionally, the RMC reviews and assesses the
adequacy of these risks management policies and ensures infrastructure,
resources and systems are emplaced for risk management.

•

The risk management function is strengthened with the Head, Credit &
Risk Management (“HCRM”), having oversight over the risk governance of
the Bank. The risk governance structure is aligned across the business units
through the streamlining of the risk frameworks, policies and organisation
structures in order to embed and enhance our risk management and risk
culture based on the Bank’s growth and expansion plans.

•

Risk management principles, policies, procedures and practices are updated
regularly to ensure relevance and compliance with current/applicable laws
and regulations, and are made available to all employees. The Bank also
adopted a whistle blowing policy, providing an avenue for employees to
report actual or suspected malpractice, misconduct or violations of the Bank’s
policies and regulations in a safe and confidential manner.

•

A written Management Control Policy (“MCP”) and Internal Control Policy
(“ICP”) from Management are in place. The MCP outlines the specific
responsibilities of the various parties i.e. the Management, the Internal Audit
Committee (“IAC”) and the ACB pertaining to internal control of the Bank.
The ICP is to create awareness among all the employees with regards to the
internal control components and the basic control policy of the Bank.

INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE
The key processes that the Board have established in reviewing the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system include the
following:
Risk Management Framework
• The Board has established an organisation structure with clearly defined lines
of responsibility, authority limits, and accountability aligned to business and
operations requirements which support the maintenance of a strong control
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•

The IAC is a management committee chaired by the CEO, comprising senior
level representatives from a broad range of business and support units of
the Bank. The IAC meets regularly to deliberate on the findings of all signed
audit and investigation reports and decide on the appropriate action required
to resolve audit issues covering all aspects of the Bank’s business and
operations. Where required, representatives from the parties being audited
are requested to attend the IAC meeting to enable more detailed deliberation
and speedy resolution of the matter at hand. Minutes of the IAC meeting are
then tabled to the ACB together with the audit reports. The IAC also follows
through on the actions required by the ACB.

•

The ACB meets on a scheduled basis to review the internal control issues
identified in reports prepared by Internal Audit, the External Auditors,
Regulatory Authorities and further evaluates the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Bank’s internal control system. The ACB has active oversight on
internal audit’s independence, scope of work and resources. It also reviews
the Internal Audit function, particularly the scope of the annual audit plan
and frequency of the internal audit activities. Minutes of the ACB meeting are
then tabled to the Board. The details of the activities undertaken by the ACB
are highlighted in the Audit Committee Report.

There are policies and procedures in place to ensure compliance with
internal control and the prescribed laws and regulations. These policies and
procedures are set out in the Bank’s circulars and are updated from time
to time in tandem with changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

•

An annual business plan and budget are submitted to the Board for approval.
Actual performances are reviewed against the targeted results on a monthly
basis allowing timely responses and corrective actions to be taken to mitigate
risks. The Board reviews regular reports from the management on the key
operating statistics, as well as legal and regulatory matters. The Board also
approves any changes or amendments to the Bank’s policies.

THE FINANCIALS

Assurance from Management
The Board has also received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
that the Bank’s risk management and internal control system are operating
adequately and effectively, in all material respects, based on the risk management
model adopted by the Bank.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

•

ABOUT US

A clearly defined framework with appropriate empowerment and authority
limits has been approved by the Board for acquisitions and disposals of assets,
awarding tenders, writing off operational and credit items, donations, as well
as approving general and operational expenses.

ACHIEVEMENTS

•

•

Various Executive Level Management Committees (ELCs) are also established
by Management to assist and support the various Board Committees to
oversee the core areas of business operations. These ELCs include the
Executive Committee, Management Credit Committee, Asset & Liability

OTHER
INFORMATION

Other Key Elements of Internal Control
The other key elements of the procedures established by the Board that provides
effective internal control include:

Recruitment and promotion policies/guidelines within the Bank are
established to ensure that appropriate persons of calibre are selected to
fill available positions. Formal training programmes either face-to-face or
through e-learning, semi and annual performance appraisals, and other
relevant procedures are in place to ensure that staff are adequately trained
and competent to enable them to discharge their duties and responsibilities
effectively. Proper guidelines are also drawn up for termination of staff.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Internal Audit Function
• The Internal Audit function includes undertaking regular reviews of the
Bank’s operations, the systems of internal control by performing regular
reviews of the business processes to examine and evaluate the adequacy and
efficiency of financial and operating controls and highlights significant risks
and non-compliance impacting the Bank. Where applicable, they provide
recommendations to improve on the effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance process. Management will follow through and review
the status of actions on recommendations made by the internal and external
auditors. Audit reviews are carried out on units that are identified premised
on a risk based approach, in line with the Bank’s objectives and policies in
the context of its evolving business and regulatory environment, taking into
consideration input of the senior management and the Board.

•

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Establishment of the three (3) lines of Defence concept – risk taking units,
risk control units, and internal audit. The risk taking units manage the dayto-day management of risks inherent in their business activities while the
risk control units are responsible for setting the risk management framework
and developing tools and methodologies. Complementing this is internal
audit, which provides independent assurance of the effectiveness of the risk
management approach.

Management Committee, IT Steering Committee and Staff Committee.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

•

There is an Anti-Fraud Framework implemented which provides broad
principles, strategy and policy for the Bank to adopt in relation to fraud in
order to promote high standard of integrity. The Framework establishes
robust and comprehensive programmes and controls for the Bank as well
as highlights the roles and responsibilities at every level for preventing and
responding to fraud.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

•
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REPORT
1

2

3

4

5. Obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice and to secure
the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary.
6. Convene meetings with internal and external auditors, without the
attendance of the executives, whenever deemed necessary.
In discharging the above functions, the ACB is also empowered by the Board to have:
• Necessary resources which are required to perform its duties.
• Full and unrestricted access to any information and documents relevant to its
activities.

B. DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES
The Audit Committee Members of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc:
1. Datuk R. Karunakaran (Chairman)
2. Spencer Lee (Member)
3. Hamirullah Boorhan (Member)
4. Pollie Sim (Member)

A. COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF REFERENC

The primary duties and responsibilities of the ACB with regards to the Maybank
Cambodia’s internal audit function, external auditors, financial reporting, related
party transactions, annual reporting and investigation are as follows:
1. Internal Audit
• Review the adequacy of the internal audit scope and plan, functions and
resources of the internal audit function, Internal Audit Charter and that it
has the necessary authority to carry out its work.
•

Review the internal audit reports and to ensure that appropriate and
prompt remedial action is taken by Management on lapses in controls or
procedures that are identified by internal audit.

•

Approve the appointment or termination of the Head of Internal Audit
and Heads of Department of Internal Audit.

•

Assess the performance of the internal audit staff; determine/approve the
remuneration and annual increment of the internal audit staff.

•

Take cognizance of resignation of internal audit staff and the reason for
resigning.

Composition
The Committee shall consist of at least (3) three members, appointed by the
Board from amongst its non-executive directors of the Bank:
1. The Chairman must be an independent director and at least an independent
person of the committee must be an expertise in finance and accounting, and
an independent person with expertise in legal issues and banking.
2. The Committee shall consist of at least (3) three members, with at least two
(2) non-executive directors appointed by the Board from amongst its nonexecutive directors of the Bank.
3. Where the Chairman is unable to attend the meeting, the members shall elect
a person among themselves as Chairman.
Meetings
1. Meetings shall be held at least once every quarterly, to coincide with the
Board of Directors meeting or at a frequency to be decided by the Committee.
At least once a year, the Committee shall meet with the external auditor
without the presence of executive directors.
2. The Committee will regulate its own procedure particularly with regard to
the calling of meetings, the notice to be given of such meetings, the voting
and proceedings of such meetings, the keeping of minutes, and, the custody,
production and inspection of such minutes.
3. Upon the request of the external auditor, a meeting is to be convened to
consider any matter that the auditor believes should be brought to the
attention of the directors and shareholders.
Quorum
The quorum shall be three (3), more than 50% of the total permanent members.
Secretary
The joint secretaries to the ACB are the Head of Corporate Affairs & Services and
the AVP, Group Corporate Secretarial.
Authority
The Committee is authorised by the Board to:
1. Investigate any activity or matter within its terms of reference.
2. Have the resources, which are required to perform its duties.
3. Have full and unrestricted access to any information and documents relevant
to its activities.
4. Have direct communication channels with external auditors, person(s) carrying
out the internal audit function or activity and senior management of the Bank.

2. External Audit
• Review the appointment and performance of external auditors, the
audit fee and any question of resignation or dismissal and to make
recommendations to the Board.
•

Assess the qualification, expertise, resources and effectiveness of the
external auditors.

•

Monitor the effectiveness of the external auditors’ performance and their
independence and objectivity.

•

Review the external auditors’ audit scope and plan, including any changes
to the planned scope of the audit plan.

•

Review major audit reports and findings raised by the external auditors
and Management’s responses, including the status of previous audit
recommendations.

•

Review the assistance given by the Bank’s officers to the external
auditors and any difficulties encountered in the course of the audit work,
including any restrictions on the scope of activities or access to required
information.

•

Approve non audit services provided by the external auditors.

3. Internal Control Systems
Review, appraise and report to the Board of Directors on:
•

The adequacy of the established policies, procedures and guidelines on
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C. ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING
THE YEAR
During the year under review, the Audit Committee in the discharge of its
duties and functions carried out the following activities:
Attendance of meetings
A total of five (5) meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2013. The details of attendance of each of the member at the Committee
meetings held during the year are as follows:

4. Reviewed the monthly audit performance reports to ensure the adequacy,
performance, progress, achievement, coverage of the internal audit
functions and noted the reasons for the resignation of audit staff.

1

2

3

4

No. of meetings
attended during the
period under review

6. Assess the performance of the internal auditors; determine/approve the
remuneration and annual increment of the internal auditors.
7. Take cognizance of resignation of internal audit staff and the reason for
resigning.
8. Instructed the conduct of investigation into any activity or matter within
its terms of reference.

10. Reviewed the minutes of meeting of the Internal Audit committee for an
overview of the deliberation and remedial actions taken by Management
on the control lapses raised by internal auditors.

Datuk R. Karunakaran
(Chairman)
- Appointed on 12/10/2012
- Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

Mr. Spencer Lee (member)
- Appointed on 23/3/2012
- Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

Mr. Hamirullah Boorhan (member)
- Appointed on 23/3/2012
- Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

4/5

External Audit
12. Assess the qualification, expertise, resources and effectiveness of the
external auditors.

Mr. Michael Foong Seong Yew
- Appointed on 10.3.2013 and Resigned on 28
February 2014
- Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

4/4

13. Monitor the effectiveness of the external auditors’ performance and their
independence and objectivity.

The Audit Committee consists of two (2) Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
The Audit Committee meets on a scheduled basis. The Chief Executive Officer

ABOUT US

5. Reviewed the audit reports issued by regulatory authorities,
Management’s responses to the Regulators’ recommendations and the
remedial actions taken to rectify the weaknesses detected.

9. Reviewed the Audit Committee Report and Statement on Internal Control.
Composition and name of committee member

ACHIEVEMENTS

3. Reviewed the status report on Management efforts to rectify the
outstanding audit issues to ensure control lapses are addressed.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

8. Other Matters
Receive and consider reports relating to the perpetuation and prevention of
fraud. Other matters as the Committee considers appropriate or as authorised
by the Board of Directors.

2. Reviewed the internal audit reports, audit recommendations and
Management’s responses to these recommendations.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

7. Investigation
Instruct the conduct of investigation into any activity or matter within its
terms of reference.

Internal Audit (IA)
1. Reviewed the annual internal audit plan for the financial year 2013 to
ensure adequate scope, coverage of the activities of the Bank and the
resource requirements of internal audit to carry out its functions.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

6. Annual Report
Prepare an audit committee report at the end of each financial year and this
report will be set out clearly in the Annual Report.

The Audit Committee also meets to discuss and review the annual audited
financial statements of the Bank. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the
Head of Finance & Strategy are invited to attend these meetings, together
with the External Auditors.

Financial Reporting
11. Reviewed the annual audit financial statements of the Bank to ensure that
the financial reporting and disclosure requirements are in compliance with
accounting standards, with special focus placed on changes in accounting
policy as well as significant and unusual events/transactions.

14. Review the external auditors’ audit scope and plan, including any changes
to the planned scope of the audit plan.
15. Review major audit reports and findings raised by the external auditors
and Management’s responses, including the status of previous audit
recommendations.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

5. Related Party Transactions
Review any related party transactions and conflict of interest situations that
may arise within the Bank including transactions, procedures or courses of
conducts that may raise questions of Management’s integrity.

In addition to the scheduled meetings, the members of the Audit Committee
also had one (1) session with the External Auditors without the presence of
the Management as required.

THE FINANCIALS

4. Financial Reporting
Review the quarterly and year-end financial statements focusing on:• Any changes in accounting policy and practices.
• Significant and unusual events.
• Compliance with applicable Financial Reporting Standards and other legal
and regulatory requirements.

and the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) are invited to attend the meetings. The
External Auditors are also invited to discuss their management letters, Audit
Planning Memorandum and other matters deemed relevant.

OTHER
INFORMATION

internal control systems.
The effectiveness of internal control systems and the internal and/
or external auditor’s evaluation of these systems and in particular the
external auditor’s management letter and management’s response.

•

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT
16. Review the assistance given by the Bank’s officers to the external
auditors and any difficulties encountered in the course of the audit work,
including any restrictions on the scope of activities or access to required
information.
17. Approve non audit services provided by the external auditors.

During the period under review, the following activities were carried out by IA:
1.

2.

D. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. has established in-house Internal Audit (IA) to
assist the Board of Directors to oversee that Management has in place a
sound risk management, internal control and governance system. The total
costs incurred for maintaining the IA function for 2013 was approximately
USD150,636 comprising mainly salaries, travelling/accommodation expenses,
IT equipment and subsistence allowances for audit assignments.

3.
4.
5.
6.

The internal audit function is guided by its Audit Charter and reports
functionally to the ACB of the Bank and administratively to the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), and is independent of the activities or operations of
other operating units. The principal responsibility of IA is to undertake regular
and systematic reviews to evaluate the effectiveness of risk management
frameworks and the internal control systems to provide reasonable
assurance that such frameworks and systems continue to operate efficiently
and effectively. The purpose of IA is to add value and improve the Bank's
operations by providing independent, objective assurance and consulting
activities which are designed to evaluate and enhance the risk management,
control and governance processes in order to assist management to achieve
its corporate goals. It helps the Bank accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness
of risk management, control and governance processes. In order for IA to
perform its functions effectively, the auditors are continuously sent for
training to equip themselves with requisite product knowledge and skills
especially in the areas of risk management, credit and banking operations.
Audit is set up by the Board of Directors of the Bank to be staffed with
adequate and qualified audit personnel to perform the audit functions for
the Bank. The Head, Internal Audit and the staff of Audit are authorised to
carry out a comprehensive program of auditing within the Bank and initiate
audits, examinations and inspections at such time as he may determine and
without advance notice, with respect to any of the Bank's activities as deemed
necessary.
The audit reports which provide the results of the audit conducted in terms
of the risk management of the unit, operating effectiveness of internal
controls, compliance with internal and regulatory requirements and overall
management of the unit are submitted to the respective ACB for their review.
Key control issues, significant risks and recommendations are highlighted,
along with Management’s responses and action plans for improvement and/or
rectification, where applicable. This enables the ACB to execute its oversight
function by forming an opinion on the adequacy of measures undertaken by
Management.
The International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) issued by The
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), the Practice Advisories issued by the IIA,
the National Bank of Cambodia’s Prakas on the Internal Control of Bank &
Financial Institution and Governance in Banks & Financial Institution are used
where relevant as authoritative guides for internal auditing procedures.
Audit is committed to creating a working environment that promotes
organizational excellence by maintaining high ethical standards built into the
work culture of the staff of Audit. The Bank's Code of Ethics and the Code of
Ethics issued by the IIA would be the standard 'torch bearer’ to be adopted by
Audit as a guide for the internal auditors in conducting the auditing practice.

7.
8.
9.
10.

Developed an annual audit plan premised on a risk-based approach and
in line with the Bank’s business expansion plan, taking into consideration
input from Senior Management and the ACB.
Executed independent assurance role through programmed reviews
of units and operations identified in the annual audit plan, to evaluate
and improve the effectiveness of risk management, internal control and
governance processes.
Reviewed the adequacy and appropriateness of the internal controls and
risk exposures in the new products/financing packages.
Issue reports to the IAC and the ACB summarizing the results of audit
activities.
Ascertained the extent of compliance with established policies and
procedures and statutory requirements.
Besides the risk assurance activities, Group IA provide support by
conducting audits on computer hardware, operating and application
systems as well as the information communication technology (ICT)
network of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
Recommended improvements and enhancements to the existing system
of internal control and work procedures/processes.
Investigate on suspected fraudulent activities within the Bank and report
to the IAC and the ACB the results of such investigations.
Maintain a coterie of professional audit staff with adequate knowledge,
skills and experience to meet the changing needs of the Bank.
Preparation of Audit Committee Report and Statement on Internal
Control for the Company’s Annual Report for Financial Year ended 31
December 2013.
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RISK
MANAGEMENT

Facilitated training and accreditation of the Bank’s core credit
personnel

Compliance Risk – risk to a bank’s earnings or capital arising from violations of,
or non-compliance with laws, rules, regulations, prescribed practices, internal
policies and procedures, or ethical standards.

•

Undertook review exercise of the Bank’s Business Continuity Plan to
improve preparedness in case of disasters and operational disruption

Seven Broad Principles of Risk Management

•

Enhance risk culture by embarking on a Risk Management road show
to promote risk awareness across the organization

The following define the Bank’s key principles on accountability, independence,
structure, and scope:

•

Enhanced risk management tools and methodologies and governance
infrastructure in all the material risk areas

1.

The Bank’s risk management approach is premised on three lines of defense:
Risk Taking Units, Risk Control Units (Risk Management) and Internal Audit.

•

Established internal process to ensure that the Bank’s capital is
adequate for its risk taking activities

2.

Risk Taking Units are responsible for the day-to-day management of risks
inherent in their business activities. Risk Management is responsible
for setting the risk management framework and developing tools and
methodologies for the identification, measurement, monitoring, control, and
pricing of risks while Internal Audit provides independent assurance of the
effectiveness of the risk management approach.

3.

Risk Management provides risk oversight for the major risk categories
including credit, market, liquidity, operational and other industry-specific risk
types

4.

Risk Management ensures that core risk policies of the Bank are consistent,
sets the risk appetite and facilitates the implementation of an integrated riskadjusted measurement framework.

Interest Rate Risk –exposure to adverse movements in the interest/benchmark
rates arising from repricing risk, basis risk, yield curve risk, and optionality

5.

Risk Management is functionally and organizationally independent of
business sectors and other risk-takers in the Bank.

Funding Liquidity Risk – risk that a bank will not be able to meet efficiently both
expected and unexpected current and future cash flow and collateral needs
without affecting either daily operations or the financial condition of the firm.

6.

The Board through the RMC maintains overall responsibility for risk oversight
within the Bank.

7.

Risk Management is responsible for the execution of various risk policies and
related decisions of the Board.

The Bank considers the following risk factors as material:
Credit Risk – risk of losses arising from failure of a counterparty to meet its
repayment obligations.
Credit Concentration Risk – another element of Credit Risk that the Bank
considers as material. It refers to the concentration to any single exposure or
group of exposures that has the potential to produce losses large enough to
undermine the financial health of a bank.

Operational Risk – risk resulting from inadequate or failed processes, people,
systems, or from external events.
Business/Strategic Risk – risk of current or prospective impact on the Bank’s
earnings, capital, reputation or market standing arising from changes in the
operating environment, adverse strategic decisions; improper implementation
of decisions; or, lack of responsiveness to industry, economic or technological
changes

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

•

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Established a Risk Appetite Framework that defines the Bank’s risk
taking capacity while pursuing its strategic objectives.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

•

Risk Management Approach and Strategy
Building Risk Management capability is one of the key strategic initiatives of the
Bank. The Bank continually enhances its integrated risk management approach
by aligning strategies, policies, processes, people, and systems towards effective
management of enterprise-wide risks in line with enhancing shareholder value.

OTHER
INFORMATION

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2013

Reputational Risk - risk that the Bank’s reputation is damaged by one or more
than one reputation event, as reflected from negative publicity about the Bank’s
business practices, conduct or financial condition. Such negative publicity,
whether true or not, may impair public confidence in the Bank, result in costly
litigation, or lead to a decline in its customer base, business or revenue.

THE FINANCIALS

MA. AURORA RUIZ
Head, Credit & Risk Management
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ACHIEVEMENTS

ABOUT US

“In 2013, Credit and Risk Management managed to embed Risk
Management deeper into the Bank’s business strategy and
operations and promoted risk awareness across the organization”.
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RISK
MANAGEMENT
Risk Management has the following strategic objectives:
•

Strengthen its collaboration as a strategic business partner across the Bank

•

Align the Bank’s risk management practices with best practices as prescribed by the Group but with customization based on local regulatory requirements and
leading market practices

•

Entrench the right risk culture behaviour and risk awareness across the Bank

•

Optimize capital and liquidity practices through proper balance sheet management

•

Improve risk processes and productivity

•

Training and development
Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the Bank’s ultimate governing body, which has overall risk oversight responsibility. It approves the risk management framework, risk
appetite, plans and performance targets for the Bank and its principal operating subsidiaries, the appointment of senior officers, the delegation of authorities for
credit and other risks, and the establishment of effective control procedures.
Board-Level Committees
Risk Management Committee (RMC)
The RMC is a dedicated Board Committee responsible for the risk oversight function within the Bank. It is principally responsible to review/approve/endorse key
risk frameworks and policies for the various risks.
Executive Level Committees
Credit Committee (CC)
The CC is tasked by the Board to review fresh or additional loan applications subject to pre-determined authority limits and credit underwriting standards.
Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
ALCO is primarily responsible for the development and implementation of broad strategies and policies for managing the consolidated balance sheet and
associated risks.
Executive Committee (EXCO)
EXCO is responsible for the management of all material risks from an enterprise-wide perspective.

The Bank will remain vigilant over the level of compliance, which includes AML/CFT rules and measures, at the business/support sectors. Compliance review and
thematic examinations on the Bank’s operation will be carried out as usual to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, regulatory guidelines and
standards. This approach complements the business/support sector in achieving a good rating from internal/external audits and regulators. It is the Bank Compliance’s
practice to take an advisory and consultative approach during these reviews with minimal disruption to the business operations.
Compliance will also reinforce its involvement in specific compliance and AML/CFT training and certification programs to remain robust. We conduct learning initiatives
and awareness programs throughout the year to mitigate any compliance gaps and embed a compliance culture across the Bank.

MESSAGE TO
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ACHIEVEMENTS
BUSINESS
REVIEW

In demonstrating our commitment to combat money laundering and financing of terrorism activities, we have embedded a Compliance Officer at Maybank (Cambodia)
Plc. who is responsible to establish, drive and implement the Bank’s compliance strategies, direction, priorities and initiatives to facilitate the Bank’s compliance with the
relevant applicable local and foreign laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards as well as internal policies and procedures governing its operations. While the Group
Compliance is tasked of ensuring that the Group as a whole complies with applicable laws, rules, regulations and regulatory guidelines.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

The Bank continues to adhere to the requirements of relevant laws, rules, regulations and regulatory guidelines. The Bank’s commitment is clearly demonstrated through
the establishment of strong compliance policies and guidelines, which includes AML/CFT practices, to ensure that the Bank’s non-compliance risks are effectively
managed. Such measures help lower the cost of doing business arising from regulatory penalties, AML/CFT investigations and cases, as well as protecting the Bank’s
integrity and reputation.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

The Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. Board and its Senior Management continue
to demonstrate their commitment towards effective compliance and AntiMoney Laundering and Counter Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) programs.

CORPORATE
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COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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THE BANK
Maybank in Cambodia was established since 1993 and operated as Phnom
Penh Branch (“the Branch”) of Malayan Banking Berhad (“MBB”), a bank
incorporated in Malaysia.
On 2 April 2012, the Branch was incorporated as Maybank (Cambodia)
Plc., a public limited company and a subsidiary of MBB. The Bank is duly
incorporated under the Cambodian Law on Commercial Enterprises and
licensed under the regulations of the National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC”)
with a registered capital of US$50 million (KHR200 billion).
The Bank is engaged in the provision of comprehensive banking and related
financial services in the Kingdom of Cambodia in accordance with Banking
License No. 02 issued by the NBC for an indefinite period.
The Bank’s registered office address is at No. 4B, Street 114 (Kramoun
Sar), Sangkat Phsar Thmey, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances, which would render the values attributed to the current
assets in the financial statements of the Bank misleading or inappropriate
in any material respect.

VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances that have arisen which would render adherence to the
existing method of valuation of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements of the Bank misleading or inappropriate in any material
respect.

US$

Profit before tax

11,757,667

7,600,171

Income tax expense

(1,978,157)

(1,482,822)

9,779,510

6,117,349

39,069,143

24,438,809

SHARE CAPITAL
The total share capital of the Bank as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is
US$50,000,000 (KHR200 billion).

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

No significant events occurred after the balance sheet date requiring
disclosure or adjustment other than those already disclosed in the
accompanying notes to the financial statements.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The members of the Board of Directors during the period and at the date
of this report are:
Cheah Teik Seng

Independent non-executive Chairman

Spencer Lee Tien Chye

Independent non-executive director

Datuk R. Karunakaran

Independent non-executive director

Hamirullah Boorhan

Non-independent non-executive director

BAD AND DOUBTFUL LOANS AND ADVANCES

Lee Tien Poh

Non-independent executive director, Chief

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances, which would render the amount written off for bad loans
and advances, or the amount of allowance for loan losses in the financial
statements of the Bank, inadequate to any material extent.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no material movements to or from reserves and provisions
during the period other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

Before the financial statements of the Bank were drawn up, the Directors
took reasonable steps to ascertain that actions had been taken in relation
to writing off of bad loans and advances and the provision of allowance
for loan losses, and satisfied themselves that all known bad loans and
advances had been written off and adequate allowance had been made for
bad and doubtful loans and advances.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

US$

OUR
LEADERSHIP

For the period from
2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

Executive Officer
Pollie Sim Sio Hoong

Non-independent non-executive director,
appointed on 28 February 2014

Foong Seong Yew

Non-independent non-executive director,

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

For the year ended
31 December 2013

THE FINANCIALS

The financial results of the Bank for the year then ended were as follows:

At the date of this report, there is:
• no charge on the assets of the Bank which has arisen since the end
of the period which secures the liabilities of any other person; and
• no contingent liability in respect of the Bank that has arisen since
the end of the period other than in the ordinary course of banking
business.
No contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable, or is
likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the
end of the period which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may have
a material effect on the ability of the Bank to meet its obligations as and
when they become due.

appointed on 10 March 2013 and resigned
on 28 February 2014
OTHER
INFORMATION

FINANCIAL RESULTS

KHR’000 equivalent

Before the financial statements of the Bank were drawn up, the Directors
took reasonable steps to ensure that any current assets, other than debts,
which were unlikely to be realized in the ordinary course of business
at their value as shown in the accounting records of the Bank had been
written down to an amount which they might be expected to realize.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

There is no significant change in the principal activities of the Bank during
the year.

Net profit for the year

CURRENT ASSETS

ACHIEVEMENTS

The Board of Directors of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. (“the Bank”) presents
its report and the Bank’s financial statements as at 31 December 2013 and
for the year ended.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUDITORS
The auditors, Ernst & Young (Cambodia) Ltd., expressed willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
During and at the end of the period, no arrangement existed, to which the Bank was a party, whose object was to enable the Directors of the Bank to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any other corporate body.
No Director of the Bank has received or become entitled to receive any benefit by reason of a contract made by the Bank or with a firm which the
Director is a member, or with a Bank which the Director has a material financial interest other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 31
December 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the period then ended. In preparing these financial statements, the Board of Directors
oversees preparation of these financial statements by management who is required to:
•
adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates and then apply them consistently;
•
comply with regulations and guidelines issued by the NBC and Cambodian Accounting Standards or, if there has been any departure in the interests
of fair presentation, ensure this has been appropriately disclosed, explained and quantified in the financial statements;
•
maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls;
•
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that the Bank will continue operations in the
foreseeable future; and
•
set overall policies for the Bank, ratify all decisions and actions by the management that have a material effect on the operations and
performance of the Bank, and ensure they have been properly reflected in the financial statements.
Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial
position of the Bank and to ensure that the accounting records comply with the registered accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Bank and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Board of Directors confirms that the Bank has complied with these requirements in preparing the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We hereby approve the accompanying financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2013,
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended in accordance with Cambodian Accounting Standards and relevant regulations and
guidelines issued by the National Bank of Cambodia.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Cheah Teik Seng
Chairman

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
4 March 2014

Lee Tien Poh
oh
h
Chief Executive
ecuttive Offi
O ficer
Of

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’
REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. (“the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December
2013 and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
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81

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

ACHIEVEMENTS

Auditors’ responsibility

ABOUT US

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Cambodian Accounting Standards
and relevant regulations and guidelines issued by the National Bank of Cambodia, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2013, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Cambodian Accounting Standards and relevant regulations and guidelines issued
by the National Bank of Cambodia.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Opinion

Ernst & Young (Cambodia) Ltd.
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Auditors
Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Maria Cristina M. Calimbas
Partner

OTHER
INFORMATION
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BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2013

2013
Notes

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

ASSETS

Cash on hand

4

28,480,051

113,777,804

16,703,427

66,730,191

Balances with the National Bank of
Cambodia

4

122,591,679

489,753,758

134,129,836

535,848,695

Balances with other banks

5

41,108,776

164,229,560

29,866,656

119,317,291

Amounts due from Parent Company

6

323,792

1,293,549

185,405

740,693

Amounts due from affiliates

7

618,190

2,469,669

114,967

459,293

Loans and advances

8

261,429,845

1,044,412,231

227,894,522

910,438,615

Property and equipment

9

4,363,442

17,431,951

3,009,151

12,021,558

Software costs

10

52,763

210,788

23,832

95,209

Deferred tax asset

13

1,004,013

4,011,032

322,740

1,289,346

Other assets

11

1,605,820

6,415,251

1,490,787

5,955,694

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits from customers

12

296,683,606

1,185,251,006

212,133,150

847,471,934

Deposits from other banks

12

31,978,963

127,755,957

93,101,760

371,941,531

Amounts due to Parent Company

6

58,964,025

235,561,280

47,458,549

189,596,903

Provision for income tax

13

4,024,825

16,079,176

2,332,531

9,318,461

Other liabilities

14

4,030,093

16,100,222

2,597,984

10,378,947

395,681,512

1,580,747,641

357,623,974

1,428,707,776

50,000,000

199,750,000

50,000,000

199,750,000

Retained earnings

15,896,859

63,507,952

6,117,349

24,438,809

Total shareholder’s equity

65,896,859

263,257,952

56,117,349

224,188,809

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

Total liabilities
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Share capital

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

16

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these financial statements
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US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Interest income

17

23,093,084

92,256,871

14,538,532

58,081,435

Interest expense

18

(4,484,223)

(17,914,471)

(3,050,026)

(12,184,854)

18,608,861

74,342,400

11,488,506

45,896,581

3,043,093

12,157,157

1,988,914

7,945,712

(141,979)

(567,206)

(140,142)

(559,867)

2,901,114

11,589,951

1,848,772

7,385,845

47,832

191,089

11,831

47,265

21,557,807

86,123,440

13,349,109

53,329,691

Net interest income
19

Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income
Other income
Net operating income
General and administration
expenses

20

(10,055,627)

(40,172,230)

(5,327,562)

(21,283,610)

Provision for loan losses

8

(413,787)

(1,653,080)

(614,437)

(2,454,676)

669,274

2,673,750

193,061

771,279

11,757,667

46,971,880

7,600,171

30,362,684

(1,978,157)

(7,902,737)

(1,482,822)

(5,923,875)

9,779,510

39,069,143

6,117,349

24,438,809

Recovery from written-off loans
Profit before tax

OUR
LEADERSHIP
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Net profit for the year/period

13
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Income tax expense

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these financial statements
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Fee and commission income
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Notes

ACHIEVEMENTS

For the period from
2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December 2013
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for the year ended 31 December 2013
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STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Share capital

Retained earnings

Total

US$

US$

US$

50,000,000

6,117,349

56,117,349

-

9,779,510

9,779,510

Balance as at 31 December 2013

50,000,000

15,896,859

65,896,859

KHR'000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

199,750,000

63,507,952

263,257,952

30,000,000

-

30,000,000

3,080,688

-

3,080,688

16,919,312

-

16,919,312

-

6,117,349

6,117,349

Balance as at 31 December 2012

50,000,000

6,117,349

56,117,349

KHR'000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

199,750,000

24,438,809

224,188,809

Balance as at 1 January 2013
Net income for the year

Balance as at 2 April 2012, transferred from the Branch
Conversion from retained earnings of the Branch
Increase in share capital
Net income for the period

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
For the year ended
31 December 2013
Notes

For the period from
2 April 2012 to 31 December 2012
KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

21

(2,272,830)

(9,079,957)

(7,080,622)

(28,287,083)

Property and equipment

9

(2,562,547)

(10,237,375)

(856,391)

(3,421,282)

Software costs

10

(48,476)

(193,662)

(15,989)

(63,876)

6,050

24,169

-

-

(2,604,973)

(10,406,868)

(872,380)

(3,485,158)

Net cash used in operating
activities

ABOUT US

US$

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

for the year ended 31 December 2013

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of property
and equipment
Net cash used in investing
activities

ACHIEVEMENTS

Acquisition of:

6

10,000,000

39,950,000

-

-

Increase in share capital

16

-

-

16,919,312

67,592,651

Net cash generated from
financing activities

10,000,000

39,950,000

16,919,312

67,592,651

Increase in cash and cash
equivalents

5,122,197

20,463,175

8,966,310

35,820,410

140,499,676

561,296,206

131,533,366

525,475,796

145,621,873

581,759,381

140,499,676

561,296,206

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year/period

THE FINANCIALS
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4

The attached notes 1 to 26 form part of these financial statements
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Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year
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Borrowings from Parent Company

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Cash flows from financing
activities
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Establishment and operations

Maybank in Cambodia was established since 1993 and operated as
Phnom Penh Branch (“the Branch”) of Malayan Banking Berhad (“Parent
Company” or “MBB”), a bank incorporated in Malaysia.
On 2 April 2012, the Branch was incorporated as Maybank (Cambodia)
Plc., (“the Bank”) a public limited company and a subsidiary of the
MBB. The Bank is duly incorporated under the Cambodian Law on
Commercial Enterprises and licensed under the regulations of the
National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC”) with a registered capital of US$50
million equivalent to KHR 200 billion.
The Bank is engaged in the provision of comprehensive banking and
related financial services in the Kingdom of Cambodia in accordance
with Banking License No. 02 issued by the NBC for an indefinite period.
Share capital
The share capital of the Bank as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is
US$50,000,000 (KHR 200 billion).
Board of Directors
The members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date
of this report are:
Cheah Teik Seng

Independent non-executive Chairman

Spencer Lee Tien Chye

Independent non-executive director

Datuk R. Karunakaran

Independent non-executive director

Hamirullah Boorhan

Non-independent non-executive director

Lee Tien Poh

Non-independent executive director/
Chief Executive Officer

Pollie Sim Sio Hoong

Non-independent non-executive director,
appointed on 28 February 2014

Foong Seong Yew

Non-independent non-executive
director, appointed on 10 March 2013
and resigned on 28 February 2014

Location
The Bank’s registered office address is at No. 4B, St. 114, (Kramoun
Sar) Sangkat Phsar Thmey, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of
Cambodia. As at 31 December 2013, the Bank has a total of sixteen
(16) branches located in Phnom Penh, Siem Reap, Sihanoukville,
Battambang, Kampong Cham and Banteay Meanchey.
Employees
As at 31 December 2013, the Bank has a total of 291 employees (2012:
191 employees).
Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors on 4 March 2014.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation
2.1.1

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Cambodian Accounting Standards
(“CAS”) and the guidelines of the NBC on the
preparation and presentation of financial statements.
The accompanying financial statements, including their
utilization, are not designed for those who are not
informed about the Kingdom of Cambodia’s accounting
principles, procedures and practices and furthermore

are not intended to present the financial position and
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with
accounting principles and practices generally accepted
in countries other than the Kingdom of Cambodia.
The accounting policies set out below have been
consistently applied by the Bank.
2.1.2 Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared based on
the historical cost convention.
2.1.3 Fiscal year
The Bank’s fiscal year starts on 1 January and ends
on 31 December. The initial fiscal period covered the
financial period from 2 April 2012 (local incorporation
date) to 31 December 2012 (“the period”) for purpose
of presenting corresponding figures.
2.1.4 Functional and presentation currency
The national currency of Cambodia is the Khmer Riel
(“KHR”). However, the Bank transacts and maintains
its accounting records primarily in United States
dollar (“US$”). Management has determined the
US$ to be the Bank’s measurement and presentation
currency as it reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances of the Bank. This
is in accordance with Prakas No. B7-07-164 dated 13
December 2007.
Transactions in foreign currencies (“FC”) are translated
into US$ at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than US$ at the balance sheet date
are translated into US$ at the rates of exchange ruling
at that date. Exchange differences arising on translation
are recognized in the income statement.
2.1.5 Translation of US$ into KHR
The translation of the US$ amounts into KHR is
presented in the financial statements to comply with
the Cambodian Law on Corporate Accounts, their Audit
and the Accounting Profession dated 8 July 2002 and
relevant Prakas of NBC, using the closing exchange
rate of KHR 3,995: US$1 ruling at the reporting date
(2012: KHR 3,995: US$1), as announced by NBC. Such
translation should not be construed as a representation
that the US$ amounts represent, or have been or could
be converted into KHR at that or any other rate.
2.2 Significant accounting judgments and estimates
In applying accounting policies, management has used its
judgment and made estimates in determining the amounts
recognized in the financial statements, as follows:
2.2.1 Operating lease
The Bank has entered into lease on premises used for
its operations. The Bank has determined, based on the
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the lease
agreements (i.e., the lease does not transfer ownership
of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term
and lease term is not for the major part of the asset’s
economic life), the lessor retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties.
2.2.2 Functional currency
CAS 21 requires management to use its judgment to
determine the entity’s functional currency such that it
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions that are
relevant to the entity. In making this judgment, the
Bank considers the following:
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

For cash flow statement purposes, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and bank balances, demand
deposits and short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less when
purchased, and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

2.2 Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)
2.2.2 Functional currency (continued)
a) the currency that mainly influences prices for
financial instruments and services (this will often
be the currency in which prices for its financial
instruments and services are denominated and
settled);

c) the currency in which receipts from operating
activities are usually retained.
2.2.3 Allowance for loan losses
When preparing the financial statements, the quality
of loans and advances is reviewed and assessed to
determine their classification and level of allowance for
loan losses, as more fully disclosed in Note 2.3.5.

Loans are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Recoveries of loans and advances
previously provided for decrease the amount of the
provision for loan losses in the income statement.

2.2.4 Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax
losses and temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
income together with future tax planning strategies.

Loans and advances classified as substandard, doubtful
or loss are considered as non-performing loans.

•

significant negative industry or economic trends.

2.2.6 Estimated useful lives of property and equipment,
and software costs
The Bank estimates the useful lives of its property
and equipment, and software costs. This estimate is
reviewed periodically to ensure that the period of
depreciation and amortization are consistent with the
expected pattern of economic benefits from the items
of property and equipment, investment properties and
software costs.
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
2.3.1 Change in accounting policies

Number of days past due

Allowance percentage
per NBC

per Bank

Less than 30 days

1%

1%

Special mention

30 days or more but less than
90 days

3%

3%

Substandard

90 days or more but less than
180 days

20%

100%

Doubtful

180 days or more but less than
360 days

50%

100%

Loss

360 days or more

100%

100%

General
allowance
Normal
Specific
allowance

OUR
LEADERSHIP

significant changes in the manner of use of the
acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
and

Classification

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

•

The allowance is based on a percentage of total
outstanding loans and advances (including accrued
interest), net of interest-in-suspense as follows:

THE FINANCIALS

significant underperformance relative to expected
historical or projected future operating results;

The Bank follows the mandatory credit classification
required by Prakas No. B7-09-074 dated 25 February
2009, which is to classify their loan portfolio into five
classes. The Prakas also requires that minimum general
and specific allowances be provided depending on loan
classification.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Allowance for loan losses is made with regard to
specific risks and relates to those loans and advances
that have been individually reviewed and specifically
identified as special mention, sub-standard, doubtful or
loss. In addition, a general allowance is also maintained
for loans classified as normal.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

2.3.5 Allowance for loan losses

2.2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

•

ACHIEVEMENTS

All loans and advances to customers are stated in the
balance sheet at the amount of principal and accrued
interest receivable (net of interest-in-suspense), less
any amounts written off, and allowance for loan losses.
Short-term loans are those with a repayment date
within one year from the date the loan was advanced.
Long-term loans are those with a final repayment date
of more than one year from the date the loan was
advanced.

ABOUT US

2.3.4 Loans and advances

b) the currency in which funds from financing
activities are generated; and

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less
costs to sell calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
The value in use calculation is based on a discounted
cash flow model. The Bank assesses impairment on
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
be recoverable. The factors that the Bank considers
important which could trigger an impairment review
include the following:

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

2.3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

The accounting policies and methods of calculation
applied by the Bank are consistently applied and there
were no changes during the year.
2.3.2 Segment information
The Bank operates within one business segment,
commercial banking, and within one geographical
segment, the Kingdom of Cambodia.

OTHER
INFORMATION

2.
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as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.6 Allowance for loan losses (continued)
The Bank provides additional specific allowance beyond
what is required by the Prakas to more fully reflect the
known financial condition of the borrowers to the Bank.
Interest-in-suspense accruing to non-performing loans
is not considered for purposes of the Bank’s loan loss
analysis.
An uncollectible loan or portion of a loan classified as
bad is written off after taking into consideration the
realizable value of the collateral, if any, when in the
judgment of the management, there is no prospect of
recovery.
In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into
other credit-related commitments including loan
commitments, letters of credit and guarantees. The
accounting policy and provision methodology are similar
to originated loans as disclosed above. Allowance is
raised against other credit related commitments when
losses are considered probable.
2.3.8 Other assets
Other receivables included in other assets are carried
at anticipated realizable values. An estimate is made
for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding
amounts as at the balance sheet date.
2.3.9 Property and equipment
(i) Items of property and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an item of property
comprises major components having different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items of property and equipment.
(ii) Depreciation of property and equipment is charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the individual
assets at the following rates:
Office equipment

2.3.10 Software costs
Software costs that are paid for by the Bank are stated
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses, if any. Software costs are amortized on a
straight-line method basis at the rate of 20% per
annum.
2.3.11 Deposits from customers and other banks

2.3.7 Other credit-related commitments

Leasehold improvements

(vii)Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior
years is recorded where there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognized for the asset no
longer exist or have decreased. The reversal is
recognized to the extent of the carrying amount of
the asset that would have been determined (net of
amortization and depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognized. The reversal is recognized in
the income statement immediately.

20%
10% - 25%

Furniture and fittings

20%

Motor vehicles

25%

(iii) Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of
property and equipment that has already been
recognized is added to the carrying amount of the
asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed
standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the Bank. All other subsequent expenditure
is recognized as an expense in the year in which it
is incurred.
(iv) Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property and equipment
are determined as the difference between the
estimated net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets and are recognized in the
income statement on the date of retirement or
disposal.
(v) Fully depreciated property and equipment are
retained in the financial statements until disposed
of or written off.
(vi) The carrying amounts of property and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when there is an
indication that the assets might be impaired.
Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying
values of the assets with their recoverable
amounts. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement immediately.

Deposits from customers and other banks are stated at
placement value.
2.3.12 Other liabilities
Other liabilities are stated at cost.
2.3.13 Provisions for liabilities
Provisions for liabilities are recognized when the
Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the
amount of the provision is the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
2.3.14 Income tax
(i) Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the
current and prior periods are measured at the
amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted at the balance sheet date.
(ii) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided using the balance
sheet liability method on temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for
financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for
all taxable temporary differences, except where
the deferred income tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which these differences can
be utilized, except where the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction which at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.
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(ii) Deferred income tax (continued)
The carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred income tax assets to be recovered.
2.3.15 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally
the case with master netting agreements, and the
related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the
balance sheet.

Related parties, as defined in Articles 49 and 50 of the
Cambodian Law on Banking and Financial Institutions,
include the following:
(i) any person holding directly or indirectly at least
ten percent (10%) of the capital or voting rights;

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

2.3.14 Income tax (continued)

(ii) any company of which the Bank directly or indirectly
holds at least 10% of the capital or voting rights;
(iii) any individual who participates in the administration,
direction, management or internal control; and
(iv) the external auditors.
2.3.19 Fiduciary assets

ABOUT US

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

family members of any individual considered to be a
related party.

Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not
reported in the financial statements since they are not
the assets of the Bank.
2.3.20 Rounding of amounts
Except as indicated otherwise, amounts in the financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest dollar
and nearest thousands (“KHR’000”) for US$ and KHR
amounts, respectively.

ACHIEVEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest income on overdraft, term loans and other
loans is recognized on a daily accrual basis. Where
a loan becomes non-performing, the recording of
interest is suspended until it is realized on a cash
basis. Loans are deemed to be non-performing
where repayments are in arrears for ninety days or
more.
(ii) Fee and commission income
Income from the various activities of the Bank is
accrued using the following bases:
1) Loan arrangement fees and commissions on
services and facilities extended to customers
are recognized on the occurrence of such
transactions;
2) Commitment fees and guarantee fees on services
and facilities extended to customers are
recognized as income over the period in which
the services and facilities are extended;

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

(i) Interest income

BUSINESS
REVIEW

2.3.16 Recognition of income and expense

(iii) Interest expense
Interest expense on deposits of customers,
settlement accounts of other banks and borrowings
are recognized on an accrual basis.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

3) Service charges and processing fees are
recognized when the service is provided.

(iv) Fee and commission expense
2.3.17 Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recognized
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

THE FINANCIALS

Fee and commission expense is recognized as incurred.

2.3.18 Related parties
Parties are considered to be related if the Bank has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions, or vice-versa,
or where the Bank and the party are subject to common
control or significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals or corporate entities and include close

OTHER
INFORMATION
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

3.

BALANCES TRANSFERRED FROM THE BRANCH
After incorporating as a public limited company and subsidiary of MBB on 2 April 2012, the Bank assumed the operations of the Branch on a going
concern basis. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the Branch as at 1 April 2012 were transferred to the Bank at book value, as follows:

As at 1 April 2012
US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

15,776,943

63,028,887

114,967,782

459,296,289

Balances with other banks

33,103,915

132,250,140

Loans and advances – net

166,323,216

664,461,248

99,541

397,666

4,085,800

16,322,771

615,411

2,458,565

2,901,520

11,591,572

12,978

51,847

337,887,106

1,349,858,985

Deposit from customers

133,282,838

532,464,936

Deposit from banks

116,259,602

464,457,110

47,893,589

191,334,888

686,037

2,740,718

Other liabilities

6,684,352

26,703,986

Total liabilities

304,806,418

1,217,701,638

ASSETS
Cash on hand
Balances with the National Bank of Cambodia

Amounts due from Head Office
Amounts due from overseas branches
Other assets
Property and equipment
Software costs
Total assets
LIABILITIES

Amounts due to Head Office
Provision for income tax

No gain or loss was recognized as a result of the transfer. Retained earnings balance as at 1 April 2012 amounting to US$ 3.08 million was converted
to share capital of the Bank.

4.

BALANCES WITH THE NATIONAL BANK OF CAMBODIA
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Current accounts in US$

51,384,722

205,281,964

43,262,919

172,835,362

Current accounts in KHR

2,706,342

10,811,837

366,302

1,463,376

26,000,000

103,870,000

50,000,000

199,750,000

37,500,615

149,814,957

35,500,615

141,824,957

5,000,000

19,975,000

5,000,000

19,975,000

122,591,679

489,753,758

134,129,836

535,848,695

Term deposits in US$
Statutory deposits:
Reserve requirement
Capital guarantee
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BALANCES WITH THE NATIONAL BANK OF CAMBODIA (CONTINUED)
MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

Reserve requirement
Under NBC Prakas No. B7-012-140 dated 13 September 2012, banks are required to maintain certain cash reserves with the NBC in the form of
compulsory deposits, computed at 8.00% and 12.50% of customer deposits in KHR and in foreign currency, respectively. The statutory deposits on
customers’ deposits fluctuate depending on the level of the customers’ deposits.

Under NBC Prakas No. B7-01-136 dated 15 October 2001, banks are required to maintain a statutory deposit of 10.00% of registered capital with NBC.
This deposit is not available for use in the Bank’s day-to-day operations but is refundable when the Bank voluntarily ceases to operate the business
in Cambodia.

ABOUT US

Capital guarantee

Annual interest rates

Nil

Nil

0.08%-2.50%

0.10%-2.50%

Reserve requirement

0.10%

0.10%-0.14%

Capital guarantee

0.11%

0.18%

Term deposits

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Current accounts

2012

For purposes of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Cash on hand

28,480,051

113,777,804

16,703,427

66,730,191

Balances with the NBC:
Current accounts

54,091,064

216,093,801

43,629,221

174,298,738

Term deposits (with original maturities of
three months or less)

26,000,000

103,870,000

50,000,000

199,750,000

821,407

3,281,520

433,350

1,731,233

35,287,369

140,973,038

29,433,306

117,586,058

Amounts due from Parent Company:
Settlement accounts

323,792

1,293,549

185,405

740,693

Amounts due from affiliates
Settlement accounts

618,190

2,469,669

114,967

459,293

145,621,873

581,759,381

140,499,676

561,296,206

Balances with other banks:
Settlement accounts
Term deposits (with original maturities of
three months or less)

Total cash and cash equivalents

OUR
LEADERSHIP

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

US$

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

2012

THE FINANCIALS

2013

ACHIEVEMENTS

2013

OTHER
INFORMATION

4.

92

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

5.

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
2013

Settlement accounts with overseas banks in US$
Settlement account with a local bank in US$
Term deposits with a local bank in US$

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

788,303

3,149,270

300,001

1,198,504

33,104

132,250

133,349

532,729

40,287,369

160,948,040

29,433,306

117,586,058

41,108,776

164,229,560

29,866,656

119,317,291

Local settlement accounts maintained locally do not earn interest while those maintained outside Cambodia earn interest at rates ranging from
0.10% to 0.15% per annum (2012: 0.10% to 0.15% per annum).
Annual interest rate on term deposits with a local bank ranged from 1.00% to 1.30% (2012: 1.00% to 1.25%).

6.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) PARENT COMPANY
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

323,792

1,293,549

185,405

740,693

3,171,804

12,671,357

1,680,042

6,711,768

55,750,000

222,721,250

45,750,000

182,771,250

42,221

168,673

28,507

113,885

58,964,025

235,561,280

47,458,549

189,596,903

Amount due from Parent Company
Settlement accounts
Amounts due to Parent Company
Settlement accounts
Borrowings (i)
Interest payable

(i) Borrowings amounting to US$45.75 million represent loan facilities from Parent Company with a three-year term and interest re-pricing every
three months. These borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 1.31% to 1.48% during the year (2012: 1.32% to 2.06%).

7.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM AFFILIATES
2013

Maybank New York in US$
Maybank London in GBP

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

607,505

2,426,982

98,190

392,269

10,685

42,687

16,777

67,024

618,190

2,469,669

114,967

459,293

The Bank maintains the above settlement accounts with Maybank overseas branches.
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2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Overdraft

53,860,730

215,173,616

49,780,952

198,874,903

Term loans

45,671,573

182,457,934

46,708,199

186,599,255

Trust receipts

10,794,666

43,124,691

11,570,608

46,224,579

110,326,969

440,756,241

108,059,759

431,698,737

Term loans

71,591,866

286,009,505

46,704,365

186,583,938

Residential mortgages

58,510,370

233,748,928

57,230,317

228,635,116

Overdraft

29,467,601

117,723,067

25,036,888

100,022,368

2,187,301

8,738,267

993,616

3,969,496

161,757,138

646,219,767

129,965,186

519,210,918

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

Accrued interest receivable

1,206,951

4,821,769

1,451,951

5,800,544

Interest in suspense

(626,413)

(2,502,520)

(761,361)

(3,041,637)

580,538

2,319,249

690,590

2,758,907

272,664,645

1,089,295,257

238,715,535

953,668,562

Specific

(8,689,404)

(34,714,169)

(8,561,676)

(34,203,896)

General

(2,545,396)

(10,168,857)

(2,259,337)

(9,026,051)

(11,234,800)

(44,883,026)

(10,821,013)

(43,229,947)

261,429,845

1,044,412,231

227,894,522

910,438,615

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Staff residential mortgages

Gross loans and advances

ACHIEVEMENTS
BUSINESS
REVIEW

Consumer lending:

ABOUT US

Commercial lending:

Loans and advances – net

OUR
LEADERSHIP
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Allowance for loan losses:

THE FINANCIALS

Total gross loans and advances and net interest
receivable

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Net interest receivable:

OTHER
INFORMATION
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8.

LOANS AND ADVANCES (CONTINUED)
Further analysis of loans and advances follow:
(a) Analysis of loan portfolio by industrial sector of the Bank is as follows:

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

162,169,335

647,866,493

78,546,202

313,792,079

Wholesale/retail

60,050,446

239,901,532

46,655,605

186,389,148

Manufacturing

16,451,238

65,722,696

30,171,931

120,536,864

Agriculture

8,641,633

34,523,324

3,892,011

15,548,583

Import/export

6,138,562

24,523,555

20,547,638

82,087,815

Financial services

3,962,806

15,831,410

3,691,807

14,748,767

Construction

2,941,257

11,750,322

12,499,148

49,934,097

Energy

2,198,401

8,782,612

3,172,677

12,674,843

Others

9,530,429

38,074,064

38,847,926

155,197,459

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

Consumers

(b) For analysis of loans and advances by maturity, refer to Note 15 on Maturity profile.
(c) Analysis of loans and advances by currency, residency, relationship, exposure and interest rates are as follows:

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

Residents

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

138,064

551,566

-

-

271,946,043

1,086,424,442

238,024,945

950,909,655

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

32,992,203

131,803,851

29,948,755

119,645,276

239,091,904

955,172,157

208,076,190

831,264,379

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

Related parties
Non-related parties

Large exposures
Non-large exposures

Large exposures of off-balance sheet items aggregated to US$5.59 million as at 31 December 2013 (2012: US$1.11 million).

2013

2012

Overdraft

5.25% - 11.25%

5.25% - 11.00%

Loans

7.75% - 12.00%

8.00% - 11.00%

Trust receipts

7.50% - 10.00%

8.00% - 11.00%

3.50%

3.50%

Annual interest rates:

Staff loans
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LOANS AND ADVANCES (CONTINUED)

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

248,623,187

993,249,633

222,167,979

887,561,076

5,111,577

20,420,750

3,094,603

12,362,939

Secured

8,189,630

32,717,572

2,259,175

9,025,404

Unsecured

1,505,002

6,012,483

-

-

3,047,429

12,174,479

2,114,206

8,446,253

2,182,706

8,719,910

1,432,817

5,724,104

2,451,054

9,791,961

6,956,165

27,789,879

973,522

3,889,220

-

-

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

MESSAGE TO
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(d) Analysis of loans and advances by performance is as follows:

Unsecured
Special mention loans:

Substandard loans:
Secured
Doubtful loans:
Secured

ACHIEVEMENTS

Secured

ABOUT US

Normal loans:

Secured
Unsecured

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Loss loans

US$

US$

8,561,676

12,013,273

127,728

-

Reversals

-

(11,852)

Amount written off

-

(3,439,745)

As at 31 December

8,689,404

8,561,676

2,259,337

1,633,048

286,059

626,289

As at 31 December

2,545,396

2,259,337

Total allowance for loan losses

11,234,800

10,821,013

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

44,883,026

43,229,947

Specific allowance
As at 1 January/2 April, transferred from Branch
Movements during the year/period:
Charges

General allowance
As at 1 January/2 April, transferred from Branch

OUR
LEADERSHIP

2012

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

2013

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

(e) Movements in the allowance for loan losses during the year are as follows:

Charges

THE FINANCIALS

Movement during the period:

OTHER
INFORMATION

8.
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9.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
2013
Leasehold
improvements
US$

Office
equipment
US$

Furniture
and fittings
US$

Motor vehicles
US$

Total
US$

As at 1 January

3,623,010

2,080,286

154,935

276,300

6,134,531

Additions

1,394,050

1,039,385

129,112

-

2,562,547

Reclassifications

-

6,193

-

-

6,193

Disposals

-

(440)

-

(39,800)

(40,240)

5,017,060

3,125,424

284,047

236,500

8,663,031

1,758,313

1,113,062

61,010

192,995

3,125,380

737,784

400,928

31,645

44,092

1,214,449

-

(440)

-

(39,800)

(40,240)

2,496,097

1,513,550

92,655

197,287

4,299,589

2,520,963

1,611,874

191,392

39,213

4,363,442

10,071,247

6,439,437

764,611

156,656

17,431,951

Cost

As at 31 December
Less accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January
Charge for the year
Disposals
As at 31 December
Net book value
As at 31 December
KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

2012
Leasehold
improvements
US$

Office
equipment
US$

Furniture
and fittings
US$

Motor vehicles
US$

Total
US$

3,194,357

1,713,027

94,456

276,300

5,278,140

428,653

367,259

60,479

-

856,391

3,623,010

2,080,286

154,935

276,300

6,134,531

1,300,027

880,202

44,829

151,562

2,376,620

458,286

232,860

16,181

41,433

748,760

1,758,313

1,113,062

61,010

192,995

3,125,380

As at 31 December

1,864,697

967,224

93,925

83,305

3,009,151

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

7,449,465

3,864,060

375,230

332,803

12,021,558

Cost
As at 2 April, transferred from the
Branch
Additions
As at 31 December
Less accumulated depreciation
As at 2 April, transferred from the
Branch
Charge for the period
As at 31 December
Net book value
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2013

2012

US$

US$

As at 1 January/2 April, transferred from Branch

158,199

142,210

Additions

48,476

15,989

Reclassifications

(6,333)

-

200,342

158,199

As at 1 January/2 April, transferred from Branch

134,367

129,232

Charge for the year/period

13,212

5,135

147,579

134,367

As at 31 December

52,763

23,832

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

210,788

95,209

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

10. SOFTWARE COSTS

As at 31 December

ABOUT US

Cost

As at 31 December

ACHIEVEMENTS

Less: Accumulated amortization

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Net book value

11. OTHER ASSETS

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

1,109,063

4,430,707

1,042,280

4,163,908

Prepayments

319,459

1,276,239

333,060

1,330,575

Interest receivable from balances with the NBC
and other banks

117,434

469,149

114,446

457,212

Advance interest on term deposits to customers

32,843

131,208

-

-

Staff advances

19,020

75,985

-

-

8,001

31,963

1,001

3,999

1,605,820

6,415,251

1,490,787

5,955,694

12. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND OTHER BANKS
Deposits from customers consist of:

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Current accounts

132,580,840

529,660,456

86,851,208

346,970,576

Savings accounts

40,478,778

161,712,718

36,253,277

144,831,841

123,354,408

492,800,860

88,567,001

353,825,169

269,580

1,076,972

461,664

1,844,348

296,683,606

1,185,251,006

212,133,150

847,471,934

Term deposits
Margin deposits

THE FINANCIALS

Others

OTHER
INFORMATION

Deposits to suppliers

OUR
LEADERSHIP

US$

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

2012

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

2013
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12. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND OTHER BANKS (CONTINUED)
Further analyses of deposits from customers are as follows:
(a) For maturity analysis, refer to Note 15 on Maturity profile.
(b) Analysis by type of customers:

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Domestic corporations

168,284,670

672,297,257

102,941,070

411,249,575

Individuals

128,398,936

512,953,749

109,192,080

436,222,359

296,683,606

1,185,251,006

212,133,150

847,471,934

(c) Analysis by type of currency:

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

USD

296,347,618

1,183,908,734

212,075,948

847,243,412

KHR

335,988

1,342,272

57,202

228,522

296,683,606

1,185,251,006

212,133,150

847,471,934

(d) Annual interest rates:

2013

2012

Current accounts

0.50%

0.50%

Savings accounts

0.50%

0.50%

1.50% - 4.25%

1.50% - 4.25%

Nil

Nil

Term deposits
Margin
Deposits from other banks consist of:

2013

Current accounts
Term deposits

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

2,985,851

11,928,475

75,182

300,352

28,993,112

115,827,482

93,026,578

371,641,179

31,978,963

127,755,957

93,101,760

371,941,531

Current accounts bear no interest while term deposits bear interest at rates ranging from 1.00% to 1.30% (2012: 1.00% to 1.25%).
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US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Current

2,659,430

10,624,423

1,805,562

7,213,220

Deferred

(681,273)

(2,721,686)

(322,740)

(1,289,345)

1,978,157

7,902,737

1,482,822

5,923,875

Corporate income tax expense in accordance
with statutory tax regulations:

Income tax expense
13.1 Current corporate income tax (“CIT”)

In accordance with Cambodian law, the Bank has an obligation to pay current CIT of either the profit tax at the rate of 20% of taxable income
or a minimum tax at 1% of gross revenue, whichever is higher.

ACHIEVEMENTS

For the period from
2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December 2013

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

13. INCOME TAX
Components of income tax expense are as follows:

11,757,667

46,971,880

7,600,171

30,362,684

2,351,533

9,394,374

1,520,034

6,072,536

307,897

1,230,049

285,528

1,140,684

2,659,430

10,624,423

1,805,562

7,213,220

Non deductible expenses
Current CIT

The Bank’s tax returns are subject to periodic examination by the tax authorities. Because the application of tax laws and regulations to many
types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations, amounts reported in the financial statements could be changed at a later date
upon final determination by the tax authorities.
The movements of provision for income tax during the year are as follows:

2013

2012

US$

US$
US$

Balance as at 1 January/2 April, transferred from the Branch

2,332,531

686,037

Current income tax charge

2,659,430

1,805,562

Income tax paid

(967,136)

(159,068)

4,024,825

2,332,531

16,079,176

9,318,461

Balance as at 31 December
KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

OUR
LEADERSHIP

US$

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Income tax using statutory rate

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

THE FINANCIALS

Profit before tax

US$

OTHER
INFORMATION

For the period from
2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December 2013

BUSINESS
REVIEW

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory tax rate to the income tax expense shown in the income statement is as follows:
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13. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
13.2 Deferred income tax
Details of deferred tax recognized during the year as follows:
2013

2012

Deferred tax asset (liability)

Deferred tax asset (liability)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Allowance for loan losses

695,993

2,780,492

150,810

602,486

Accruals

176,887

706,664

74,113

296,081

Depreciation and amortization

160,400

640,798

111,585

445,782

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

(29,267)

(116,922)

(13,768)

(55,003)

1,004,013

4,011,032

322,740

1,289,346

14. OTHER LIABILITIES
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Interest payable

1,388,823

5,548,348

963,684

3,849,918

Accrued bonuses

884,434

3,533,314

250,566

1,001,011

Bankers’ checks

435,537

1,739,970

179,335

716,443

Accrued expenses

325,660

1,301,012

619,860

2,476,341

Advance payment on trust receipts

116,200

464,219

216,000

862,920

Others

879,439

3,513,359

368,539

1,472,314

4,030,093

16,100,222

2,597,984

10,378,947

Others include accrued audit fees, salaries, withholding tax and sundry liabilities.
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Analysis of assets and liabilities according to whether they are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve (12) months and over twelve (12)
months from the balance sheet date follows:
2013
Within 12 months

Over 12 months

Total

149,679,891

42,500,615

192,180,506

Amounts due from Parent Company

323,792

-

323,792

Amounts due from affiliates

618,190

-

618,190

98,628,154

174,036,491

272,664,645

1,226,497

-

1,226,497

Property and equipment

-

4,363,442

4,363,442

Software costs

-

52,763

52,763

Deferred tax asset

-

1,004,013

1,004,013

379,323

-

379,323

250,855,847

221,957,324

472,813,171

-

-

(11,234,800)

250,855,847

221,957,324

461,578,371

1,002,169,109

886,719,508

1,844,005,593

328,606,943

55,626

328,662,569

58,964,025

-

58,964,025

3,034,454

-

3,034,454

4,024,825

-

4,024,825

995,639

-

995,639

395,625,886

55,626

395,681,512

1,580,525,415

222,226

1,580,747,641

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

15. MATURITY PROFILE

Non-financial assets:

Other assets

Allowance for loan losses
Total in US$
KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

ACHIEVEMENTS

Other assets

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Loans and advances

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Cash and balances with banks

ABOUT US

Financial assets:

Deposits from customers and other banks
Amounts due to Parent Company
Other liabilities

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Financial liabilities

Total in US$
KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

THE FINANCIALS

Other liabilities

OTHER
INFORMATION

Provision for income tax

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Non-financial liabilities
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15. MATURITY PROFILE (CONTINUED)
Analysis of assets and liabilities according to whether they are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve (12) months and over twelve (12)
months from the balance sheet date follows: (continued)
2012
Within 12 months

Over 12 months

Total

140,199,304

40,500,615

180,699,919

Amounts due from Parent Company

185,405

-

185,405

Amounts due from affiliates

114,967

-

114,967

89,071,652

149,643,883

238,715,535

1,156,726

-

1,156,726

Property and equipment

-

3,009,151

3,009,151

Software costs

-

23,832

23,832

Deferred tax asset

-

322,740

322,740

334,061

-

334,061

231,062,115

193,500,221

424,562,336

-

-

(10,821,013)

Total in US$

231,062,115

193,500,221

413,741,323

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

923,093,149

773,033,383

1,652,896,585

304,402,132

832,778

305,234,910

47,458,549

-

47,458,549

2,013,445

-

2,013,445

2,332,531

-

2,332,531

584,539

-

584,539

356,791,196

832,778

357,623,974

1,425,380,828

3,326,948

1,428,707,776

Financial assets:
Cash and balances with banks

Loans and advances
Other assets
Non-financial assets:

Other assets

Allowance for loan losses

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers and other banks
Amounts due to Parent Company
Other liabilities
Non-financial liabilities
Provision for income tax
Other liabilities
Total in US$
KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)
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16. SHARE CAPITAL

On 2 April 2012, the Bank was incorporated as a corporate entity (Note 1). An additional capital injection of US$ 20.00 million was made to bring the
Bank’s initial capital to US$ 50.00 million. The additional capital injection was made in two components consisting of contributed cash amounting to
US$ 16.92 million and retained earnings conversion from Branch amounting to US$ 3.08 million.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The share capital of the Bank is composed of 50 million shares, issued and fully paid at a par value of US$ 1 per share.

Interest income from lending activities
Interest income from balances with NBC and
other banks

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

22,416,250

89,552,919

14,254,898

56,948,317

676,834

2,703,952

283,634

1,133,118

23,093,084

92,256,871

14,538,532

58,081,435

ACHIEVEMENTS

For the period from
2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December 2013

ABOUT US

17. INTEREST INCOME

For the period from
2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December 2013
US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

3,469,984

13,862,586

2,140,118

8,549,771

Borrowings

730,207

2,917,177

760,811

3,039,440

Savings accounts

170,648

681,739

119,096

475,789

Current accounts

113,384

452,969

30,001

119,854

4,484,223

17,914,471

3,050,026

12,184,854

BUSINESS
REVIEW

18. INTEREST EXPENSE

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

1,151,496

4,600,227

944,021

3,771,364

Service charges

650,479

2,598,664

263,775

1,053,781

Loan commitment fees

261,023

1,042,787

170,831

682,470

Loan processing fees

257,886

1,030,255

238,844

954,182

Commission earned from trade finance

203,128

811,496

221,345

884,273

Foreign exchange gain

146,333

584,600

68,842

275,024

Others

372,748

1,489,128

81,256

324,618

3,043,093

12,157,157

1,988,914

7,945,712

THE FINANCIALS

US$

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

For the period from
2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

For the year ended
31 December 2013

Swift charges

OUR
LEADERSHIP

19. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

OTHER
INFORMATION

Term deposits

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

IInterest expense on:
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20. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
For the year ended
31 December 2013

For the period from 2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

Salaries and fringe benefits

4,990,937

19,938,793

2,482,939

9,919,341

Depreciation and amortization

1,227,661

4,904,506

753,895

3,011,811

Rental

729,071

2,912,639

428,068

1,710,132

Taxes and licenses

622,711

2,487,730

230,180

919,569

Advertising

364,980

1,458,095

156,862

626,664

Transportation

315,141

1,258,988

174,434

696,864

Utilities

263,673

1,053,374

163,307

652,411

Repairs and maintenance

252,091

1,007,104

293,544

1,172,708

Communication

181,572

725,380

107,534

429,598

Stationeries and supplies

164,922

658,863

67,023

267,757

Directors’ fees and meeting allowances

139,367

556,771

120,000

479,400

Building securities

137,302

548,521

69,586

277,996

Professional fees

132,957

531,163

66,943

267,438

Representation

65,661

262,316

28,578

114,169

Trainings and seminars

42,932

171,513

19,009

75,941

1,649

6,588

21,323

85,185

423,000

1,689,886

144,337

576,626

10,055,627

40,172,230

5,327,562

21,283,610

Insurance
Others

Others include mainly charitable donation, bond premium expense, penalties and withholding taxes borne by the Bank.
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For the year ended
31 December 2013

For the period from 2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

11,757,667

46,971,880

7,600,171

30,362,684

1,227,661

4,904,506

753,895

3,011,811

(6,050)

(24,171)

-

-

140

558

-

-

(967,136)

(3,863,708)

(159,068)

(635,477)

12,012,282

47,989,065

8,194,998

32,739,018

Statutory deposits

(2,000,000)

(7,990,000)

(4,000,000)

(15,980,000)

Balances with other banks

(5,000,000)

(19,975,000)

-

-

(33,535,323)

(133,973,615)

(61,571,306)

(245,977,368)

(115,033)

(459,557)

(875,376)

(3,497,126)

23,427,659

93,593,498

55,692,470

222,491,418

Net amounts due to Parent Company

1,505,476

6,014,377

(435,040)

(1,737,985)

Other liabilities

1,432,109

5,721,275

(4,086,368)

(16,325,040)

(2,272,830)

(9,079,957)

(7,080,622)

(28,287,083)

MESSAGE TO
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21. NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposals of property and equipment
Write-off of software costs
Income tax paid
Cash provided by operating activities before
changes in net operating assets

ACHIEVEMENTS

Profit before income tax

ABOUT US

Cash flows from operating activities

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Deposits from customers and other banks

Net cash used in operating activities
22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Other assets

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Loans and advances

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Increase in operating assets:

Nature of transaction

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

323,792

1,293,549

185,405

740,693

55,750,000

222,721,250

45,750,000

182,771,250

3,171,804

12,671,357

1,680,042

6,711,768

Interest payable

42,221

168,673

28,507

113,885

Interest expense

730,207

2,917,177

760,811

3,039,440

Consultancy fee

33,578

134,144

-

-

Maybank London

Settlement accounts

10,685

42,687

16,777

67,024

Maybank New York

Settlement accounts

607,505

2,426,982

98,190

392,269

Malayan Banking Berhad

Settlement accounts
Borrowings
Deposit from other banks

THE FINANCIALS

Related parties

For the period from 2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

OTHER
INFORMATION

For the year ended
31 December 2013

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

(a) Significant transactions of the Bank during the period and balances with related parties at the balance sheet date as follows:
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Key management personnel compensation
For the year ended
31 December 2013

Remuneration of key management personnel

For the period from 2 April 2012 to
31 December 2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

1,290,692

5,156,315

865,064

3,455,931

Key management personnel include the directors and management.
23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
23.1 Lending commitments
To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various commitments and contingent liabilities. Lending commitments consist of:
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

33,617,854

134,303,327

36,970,093

147,695,522

Letters of credit

6,681,540

26,692,752

7,127,790

28,475,521

Guarantees

1,718,297

6,864,597

2,641,604

10,553,208

587,852

2,348,469

562,429

2,246,904

42,605,543

170,209,145

47,301,916

188,971,155

Unutilized portion of overdraft

Bills for collection

23.2 Operating lease commitments
The Bank, as lessee, has entered into commercial leases on premises. There are no restrictions placed upon lessee by entering into these leases.
Future minimum lease payments as at 31 December are as follows:
2013
US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

950,127

3,795,757

667,514

2,666,718

1,801,052

7,195,203

582,806

2,328,310

2,751,179

10,990,960

1,250,320

4,995,028

Within one year
Between one to five years

2012

23.3 Taxation contingency
The taxation system in Cambodia is relatively new and is
characterized by numerous taxes and frequently changing
legislation, which is often unclear, contradictory, and subject
to interpretation. Often, differing interpretations exist among
numerous taxation authorities and jurisdictions. Taxes are subject
to review and investigation by a number of authorities, who are
enabled by law to impose severe fines, penalties and interest
charges.
These facts may create tax risks in Cambodia substantially
more significant than in other countries. Management believes
that it has adequately provided for tax liabilities based on
its interpretation of tax legislation. However, the relevant
authorities may have differing interpretations and the effects
could be significant.

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Bank’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk)
and liquidity risk. Taking risk is core to the financial business, and
operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business.
The Bank does not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign
exchange contract and interest rate swaps to manage its risk exposure.
The Bank intends to comply with NBC’s regulations for financial risk
management purposes. In addition to minimum requirements of NBC,
the Bank also adopts relevant financial risk management procedures
of the Parent Company.
24.1 Operational risk
The operational risk loss which would result from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems is managed through
established operational risk management processes, proper
monitoring and reporting of the business activities by control and
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support units which are independent of the business units and
oversight provided by the management.
The operational risk management entails the establishment of
clear organizational structures, roles and control policies. Various
internal control policies and measures have been implemented.
These include the establishment of signing authorities, defining
system parameter controls, streamlining procedures and
documentation. These are reviewed continually to address the
operational risks of its banking business.

Perform post-approval review of credit proposals to assess
whether loan originators, pre-evaluators and approving
authorities have addressed and analyzed credit risks
sufficiently and provided mitigating factors.
(b) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

24.1 Operational risk (continued)

(vi)Credit review

For maximum exposure of financial assets to credit risk, refer
to Note 24.2 (c).
The credit exposure arising from off-balance sheet activities
i.e. commitments and contingencies is discussed in Note 23.1.

ABOUT US

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that
a counter party will cause a financial loss to the Bank by failing
to discharge an obligation. Credit risk is the most important risk
for the Bank’s business. Credit exposure arises principally in
lending activities that lead to loans and advances. There is also
credit risk in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such as loan
commitments.

ACHIEVEMENTS

24.2 Credit risk

(a) Credit risk measurement, mitigation, and concentration control

The following are the key risk areas encountered by the Bank
and how they are managed:

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Overall supervision and responsibility in managing risk resides
with the Bank’s Board-level Risk Management Committee. At
management level, supervision of material credit risk is being
done by the Executive Committee and the Credit Committee
of the Bank. Risk pricing is covered by Asset and Liability
Management Committee. These Committees ensure that all
the relevant risk areas are properly identified, measured,
managed, priced, monitored, and disclosed within their
respective terms of reference.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Governance

Develop, enhance and communicate an efficient, effective
and consistent credit risk management framework,
leveraging on people and technology.
(ii) Credit policies
Develop and review credit policies including providing
empowerment to approve loans.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

(i) Credit risk management framework

Set, review and monitor risk limits and concentrations
according to various categories such as a single customer
group and product types.
(v)Portfolio management
Manage and control the Bank’s portfolio, including
providing analysis of the overall composition and quality
of the various credit portfolios to identify any particular
sensitivities and concentrations. At the same time, to
safeguard and preserve the asset quality of the Bank by
analyzing vulnerable industries where prospects have
changed or are showing unfavorable signs.

THE FINANCIALS

(iv)Risk limits concentrations

OTHER
INFORMATION

Ensure compliance with NBC and other regulatory
requirements on credit risk management.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

(iii)Regulatory requirements
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
24.2 Credit risk (continued)
(c) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographic region,
or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to developments affecting
a particular industry or geographic location.
(i) Industry analysis:
Financial
services

Import &
export

Consumers

Retail &
wholesale

Manufacturing
& petroleum

Others

Total

122,591,679

-

-

-

-

-

122,591,679

Balances with other banks

41,108,776

-

-

-

-

-

41,108,776

Amounts due from Parent
Company and affiliates

941,982

-

-

-

-

-

941,982

Loans and advances - net

3,925,760

5,994,110

158,093,594

57,409,565

25,501,722

10,505,094

261,429,845

Other assets

1,259,340

-

-

-

-

-

1,259,340

Total in US$

169,827,537

5,994,110

158,093,594

57,409,565

25,501,722

10,505,094

427,331,622

KHR’000 equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

678,461,010

23,946,469

631,583,908

229,351,212

101,879,379

41,967,851

1,707,189,830

134,129,836

-

-

-

-

-

134,129,836

Balances with other banks

29,866,656

-

-

-

-

-

29,866,656

Amounts due from Parent
Company and affiliates

300,372

-

-

-

-

-

300,372

Loans and advances - net

3,654,889

20,372,170

77,450,383

36,366,599

29,946,451

60,104,030

227,894,522

Other assets

1,156,726

-

-

-

-

-

1,156,726

Total in US$

169,108,479

20,372,170

77,450,383

36,366,599

29,946,451

60,104,030

393,348,112

KHR’000 equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

675,588,374

81,386,819

309,414,280

145,284,563

119,636,072

240,115,600

1,571,425,707

2013
Balances with the NBC

2012
Balances with the NBC

(ii) Geographical analysis:
2013
Cambodia

North America

Others*

Total

122,591,679

-

-

122,591,679

40,320,473

788,303

-

41,108,776

-

607,505

334,477

941,982

261,429,845

-

-

261,429,845

Other assets

1,259,340

-

-

1,259,340

Total in US$

425,601,337

1,395,808

334,477

427,331,622

1,700,277,341

5,576,253

1,336,236

1,707,189,830

Balances with the NBC
Balances with other banks
Amounts due from Parent Company and
affiliates
Loans and advances – net

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

109
AT A GLANCE

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

24.2 Credit risk (continued)

2012
Cambodia

North America

Others*

Total

134,129,836

-

-

134,129,836

29,566,655

300,001

-

29,866,656

-

98,190

202,182

300,372

227,894,522

-

-

227,894,522

Other assets

1,156,726

-

-

1,156,726

Total in US$

392,747,739

398,191

202,182

393,348,112

1,569,027,217

1,590,773

807,717

1,571,425,707

Balances with the NBC
Balances with other banks
Amounts due from Parent Company and
affiliates
Loans and advances – net

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

ACHIEVEMENTS

(ii) Geographical analysis: (continued)

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

(c) Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

* Other include Malaysia and United Kingdom

122,591,679

-

-

122,591,679

41,108,776

-

-

41,108,776

941,982

-

-

941,982

253,734,764

9,694,632

8,654,711

272,084,107

Other assets

1,259,340

-

-

1,259,340

Total in US$

419,636,541

9,694,632

8,654,711

437,985,884

1,676,447,981

38,730,055

34,575,570

1,749,753,606

Neither past due nor
impaired

Past due but not
impaired

Individually
impaired

Total

134,129,836

-

-

134,129,836

29,866,656

-

-

29,866,656

300,372

-

-

300,372

225,262,582

4,133,646

8,628,717

238,024,945

Other assets

1,156,726

-

-

1,156,726

Total in US$

390,716,172

4,133,646

8,628,717

403,478,535

1,560,911,107

16,513,916

34,471,724

1,611,896,747

Balances with the NBC
Balances with other banks
Amounts due from Parent Company and
affiliates
Loans and advances – gross

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

2012
Balances with the NBC
Balances with other banks
Amounts due from Parent Company and
affiliates
Loans and advances – gross

KHR’000 equivalent (Note 2.1.5)

As at 31 December 2013, the past due but not impaired financial assets pertain to loans classified as special mention with aging of less than
90 days.
(e) Collateral repossessed
During the year, the Bank did not obtain assets by taking possession of collateral held as security.

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Total

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Individually
impaired

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Past due but not
impaired

THE FINANCIALS

Neither past due nor
impaired

2013

OTHER
INFORMATION

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Bank using internal credit ratings. The table below shows the credit quality by class
of asset for all financial assets exposed to credit risk, based on the Bank’s internal credit rating system. The amounts presented are gross of
any required impairment allowance.

BUSINESS
REVIEW

(d) Credit quality by class of financial assets
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

24.3.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest
income as a result of changes in the levels of interest
rate and shifts in the composition of the assets and
liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed through close
monitoring of returns on investment, market pricing, cost
of funds and through interest rate sensitivity gap analysis.
The potential reduction in net interest income from an
unfavorable interest rate movement is monitored against
the risk tolerance limits set.

24.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movement
in the level of market prices or rates, the two key components
being foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate risk.
24.3.1 Foreign currency exchange risk
Foreign currency exchange risk refers to the adverse
exchange rate movements on foreign currency exchange
positions taken from time to time. The Bank maintains
a policy of not exposing itself to large foreign exchange
positions. Any foreign currency exchange open positions
are monitored against the operating requirements,
predetermined position limits and cut-loss limits.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Bank does not account for any fixed rate instruments
at fair value through profit or loss, and the Bank does
not have derivatives as at year end. Therefore, a change
in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect
profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2013, balances in monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US$
are not significant. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for
foreign currency exchange risk was presented.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
The Bank does not have significant variable-rate
instruments. Therefore, no cash flow sensitivity analysis
for variable-rate instruments was presented.

24.4. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk relates to the ability to maintain sufficient liquid assets to meet its financial commitments and obligations when they fall due at a
reasonable cost.
Management believes that the Bank fully complies with all liquidity requirements of NBC as it closely monitors all inflows and outflows and the
maturity gaps through periodical reporting. Additionally, movements in loans and customers’ deposits are monitored and liquidity requirements
adjusted to ensure sufficient liquid assets to meet its financial commitments and obligations as and when they fall due.
Analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining periods to repayment follows:
2013
On demand
US$

Up to 1 month
US$

>1 - 3 months
US$

>3 - 12 months
US$

>1 to 5 years
US$

Over 5 years
US$

Total US$

Financial assets
Cash on hand

28,480,051

-

-

-

-

-

28,480,051

Balances with the NBC

54,091,064

18,000,000

3,000,000

5,000,000

-

42,500,615

122,591,679

Balances with other banks

11,108,776

7,000,000

8,000,000

15,000,000

-

-

41,108,776

Amounts due from Parent
Company

323,792

-

-

-

-

-

323,792

Amounts due from affiliates

618,190

-

-

-

-

-

618,190

83,328,330

1,959,323

5,211,856

7,548,108

31,747,162

142,289,328

272,084,107

1,226,497

-

-

-

-

-

1,226,497

179,176,700

26,959,323

16,211,856

27,548,108

31,747,162

184,789,943

466,433,092

Loans and advances - gross
Other assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers and
other banks

176,315,049

69,554,096

32,595,210

50,142,588

55,626

-

328,662,569

Amounts due to Parent
Company

3,214,025

-

55,750,000

-

-

-

58,964,025

Other liabilities

3,034,454

-

-

-

-

-

3,034,454

182,563,528

69,554,096

88,345,210

50,142,588

55,626

-

390,661,048

(3,386,828)

(42,594,773)

(72,133,354)

(22,594,480)

31,691,536

184,789,943

75,772,044

(13,530,378)

(170,166,118)

(288,172,749)

(90,264,948)

126,607,686

738,235,822

302,709,316

Total financial liabilities
Net liquidity surplus (gap)
KHR’000 equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)
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Analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining periods to repayment follows:
(continued)
2012
On demand
US$

Up to 1 month
US$

>1 - 3 months
US$

>3 - 12 months
US$

>1 to 5 years
US$

Over 5 years
US$

Total US$

Cash on hand

16,703,427

-

-

-

-

-

16,703,427

Balances with the NBC

43,629,221

50,000,000

-

-

-

40,500,615

134,129,836

Balances with other banks

433,350

-

29,433,306

-

-

-

29,866,656

Amounts due from Parent
Company

185,405

-

-

-

-

-

185,405

Amounts due from affiliates

114,967

-

-

-

-

-

114,967

75,508,431

3,145,639

5,626,214

4,791,368

27,423,174

122,220,709

238,715,535

114,446

-

-

-

-

-

114,446

136,689,247

53,145,639

35,059,520

4,791,368

27,423,174

162,721,324

419,830,272

123,641,330

70,791,186

90,323,889

19,645,725

832,778

-

305,234,908

Amounts due to Parent Company

1,708,549

-

45,750,000

-

-

-

47,458,549

Other liabilities

2,239,484

-

-

-

-

-

2,239,484

127,589,363

70,791,186

136,073,889

19,645,725

832,778

-

354,932,941

9,099,884

(17,645,547)

(101,014,369)

(14,854,357)

26,590,396

162,721,324

64,897,331

36,354,036

(70,493,960)

(403,552,404)

(59,343,156)

106,228,632

650,071,689

259,264,837

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

24.4. Liquidity risk (continued)

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers and
other banks

Total financial liabilities
Net liquidity surplus (gap)
KHR’000 equivalent
(Note 2.1.5)

ACHIEVEMENTS
BUSINESS
REVIEW

Other assets

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Loans and advances - gross

ABOUT US

Financial assets

24.5.1 Regulatory capital
The Bank’s lead regulator, NBC, sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank as a whole.
The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain market confidence and to sustain further development of the
business.

OUR
LEADERSHIP

24.5 Capital management

The Bank has complied with all externally imposed capital requirement throughout the year.
24.5.2 Capital allocation
The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, driven by optimization of the return
achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated to each operation or activity is based primarily upon the
regulatory capital.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognized. As such, the Bank tries to maintain a balance between
the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The aggregate fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried on the balance sheet are approximately equal to their carrying values as at 31
December 2013.

26. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

THE FINANCIALS

25. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

OTHER
INFORMATION

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, at the date of this report, there were no events, which occurred subsequent to
31 December 2013 that had significant impact on the financial position and performance of the Bank as at 31 December 2013.
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Supplementary financial information and other disclosures
required by the National Bank of Cambodia

Ratio and information contained in this section have been extracted from
the data and information contained in the audited financial statements
as at 31 December 2013 and for the year ended.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMTION AND OTHER
DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY THE NBC
as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
We, undersigned, being Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Maybank (Cambodia) Plc. (“the Bank”), do hereby state that in our opinion, the
accompanying supplementary financial information consisting of the disclosure requirements set by the relevant Prakas of the National Bank of
Cambodia (“NBC”), are properly drawn up so as to reflect fairly the required financial information of the Bank as at 31 December 2013. Information
and data contained herein are the responsibility of the management of the Bank.

Cheah Teik Seng
Chairman

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
4 March 2014

Lee Tien
n Poh
o
Chief Executive
Exe
eccutive Officer
e
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GOVERNANCE

For the purpose of this supplementary financial information, unless otherwise stated, United States dollar (“US$”) is the reporting currency. The
translation of US$ amounts into Khmer Riel in thousands (“KHR’000”) is included solely to comply with the guidelines issued by NBC regarding the
preparation and presentation of financial statements and have been made using the prescribed official exchange rate of US$1 to KHR3,995 published
by the NBC as at 31 December 2013. This translation should not be construed as a representation that the US$ amounts have been, could have been,
or could in the future be, converted into KHR at this or any other rate of exchange.

THE FINANCIALS

The computations included herein following the definitions of the relevant Prakas and applicable notices set out in the respective schedules, form an
integral part of, and should be read, in conjunction with this supplementary financial information.

OTHER
INFORMATION

This supplementary financial information is prepared by the management of the Bank, solely for the use of the NBC. It is not to be used for any other
purpose without written consent of the management of the Bank.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

LIMITATION

116

MAYBANK (CAMBODIA) PLC • ANNUAL REPORT 2013

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMTION AND OTHER DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
THE NBC

as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

NET WORTH
On 15 October 2010, the National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC)” issued Prakas B7-010-182 on calculation of Bank’s net worth. The regulatory calculation
aims at adopting the international standards related to the regulatory capital’s structure, by operating a distinction between core capital (“Tier 1”)
and complementary capital (‘Tier 2”).
The net worth of the Bank is calculated as follows:
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

Share capital

50,000,000

199,750,000

50,000,000

199,750,000

Retained earnings (*)

12,500,000

49,937,500

6,117,349

24,438,809

62,500,000

249,687,500

56,117,349

224,188,809

20.00%

20.00%

10.90%

10.90%

-

-

-

-

52,763

210,788

23,832

95,209

138,064

551,566

-

-

190,827

762,354

23,832

95,209

62,309,173

248,925,146

56,093,517

224,093,600

2,545,396

10,168,857

2,259,337

9,026,051

-

-

-

-

2,545,396

10,168,857

2,259,337

9,026,051

4.09%

4.09%

4.03%

4.03%

64,854,569

259,094,003

58,352,854

233,119,651

Section A

Limit check on retained earnings (maximum of 20% of
total A)
Section B
Accumulated Losses
Software costs
Loan to related parties

Total Tier 1 - Core Capital (A - B)
Section C
1% General provision
Section D
Total Tier 2 - Complementary Capital (C - D)
Limit check on tier 2 capital (maximum of 100% of
tier 1 capital)
Bank’s net worth (Tier 1 + Tier 2)

For the purpose of computing the Bank’s net worth, deposits and placements with Malayan Banking Berhad, and/or with its related branches or
subsidiaries are excluded as related party loans, as approved by the NBC.
(*) Retained earnings are limited to 20% of Tier 1 capital or core regulatory capital (Sub-total A). As at 31 December 2013, the Bank’s retained
earnings amounted to US$15,896,859 (24.12% of limit). Therefore, the retained earnings was reduced to US$12,500,000 to maintain at the maximum
of 20% limit.
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LIQUIDITY RATIO

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

Cash and gold

28,480,051

113,777,804

16,703,427

66,730,191

Deposits with NBC (excluding statutory deposits)

80,091,064

319,963,801

93,629,221

374,048,738

Deposits with other banks

41,108,776

164,229,560

29,866,656

119,317,291

941,982

3,763,218

300,372

1,199,986

-

-

-

-

150,621,873

601,734,383

140,499,676

561,296,206

Sight accounts with NBC, bank and financial
institutions

-

-

-

-

Borrowing from NBC and banks less than one month

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

150,621,873

601,734,383

140,499,676

561,296,206

150,621,873

601,734,383

140,499,676

561,296,206

-

-

-

-

150,621,873

601,734,383

140,499,676

561,296,206

Fixed deposits less than one month at 80%

55,643,277

222,294,892

24,632,161

98,405,483

Fixed deposits more than one month at 50%

41,396,712

165,379,864

75,401,688

301,229,744

Saving deposits at 50%

20,239,389

80,856,359

18,126,638

72,415,919

Demand deposits at 60%

81,340,015

324,953,360

52,155,834

208,362,557

215,664

861,578

369,332

1,475,481

198,835,057

794,346,053

170,685,653

681,889,184

75.75%

75.75%

82.31%

82.31%

Debit items

Due from Parent Company and affiliates
Portion of lending to bank and financial Institutions
less than one month

ACHIEVEMENTS

The liquidity ratio of the Bank is calculated as follows:

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

In accordance with Prakas No. B7-00-38 dated 9 February 2000 amended by Prakas No. B7-02-187 dated 13 September 2002 and by Prakas No.
B7-04-207 dated 29 December 2004, banks are required to calculate a liquidity ratio which should be at least 50%.

Denominator

Margin deposits less than one month at 80%

Liquidity ratio - numerator / denominator

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY
OUR
LEADERSHIP

Portion of lending less than one month (excluding
loans to customers without maturity date)

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Treasury balance - lender position

THE FINANCIALS

Numerator

OTHER
INFORMATION

Lender position

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Credit items
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMTION AND OTHER DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
THE NBC

as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

SOLVENCY RATIO
In accordance with Prakas No. B7-00-46 dated 16 February 2000 amended by Prakas No. B7-04-206 dated 29 December 2004 and Prakas No. B7-07-135
dated 27 August 2007, banks shall observe a solvency ratio, which is the ratio of their net worth to their aggregate credit risk exposures, of not less
than 15%.
The solvency ratio of the Bank is calculated as follows:
2013
Weighting

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

64,854,569

259,094,003

58,352,854

233,119,651

Numerator
Bank’s net worth
Denominator
Total aggregate assets:
Cash, gold and claims on NBC

0%

-

-

-

-

Assets collateralized by deposits

0%

-

-

-

-

Claims on sovereigns rated AAA to AA-

0%

-

-

-

-

Claims on sovereigns rated A+ to A-

20%

-

-

-

-

Claims on banks rated AAA to AA-

20%

-

-

-

-

Claims on sovereigns rated BBB+ to BBB-

50%

-

-

-

-

Claim on banks rated A+ to A-

50%

6,008,827

24,005,264

5,016,841

20,042,278

100%

298,488,987

1,192,463,503

252,874,383

1,010,233,160

100%

3,564,295

14,239,359

1,538,302

6,145,516

Medium risk

50%

2,405,271

9,609,058

4,103,046

16,391,669

Moderate risk

20%

-

-

-

-

310,467,380

1,240,317,184

263,532,572

1,052,812,623

20.89%

20.89%

22.14%

22.14%

Other assets
Off-balance sheet items:
Full risk

Total risk-weighted assets
Solvency ratio - numerator/ denominator
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LOANS CLASSIFICATION AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Per Bank’s
policy

Principal loan

Allowance rate

Minimum
allowance

Allowance rate

Allowance

Under (Over)
Allowance*

US$

%

US$

%

US$

US$

253,734,764

1%

2,537,348

1%

2,537,348

-

804,752

1%

8,048

1%

8,048

-

9,694,632

3%

290,839

3%

290,839

-

32,920

3%

988

3%

988

-

Substandard

2,987,758

20%

597,552

100%

2,987,758

(2,390,206)

Doubtful

2,179,518

50%

1,089,759

100%

2,179,518

(1,089,759)

Loss

3,230,301

100%

3,230,301

100%

3,230,301

-

Classification

As at 31 December 2013

ABOUT US

Per NBC’s
standard

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

In accordance with Prakas No. B7-09-074 dated 25 February 2009, banks shall classify their loan portfolio and their off-balance sheet commitments
into five classes defined as normal, special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss. The minimum level of specific allowance for losses on loans and
advances is provided depending on the loan classification.
The classification of, and allowance for losses on loans and advances are as follows:

Loans
Accrued interest receivable - net

Total
KHR’000 equivalent

272,664,645

7,754,835

11,234,800

(3,479,965)

1,089,295,257

30,980,566

44,883,026

(13,902,460)

* Difference in each loan classification arises from the Bank’s policy of providing additional specific allowance over and above NBC’s mandatory
provisioning.
Per NBC’s
standard

Per Bank’s
policy

Principal loan

Allowance rate

Minimum
allowance

Allowance rate

Allowance

Under (Over)
Allowance*

US$

%

US$

%

US$

US$

225,262,582

1%

2,252,626

1%

2,252,626

-

671,132

1%

6,711

1%

6,711

-

2,259,175

3%

67,775

3%

67,775

-

19,458

3%

584

3%

584

-

Substandard

2,114,206

20%

66,692

100%

258,480

(191,788)*

Doubtful

1,432,817

50%

716,409

100%

1,432,817

(716,408)

Loss

6,956,165

100%

6,956,165

100%

6,802,020

154,145

Classification

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Special mention

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Accrued interest receivable - net

As at 31 December 2012

OUR
LEADERSHIP

Loans

ACHIEVEMENTS

Normal / standard

Special mention
Loans
Accrued interest receivable - net

Total

238,715,535

10,066,962

10,821,013

(754,051)

KHR’000 equivalent

953,668,562

40,217,513

43,229,947

(3,012,434)

* Difference in amount as compared with the Bank’s policy of providing 100% resulted from the US$1.87 million loan collected in February 2013.

THE FINANCIALS

Accrued interest receivable - net

OTHER
INFORMATION

Loans

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Normal / standard
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMTION AND OTHER DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
THE NBC

as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

NET OPEN POSITION IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
In accordance with Prakas No. B7-07-134 dated 27 August 2007, banks shall at all times maintain their net open position in foreign currencies in either
any foreign currency or overall net open position in all foreign currencies, whether long or short, not exceeding 20% of the Bank’s net worth.
Furthermore, in accordance with Prakas No. B7-00-50 dated 9 February 2000, the Bank is required to disclose a summary of assets and liabilities as at
balance sheet date in their source currency, as follows:
2013
Assets

Liabilities Off balance sheet
and capital
receivables

Off balance
sheet payables

Net open position
(+) long / (-) short

Net open position
/ net worth

Limit

Excess
over limit

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

%

%

%

US$

458,521,710

458,609,356

42,605,543

42,605,543

(87,646)

(0.14%)

20.00%

None

KHR

2,706,957

2,668,148

-

-

38,809

0.06%

20.00%

None

323,792

278,839

-

-

44,953

0.07%

20.00%

None

Great Britain Pounds

10,685

6,652

-

-

4,033

0.01%

20.00%

None

Japan Yen

15,227

15,376

-

-

(149)

0.00%

20.00%

None

461,578,371

461,578,371

42,605,543

42,605,543

1,844,005,592

1,844,005,592

170,209,144

170,209,144

Off balance
sheet payables

Net open position
(+) long / (-) short

Net open position
/ net worth

Limit

Excess
over limit

Malaysia Ringgit

Total
KHR’000 equivalent

2012
Assets

Liabilities Off balance sheet
and capital
receivables

US$

US$

US$

US$

US$

%

%

%

US$

413,200,499

413,280,831

47,301,916

47,301,916

(80,332)

(0.14%)

20.00%

None

KHR

366,916

305,933

-

-

60,983

0.11%

20.00%

None

Malaysia Ringgit

157,131

138,230

-

-

18,901

0.03%

20.00%

None

16,777

16,329

-

-

448

0.00%

20.00%

None

413,741,323

413,741,323

47,301,916

47,301,916

1,652,896,585

1,652,896,585

188,971,155

188,971,155

Great Britain Pounds
Total
KHR’000 equivalent

OTHER INFORMATION AND PRUDENTIAL REGULATIONS REQUIRED BY THE CAMBODIAN
LAW ON BANKING AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
(i) Minimum capital (Prakas B7-00-39 dated 9 February 2000 and Prakas No. B7-08-193 dated 19 September 2008)
Under NBC Prakas No. B7-08-193, commercial banks having shareholders as individuals or companies must have a minimum capital of at least
KHR150 billion.
The Bank’s share capital as at balance sheet date of US$50.00 million or equivalent to approximately KHR199.75 billion meets the minimum
capital requirement.
(ii) Fixed assets (Prakas No. B7-01-186 dated 8 November 2001)
The fixed assets of the Bank as at 31 December 2013 represent 6.73% (2012: 5.16%) of the net worth calculated elsewhere in this report. This is
within the ceiling limit of 30% of net worth as required by the Prakas.
(iii) Net worth (Prakas No. B7-010-182 dated 15 October 2010)
The Bank should maintain its net worth equal to at least the minimum capital of US$37.50 million. The calculated net worth of the Bank as at
31 December 2013 amounted to US$64.85 million (2012: US$58.35 million) resulting to a surplus of US$27.35 million (2012: US$20.85 million).
(iv) Loans to related parties (Prakas No. B7-01-137 dated 15 October 2001)
As at 31 December 2013, the Bank provided loan to a member of management team amounting to US$138,064.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND PRUDENTIAL REGULATIONS REQUIRED BY THE CAMBODIAN
(v) Large exposures (Prakas No. B7-06-226 dated 3 November 2006)
Based on Prakas No. B7-06-226, large exposure is defined as the overall gross exposure resulting from banking operations with one single
beneficiary, where such exposure exceeds 10% of the Bank’s net worth. Exposure means the higher of two items: (a) the outstanding loans or
commitments, and (b) the authorized loans or commitments.

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

LAW ON BANKING AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, the Bank has total large exposures on loans and off-balance sheet items totaling US$32.99 million and US$5.60 million
(2012: US$29.95 million and US$1.11 million), respectively. No individual large exposure exceeds 20% of net worth. Total large exposures also did
not exceed 300% of net worth. For the total large exposures to net worth ratio, refer to item 20 in the financial soundness indicators section.

ABOUT US

Banks are further required: (a) to maintain at all times a ratio not exceeding 20% between their overall exposure resulting from their operations
with each individual beneficiary and their net worth, and (b) to maintain at all times a maximum ratio of 300% between the total of their large
exposures and their net worth.

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

2013

A - Equity
B - Total assets
Equity to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

65,896,859

263,257,952

56,117,349

224,188,809

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

14.28%

14.28%

13.56%

13.56%

BUSINESS
REVIEW

1. EQUITY TO TOTAL ASSETS

ACHIEVEMENTS

CAPITAL

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

62,309,173

248,925,146

56,093,517

224,093,600

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

13.50%

13.50%

13.56%

13.56%

3. CAPITAL TIER I TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS
2013

A - Capital tier 1
B - Risk-weighted assets
Capital tier I to risk-weighted assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

62,309,173

248,925,146

56,093,517

224,093,600

310,467,380

1,240,317,184

263,532,572

1,052,812,623

20.07%

20.07%

21.29%

21.29%

4. CAPITAL TIER I + TIER II TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Capital tier 1 + tier 2

64,854,569

259,094,003

58,352,854

233,119,651

B - Risk-weighted assets

310,467,380

1,240,317,184

263,532,572

1,052,812,623

20.89%

20.89%

22.14%

22.14%

Capital tier I + tier II to risk-weighted assets
(A/B)

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Capital tier I to total assets (A/B)

KHR’000
equivalent

THE FINANCIALS

B - Total assets

US$

OTHER
INFORMATION

A - Capital tier 1

2012

OUR
LEADERSHIP

2013

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

2. CAPITAL TIER I TO TOTAL ASSETS
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMTION AND OTHER DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
THE NBC

as at 31 December 2013 and for the year then ended

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)
CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
5. NET WORTH TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

A - Net worth
B - Total assets
Net worth to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

64,854,569

259,094,003

58,352,854

233,119,651

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

14.05%

14.05%

14.10%

14.10%

6. SOLVENCY RATIO
2013

A - Net worth
B - Risk-weighted assets
Solvency ratio (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

64,854,569

259,094,003

58,352,854

233,119,651

310,467,380

1,240,317,184

263,532,572

1,052,812,623

20.89%

20.89%

22.14%

22.14%

7. DEBT TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Total liabilities

395,681,512

1,580,747,641

357,623,974

1,428,707,776

B - Total assets

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

85.72%

85.72%

86.44%

86.44%

Debt to total assets (A/B)
8. DEBT TO EQUITY

2013

A - Total liabilities
B - Equity
Debt to equity (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

395,681,512

1,580,747,641

357,623,974

1,428,707,776

65,896,859

263,257,952

56,117,349

224,188,809

600.46%

600.46%

637.28%

637.28%

9. DIVIDENDS TO NET PROFIT
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Dividends

-

-

-

-

B - Net profit

9,779,510

39,069,143

6,117,349

24,438,809

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

Dividends to net profit (A/B)
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)

10. BANKING RESERVES TO TOTAL LOANS
2013

A - Banking reserves
B - Total loans (gross)
Banking reserves to total loans (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

-

-

-

-

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

ASSETS QUALITY

A - Banking reserves
B - Total assets
Banking reserves to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

-

-

-

-

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

BUSINESS
REVIEW

2013

ACHIEVEMENTS

11. BANKING RESERVES TO TOTAL ASSETS

12. NON-PERFORMING LOANS (“NPL”) TO TOTAL LOANS

NPL to total loans (A/B)

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

8,654,711

34,575,570

10,503,188

41,960,236

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

3.18%

3.18%

4.41%

4.41%
OUR
LEADERSHIP

B - Total loans (gross)

US$

13. NPL TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

A - NPL
B - Total assets
NPL to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

8,654,711

34,575,570

10,503,188

41,960,236

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

1.88%

1.88%

2.54%

2.54%

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

A - NPL

2012
OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

2013

A - Classified assets
B - Total loans (gross)
Classified assets to total loans (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

18,349,343

73,305,625

12,762,363

50,985,640

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

6.74%

6.74%

5.36%

5.36%

OTHER
INFORMATION

2013

THE FINANCIALS

14. CLASSIFIED ASSETS TO TOTAL LOANS
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)
ASSETS QUALITY (CONTINUED)
15. CLASSIFIED ASSETS TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

A - Classified assets
B - Total assets
Classified assets to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

18,349,343

73,305,625

12,762,363

50,985,640

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

3.98%

3.98%

3.08%

3.08%

16. CLASSIFIED ASSETS TO EQUITY
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Classified assets

18,349,343

73,305,625

12,762,363

50,985,640

B - Equity

65,896,859

263,257,952

56,117,349

224,188,809

27.85%

27.85%

22.74%

22.74%

Classified assets to equity (A/B)
17. LOANS TO RELATED PARTIES TO TOTAL LOANS

2013

A - Loans to related parties
B - Total loans (gross)
Loans to related parties to total loans (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

138,064

551,566

-

-

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

0.05%

0.05%

0.00%

0.00%

18. LARGE EXPOSURES TO TOTAL LOANS
2013

A - Large exposures
B - Total loans (gross)
Large exposures to total loans (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

32,992,203

131,803,851

29,948,755

119,645,276

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

12.13%

12.13%

12.58%

12.58%

19. LOANS TO RELATED PARTIES TO NET WORTH
2013

A - Loans to related parties
B - Net worth
Loans to related parties to net worth (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

138,064

551,566

-

-

64,854,569

259,094,003

58,352,854

233,119,651

0.21%

0.21%

0.00%

0.00%
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)

20. LARGE EXPOSURES TO NET WORTH
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Large exposure

32,992,203

131,803,851

29,948,755

119,645,276

B - Net worth

64,854,569

259,094,003

58,352,854

233,119,651

50.87%

50.87%

51.32%

51.32%

Large exposures to net worth (A/B)

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

ASSETS QUALITY (CONTINUED)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - General provision

2,545,396

10,168,857

2,259,337

9,026,051

B - Total loans (gross)

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

0.94%

0.94%

0.95%

0.95%

General provision to total loans (A/B)

BUSINESS
REVIEW

2013

ACHIEVEMENTS

21. GENERAL PROVISION TO TOTAL LOANS

22. SPECIFIC PROVISION TO TOTAL LOANS

Specific provision to total loans (A/B)

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

8,689,404

34,714,169

8,561,676

34,203,896

272,084,107

1,086,976,008

238,024,945

950,909,655

3.19%

3.19%

3.60%

3.60%
OUR
LEADERSHIP

B - Total loans (gross)

US$

23. SPECIFIC PROVISION TO NPL
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Specific provision

8,689,404

34,714,169

8,561,676

34,203,896

B - NPL

8,654,711

34,575,570

10,503,188

41,960,236

100.40%

100.40%

81.52%

81.52%

Specific provision to NPL (A/B)

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

A - Specific provision

2012
OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

2013

A - Total all allowances
B - Total assets
All allowances to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

11,234,800

44,883,026

10,821,013

43,229,947

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

2.43%

2.43%

2.62%

2.62%

OTHER
INFORMATION

2013

THE FINANCIALS

24. ALL ALLOWANCES TO TOTAL ASSETS
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)
ASSETS QUALITY (CONTINUED)
25. LOANS TO DEPOSITS
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Total loans to non-bank

270,053,337

1,078,863,081

238,024,945

950,909,655

B - Customers’ deposits

296,683,606

1,185,251,006

212,133,150

847,471,934

Loans to deposits (A/B)

91.02%

91.02%

112.21%

112.21%

EARNINGS
26. RETURN ON ASSETS (“ROA”)
2013

A - Net profit
B - Total assets
ROA (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

9,779,510

39,069,143

6,117,349

24,438,809

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

2.12%

2.12%

1.48%

1.48%

27. RETURN ON EQUITY (“ROE”)
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

9,779,510

39,069,143

6,117,349

24,438,809

B - Equity

65,896,859

263,257,952

56,117,349

224,188,809

ROE (A/B)

14.84%

14.84%

10.90%

10.90%

A - Net profit

28. GROSS YIELD
2013

A - Interest income
B - Total assets
Gross yield (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

23,093,084

92,256,871

14,538,532

58,081,435

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

5.00%

5.00%

3.51%

3.51%

29. NET INTEREST MARGIN (“NIM”) TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

A - NIM = Interest income – Interest expense
B - Total assets
NIM to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

18,608,861

74,342,400

11,488,506

45,896,581

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

4.03%

4.03%

2.78%

2.78%
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)
30. OTHER INCOME TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

A - Other income
B - Total assets
Other income to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

3,090,925

12,348,246

2,000,745

7,992,977

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

0.67%

0.67%

0.48%

0.48%

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

Provision to total assets (A/B)

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

413,787

1,653,080

614,437

2,454,676

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

0.09%

0.09%

0.15%

0.15%

32. OVERHEAD TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

B - Total assets
Overhead to total assets (A/B)

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

9,942,119

39,718,766

5,889,080

23,526,874

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

2.15%

2.15%

1.42%

1.42%
OUR
LEADERSHIP

A - Non-interest expense

2012

33. NET INCOME BEFORE TAX (“NIBT”) TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

A - Net income before tax
B - Total assets
NIBT to total assets (A/B)

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

B - Total assets

US$

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

11,757,667

46,971,880

7,600,171

30,362,684

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

2.55%

2.55%

1.84%

1.84%

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

A - Provision

2012

BUSINESS
REVIEW

2013

ACHIEVEMENTS

31. PROVISION TO TOTAL ASSETS

A - Tax (all categories)
B - Total assets
Tax to total assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

1,978,157

7,902,737

1,482,822

5,923,875

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

0.43%

0.43%

0.36%

0.36%

OTHER
INFORMATION

2013

THE FINANCIALS

34. TAX TO TOTAL ASSETS
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)
EARNINGS (CONTINUED)
35. NIM TO GROSS INCOME
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - NIM

18,608,861

74,342,400

11,488,506

45,896,581

B - Gross income

26,184,009

104,605,117

16,539,277

66,074,412

71.07%

71.07%

69.46%

69.46%

Interest margin to gross income (A/B)
36. NON-INTEREST INCOME TO GROSS INCOME

2013

A - Non-interest income
B - Gross income
Non-interest income to gross income (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

3,090,925

12,348,246

2,000,745

7,992,977

26,184,009

104,605,117

16,539,277

66,074,412

11.80%

11.80%

12.10%

12.10%

37. NON-INTEREST INCOME TO GROSS INCOME
2013

A - Non-interest expense
B - Gross income
Non-interest expense to gross income (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

9,942,119

39,718,766

5,889,080

23,526,874

26,184,009

104,605,117

16,539,277

66,074,412

37.97%

37.97%

35.61%

35.61%

38. TIMES INTEREST EARNED
2013

A - Income before tax plus Interest expense
B - Interest expense
Times interest earned (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

16,241,890

64,886,351

10,650,197

42,547,538

4,484,223

17,914,471

3,050,026

12,184,854

3.62 times

3.62 times

3.49 times

3.49 times

LIQUIDITY
39. LIQUID ASSETS TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Liquid assets

150,621,873

601,734,383

140,499,676

561,296,206

B - Total assets

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

32.63%

32.63%

33.96%

33.96%

Liquid assets to total assets (A/B)
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FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS (CONTINUED)
40. SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES TO TOTAL ASSETS
2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Short-term liabilities

395,625,886

1,580,525,415

356,791,196

1,425,380,828

B - Total assets

461,578,371

1,844,005,593

413,741,323

1,652,896,585

85.71%

85.71%

86.24%

86.24%

Short-term liabilities to total assets (A/B)

ABOUT US

MESSAGE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

LIQUIDITY (CONTINUED)

A - Liquid assets - Short-term liabilities
B - Total liabilities
Net liquid assets (A/B)

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

(245,004,013)

(978,791,032)

(216,291,520)

(864,084,622)

395,681,512

1,580,747,641

357,623,974

1,428,707,776

(61.92%)

(61.92%)

(60.48%)

(60.48%)

BUSINESS
REVIEW

2013

ACHIEVEMENTS

41. NET LIQUID ASSETS

42. QUICK RATIO

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Quick assets

150,621,873

601,734,383

140,499,676

561,296,206

B - Current liabilities

395,625,886

1,580,525,415

356,791,196

1,425,380,828

38.07%

38.07%

39.38%

39.38%

2013

2012

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

US$

KHR’000
equivalent

A - Total customers’ deposits

296,683,606

1,185,251,006

212,133,150

847,471,934

B - Total loans to non-bank customers (gross)

270,053,337

1,078,863,081

238,024,945

950,909,655

109.86%

109.86%

89.12%

89.12%

Deposits to total loans (A/B)

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

43. DEPOSITS TO TOTAL LOANS

THE FINANCIALS

Quick ratio (A/B)

OUR
LEADERSHIP

US$

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

2012

OTHER
INFORMATION

2013
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHEAH TEIK SENG
Non-Independent Non-Executive Chairman
LEE TIEN POH
Non-Independent Executive Director
(Chief Executive Officer)
SPENCER LEE
Independent Non-Executive Director
DATUK R. KARUNAKARAN
Independent Non-Executive Director
HAMIRULLAH BOORHAN
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
MICHAEL FOONG SEONG YEW
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
(Resigned with effect from 28 February 2014)

POLLIE SIM
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed with effect from 28 February 2014)
QAZREEN CHAN ABDULLAH
DAENG HAFEZ
Corporate Secretaries
REGISTERED OFFICE
4B, Street 114 (Kramoun Sar),
Sangkat Phsar Thmey 1,
Khan Daun Penh,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia
Tel
: (855) 23 210 123
Fax
: (855) 23 210 099
SWIFT : MBBEKHPP
Website : www.maybank2u.com.kh
E-Mail : mbb@maybank.com.kh

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
Messrs. Ernst & Young (Cambodia) Ltd.
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Auditors
66, Norodom Boulevard,
3rd Floor, SSN Center,
Sangkat Chey Chumneas,
Khan Daun Penh,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia.
Tel
: (855) 23 217 824 / 825
Fax
: (855) 23 217 805

GROUP
DIRECTORY
COMMERCIAL BANKING
Malayan Banking Berhad
14th Floor, Menara Maybank
100, Jalan Tun Perak
50050 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03- 2070 8833
Fax
: (6)03- 2031 0071
Corporate website : www.maybank.com
Email
: publicaffairs@maybank.com.my
Maybank Islamic Berhad
Level 10, Tower A
Dataran Maybank
No. 1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 2001
Fax
: (6)03-2297 2002
Website : www.maybankislamic.com.my
Email
: MIB_stratcomms@maybank.com.my
P.T. Bank Internasional Indonesia Tbk
Gedung Sentral Senayan 3, 26th Floor
JI. Asia Afrika No. 8
Senayan Gelora Bung Karno
Jakarta 10270
Indonesia
Tel
: (62)-21-2922 8888
Fax
: (62)-21-2922 8914
Website : www.bii.co.id
Email : cs@bii.co.id

P.T. Bank Maybank Syariah Indonesia
1st-3rd Floor, Sona Topas Tower
Jl. Jend. Sudirman Kav. 26
Jakarta 12920
Indonesia
Tel
: (62)-21-250 6446
Fax
: (62)-21-250 6445
Corporate website : www.maybanksyariah.co.id
Maybank Philippines Inc.
Maybank Corporate Center
7th Avenue Corner 28th Street
Bonifacio Global City 1634
Taguig City, Metro Manila
Philippines
Tel
: (632)-588 3777
Fax
: (632)-808 2669
Website : www.maybank2u.com.ph
Maybank (PNG) Ltd
Port Moresby Branch
Corner Waigani Road/Islander Drive
P.O. Box 882 Waigani, National Capital District
Port Moresby
Papua New Guinea
Tel
: (675)-325 0101
Fax
: (675)-325 6128
Corporate website : www.maybank.com
Email : maybankpom@datec.net.pg

Maybank International (L) Ltd
Level 16 (B), Main Office Tower
Financial Park Complex
Jalan Merdeka
87000 Wilayah Persekutuan Labuan
Tel
: (6)087-414 406
Fax
: (6)087-414 806
Corporate website : www.maybank.com
Email : millmit@streamyx.com
Maybank (Cambodia) Plc.
No. 4B Street 114 (Kramoun Sar),
Sangkat Phsar Thmey 1,
Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh
Kingdom of Cambodia
Tel
: (855)-23-210 123
Fax
: (855)-23-210 099
Website : www.maybank2u.com.kh
INVESTMENT BANKING
Maybank Investment Bank Berhad
32nd Floor, Menara Maybank
100, Jalan Tun Perak
50050 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2059 1888
Fax
: (6)03-2078 4217
Website : www.maybank-ib.com
Email : enquiries@maybank-ib.com
Maybank IB Holdings Sdn Bhd
32nd Floor, Menara Maybank
100, Jalan Tun Perak
50050 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2059 1888
Fax
: (6)03-2078 4217
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INSURANCE & TAKAFUL
Maybank ATR Kim Eng Securities, Inc
9th, 16th and 17th Floor, Tower One & Exchange
Plaza
Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue
Makati City, Philippines
Tel
: (632)- 849 8988 / 849 8888
Website : www.maybank-atrke.com
PT. Maybank Kim Eng Securities
Plaza Bapindo-Citibank Tower 17th Floor
Jl. Jenderal Sudirman Kav 54-55
Jakarta 12190 Indonesia
Tel
: (62)-21-2557-1188
Fax
: (62)-21-2557-1189
Website : www.kimeng.co.id
Email : cs@kimeng.co.id
Kim Eng Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
Level 30, Three Pacific Place
1, Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
Tel
: 852-2268 0800
Fax
: 852- 2845 3772
Website : www.kimeng.com.hk
Email : cs@kimeng.com.hk
Kim Eng Securities India Private Limited
2nd Floor, The International
16, Maharishi Karve Marg
Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020
India
Tel
: 91-22 6623 2600
Fax
: 91-22 6623 2604
Email : ajain@maybank-ke.co.in

Maybank Ageas Holdings Berhad
Level 19, Tower C
Dataran Maybank
No. 1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 3888
Fax
: (6)03-2297 3800
Website : www.etiqa.com.my
Email : info@etiqa.com.my
Etiqa Insurance Berhad
Etiqa Takaful Berhad
Level 19, Tower C
Dataran Maybank
No. 1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 3888
Fax
: (6)03-2297 3800
Website : www.etiqa.com.my
Email : info@etiqa.com.my
Etiqa Life International (L) Ltd
Etiqa Offshore Insurance (L) Ltd
Level 11B, Block 4 Office Tower
Financial Park Labuan Complex
Jalan Merdeka
87000 Wilayah Persekutuan Labuan
Tel
: (6)087-582 588
(6)087-417 672
Fax
: (6)087-583 588
(6)087-452 333
Website : www.etiqa.com.my
Email : info@etiqa.com.my

Maybank Private Equity Sdn Bhd
(formerly known as Maybank Ventures Sdn Bhd)
Level 5, Tower A
Dataran Maybank
No 1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 7887
Fax
: (6)03-2297 7878
Maybank Asset Management Singapore Pte
Ltd
48 North Canal Road #04-01
Singapore 059305
Tel
: (65)-6231 5926
Fax
: (65)-6231 5932
Corporate website : www.maybank-am.com
Maybank Asset Management (Thailand) Co
Ltd
The Offices of Central World
25th Floor, 999/9 Rama 1 Road
Pathumwan
Bangkok 10330
Thailand
Tel
: +66(0)-2264 5111
Fax
: +66(0)-2264 5132
Corporate website : www.maybank-am.co.th
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Maybank Islamic Asset Management Sdn Bhd
Level 12, Tower C
Dataran Maybank
No. 1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 7816
Fax
: (6)03-2711 8588

BUSINESS
REVIEW

Maybank Kim Eng Securities USA, Inc.
777 Third Avenue 21st Floor
New York NY 10017
USA
Tel
: 212-688 8886
Fax
: 212-688 3500
E-mail : sales@maybank-keusa.com

Maybank Asset Management Sdn Bhd
Level 12, Tower C
Dataran Maybank
No. 1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 7888
Fax
: (6)03-2297 7998
Corporate website : www.maybank-am.com

OUR
RESPONSIBILITY

Maybank Kim Eng Securities (London) Limited
6th Floor, 20 St. Dunstan’s Hill
London EC3R 8HY
United Kingdom
Tel
: 44-20 7626 2828
Fax
: 44-20 7283 6674
Email : sales@maybank-ke.co.uk

Maybank Asset Management Group Berhad
Level 5, Tower A
Dataran Maybank
No 1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 7833
Fax
: (6)03-2297 7997
Corporate website : www.maybank-am.com

OUR
LEADERSHIP

4A Floor-15+16, Vincom Center Dong Khoi,
72 Le Thanh Ton Street, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
Tel
: +84 8 44 555 888
Fax
: +84 8 3827 1030
Website : maybank-kimeng.com.vn
Email : info@maybank-kimeng.com.vn

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Maybank ATR Kim Eng Capital Partners, Inc
8th, 9th, and 17th Floor, Tower One & Exchange
Plaza
Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue
Makati City, Philippines
Tel
: (632)-849 8988 / 849 8888
Website : www.maybank-atrke.com

ASSET MANAGEMENT

(formerly known as Maybank Kim Eng Securities Joint Stock Company)

THE FINANCIALS

Maybank Kim Eng Securities (Thailand) Public
Company Limited
999/9 The Offices at Central World
20th-21st, 24th and 25th Floor Rama 1 Road
Pathumwan
Bangkok, 10330 Thailand
Tel
: (+66)-2 658 6300
Fax
: (+66)-2 658 6301
Website : www.maybank-ke.co.th
Email : IB@maybank-ke.co.th

Maybank Kim Eng Securities Limited

OTHER
INFORMATION

Maybank Kim Eng Holdings Limited
Maybank Kim Eng Securities Pte. Ltd.
50, North Canal Road
#03-01, Singapore 059304
Tel
: (65)- 6231 5000
Fax
: (65)- 6339 6003
Website : www.maybank-ke.com.sg
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GROUP
DIRECTORY
PT Maybank GMT Asset Management
Setiabudi Atrium, 5th Floor - Suite 505
Jl. HR Rasuna Said Kav. 62
Kuningan, Jakarta
12920 Indonesia
Tel
: (62)-21 521 0672
Fax
: (62)-21 521 0673
Corporate website : www.reksadanagmt.com

Maybank (Nominees) Sdn Bhd
Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Maybank Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
14th Floor, Menara Maybank
100, Jalan Tun Perak
50050 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2070 8833/
(6)03-2070 1522
Fax
: (6)03-2032 1505

Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Maybank Securities Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.
Level 8, Tower C
Dataran Maybank
No.1, Jalan Maarof
59000 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2297 8888
Fax
: (6)03-2282 5136

Main Branch
(Head Office)
No. 4B, Street 114 (Kramoun Sar)
Sangkat Phsar Thmey 1,
Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 210 123
Fax
: (855) 23 210 099

Kampuchea Krom Branch
No. 479 E1E2 & 481 E0E1E2
Street 128, Kampuchea Krom Blvd
Sangkat Phsar Depo III
Khan Tuol Kork, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 883 654 / 694
Fax
: (855) 23 882 714

Serey Sophorn Branch
No. 334, National Road No. 6
Sangkat Preah Ponlea
Krong Serey Sophorn
Banteay Meanchey
Tel
: (855) 54 711 386/ 387
Fax
: (855) 54 711 385

Battambang Branch
No. 136Eoz, Street 3, Group 39
20 Ou Saphea Village
Sangkat Svay Por, Battambang
Tel
: (855) 53 731 207 / 208
Fax
: (855) 53 731 201

Mao Tse Toung Branch
No. 158 BCD, Mao Tse Toung Blvd
Sangkat Tomnoubteouk
Khan Chamkarmon, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 216 436 / 437
Fax
: (855) 23 216 438

Siem Reap Branch
No. 13, 14 & 15, Mondul II
Svay Dangkum Commune, Siem Reap
Tel
: (855) 63 761 062 / 063
Fax
: (855) 63 761 065

Chbar Ampov Branch
No. 27&29 Eo+E1, National Road 1
Kandal Village, Sangkat Chbar Ampov 2
Khan Mean Chey, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 720 586 / 587
Fax
: (855) 23 720 528

Obek Kaorm Branch
No. 28 & 30, Street 271
Sangkat Toeuk Thla
Khan Sen Sok, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 883 920 / 923
Fax
: (855) 23 883 982

Chroy Changvar Branch
No. F14 & F15, National Road No. 6A
Sangkat Chroy Changvar
Khan Russey Keo, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 432 290 / 291
Fax
: (855) 23 432 289

Olympic Branch
No. 323 & 325, Sihanouk Blvd
Sangkat Veal Vong
Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 993 154 / 155
Fax
: (855) 23 993 153

Kampong Cham Branch
No. 58 Street Preah Monivong
Sangkat Kampong Cham
Kampong Cham City, Kampong Cham
Tel
: (855) 42 210 571 / 572
Fax
: (855) 42 210 574

Phnom Penh Special Economic Zone Branch
No. A6-A8, National Road No. 4
Sangkat Kantork, Khan Po Senchey
Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 729 857 858
Fax
: (855) 23 729 856

OTHERS
Maybank Trustees Berhad
8th Floor, Menara Maybank
100, Jalan Tun Perak
50050 Kuala Lumpur
Tel
: (6)03-2078 8363
Fax
: (6)03-2070 9387
Corporate website : www.maybank.com
Email : mtb@maybank.com.my

BRANCH
DIRECTORY

Sihanoukville Branch
No. 212, Street Ekareach, District No.2
Khan Mittapheap, Sihanoukville
Tel
: (855) 34 935 051 / 052
Fax
: (855) 34 935 053
Stung Meanchey Branch
No. 144 St 217 (Monireth Blvd)
Sangkat Stung Meanchey,
Khan Meanchey, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 424 482 / 483
Fax
: (855) 23 424 635
Toeuk Thla Branch
No. 13-17Eo, Attwood Business Centre
Street 110A (Russian Confederation Blvd)
Sangkat Toeuk Thla, Khan Sen Sok
Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 866 052 / 053
Fax
: (855) 23 866 054
Toul Kork Branch
No. 93 A1 & A2, Street 289
Sangkat Boeung Kak II
Khan Toul Kork, Phnom Penh
Tel
: (855) 23 999 205 / 206
Fax
: (855) 23 999 203
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Being committed to your needs.

Being on this journey together.

To our customers, shareholders and business partners: thank you.
Thank you for choosing us as your preferred financial partner in Asia. Your support has made us the leading financial services group
in Asia and one of the world’s strongest banks*.
We are honoured to have taken this journey with you, one that has spanned over 53 years, across 2,200 offices in 20 countries,
bearing over USD171 billion in assets.
As a global bank that has grown in Asia, we have seen a remarkable economic growth in the region and are proud to have fueled the
transformation for over 53 years, as a participant and not just a witness.
With your encouragement and contribution, we are living our mission of Humanising Financial Services Across Asia.
We are bridging worlds in Asia by identifying the gaps in this complex and diverse, yet modern and ambitious market. Gaps between
technology and people, progress and responsibility, values and growth, and ambition and possibilities.
And by closing these gaps, we’re helping our customers constantly stay connected to opportunities across the region.
Because we believe that for everything that keeps us apart, there’s always something that brings us together.
To us, this is humanising financial services. This is the future.
*Source: Bloomberg Markets’ Annual Ranking of the World’s Strongest Banks

www.maybank2u.com.kh

Humanising Financial Services Across Asia.

